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AGENDA
COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF
FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-3
DATE
:

Monday, July 11, 2022

TIME
:

10:00 a.m.
You can attend the meeting in any of the following ways:
1.

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetupjoin/19%3ameeting_NzcwOGZmNmQtYTFkMy00NWZhLTkzMmMtYTk4ZGQ0NTJmZmRl%
40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%224aaa468e-93ba-4ee3-ab9f6a247aa3ade0%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229bf4c29b-a9c8-46b4-a6c0c1ed7cba4824%22%7dthe meeting

2.

To attend via telephone, dial 720- 547-5281 and enter the following additional information:
Passcode: 478 032 790#

ACC
ESS:

Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2
Board of Directors

Office

Term Expires

VACANT

President

May, 2023

VACANT

Secretary

May, 2025*

Brittanny Havard

Treasurer

May, 2023*

Jamie Curcio

Assistant Secretary

May, 2025

Bob Dapper

Assistant Secretary

May, 2025

Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 3
Board of Directors

Office

VACANT

President

May, 2023

VACANT

Secretary

May, 2025*

Brittanny Havard

Treasurer

May, 2023*

Jamie Curcio

Assistant Secretary

May, 2025

Brian Ratner

Assistant Secretary

May, 2025*

I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
A.

Call to order. Present disclosures of potential conflicts of interest.

Term Expires
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B.

Confirm quorum, location of meeting and posting of meeting notices, designate
24-hour posting location and approve agenda.

C.

Public Comment.
Members of the public may express their views to the Boards on matters that
affect the Districts that are otherwise not on the agenda. Comments will be limited
to three (3) minutes per person.

D.

Consider Appointment of Suzanne Schlicht to Districts 1 and 3.

E.

Consider Appointment of Officers for Districts 1 and 3:
President:
Vice President:
Treasurer
Secretary:
Assistant Secretary:

F.

Other.

II. CONSENT AGENDA
A.

Review and consider approval of minutes of the November 12, 2021 Special
Meetings, December 6, 2021 Joint Special Meeting and December 13, 2021 Joint
Special Meeting (enclosures).

III. FINANCIAL MATTERS
A.

Consider approval of adding Director Havard and Suzanne Schlicht as signers on
the 1st Bank Accounts for Districts Nos 1 and 3.

B.

Review and consider approval of May 31, 2022 Financial Statements and
Schedule of Cash Position for Districts 1 and 3 (to be distributed).

C.

Ratify approval of claims in the amount of $287,957.59 for District 1, and in the
amount of $94,281.19 for District 3 (enclosed).

D.

Other.

IV. MANAGEMENT MATTERS
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A.

Pedestrian bridge.
a. Discuss pedestrian bridge emergency impact report with Stephen Pouillot,
MBI(enclosure).
b. Ratify approval of MBI emergency repair contract (enclosure).
c. Discuss and consider approval of proposal for insured engineering repair in the
amount of $100,428.86 (enclosure).
d. Discuss and consider approval of uninsured repairs related to the bearing plates in
the amount of $22,257.99 (enclosure).
e. Bridge damage insurance response and coverage (enclosure).
f. Discuss consultant authorization regarding bridge repair work.

B.

Termination of Parking Agreement with Republic Parking System Inc.
(enclosure).

C.

Other.

V. LEGAL MATTERS
A.

Operations and Maintenance Fee status for Metropolitans Districts 1 and 3.

B.

Discuss payment/reimbursement of broken main line in the amount of $6,342.60
(enclosure). (District 3)

C.

Review and consider approval of revised CLA Management Scope of Work
(enclosure).

D.

Review and consider approval of S.A. Miro proposal to maintain stormwater
systems and Engagement Letter in the amount not to exceed $10,000.00
(enclosure).

E.

Review and consider approval of Lionheart EC Lighting Retro Proposal for the
pedestrian bridge in the amount of $42,310.00 (enclosure).

F.

Review and consider approval of Roth Property Maintenance, LLC 2022 annual
services in the amount of $19,197.20 (enclosure).

G.

Review and consider approval of Sustainable Landscapes 2022 Maintenance
Agreement for Fitzsimons Village MD No 1 in the amount of $9,883.71
(enclosure).
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H.

Review and consider approval of Sustainable Landscapes Summer Floral
Containers Proposal for Fitzsimons Village MD No 1 in the amount of $8,369.90
(enclosure).

I.

Review and consider approval of Sustainable Landscapes 2022 Maintenance
Agreement for Fitzsimons Village MD No 3 in the amount of $8,342.26
(enclosure).

J.

Review and consider approval of Diversified Underground Agreement
(enclosure).

K.

Review and consider approval of TKE Service Addendum in the amount of $277
per month (enclosure).

L.

Discussion and possible action to parking garage construction; ratify bid process;
select design, construction and/or construction management contractors.

M.

Other.

VII. DIRECTOR MATTERS
A.

Other.

VIII. OTHER BUSINESS
A.
IX.

Discuss need for a Special Meeting before next Regular Meeting in November.
ADJOURNMENT
The next regular meeting will be November 11, 2022.
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MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
HELD
NOVEMBER 12, 2021
A special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District
No. 1, County of Arapahoe (referred to hereafter as the “Board”) was convened on Friday,
November 12, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. The District Board meeting was also held and properly
noticed to be held via video enabled web conference. The meeting was open to the public
via videoconference.
Directors In Attendance Were:
Karen McShea
Alan Rodzen
Brittanny Havard
Jamie Curcio
Bob Dapper (Dist. Nos. 1 and 2)
Also In Attendance Was:
Tom George, Esq.; Spencer Fane LLP
Gigi Pangindian, Carrie Beacom, Anna Jones and Nic Carlson; CliftonLarsonAllen
LLP (“CLA”)
Tom Banta; Corporex
ADMINISTRATIVE Call to Order/Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest: Director McShea called the
MATTERS
meeting to order at 11:03 a.m. Attorney George discussed the requirements of Colorado law
to disclose any potential conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty of the
Board of Directors to the Secretary of State. The members of the Board were requested to
disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard to any matters scheduled for
discussion at this meeting, and incorporated for the record those applicable disclosures
made by the Board members prior to this meeting in accordance with statute. It was noted
that the disclosures of potential conflicts of interest were filed with the Secretary of State
for all Directors as required by statute. No new conflicts were disclosed.
Quorum/Meeting Location/Approve Agenda: A quorum was confirmed. The Board
entered into a discussion regarding the requirements of Section 32-1-903(1), C.R.S.,
concerning the location of the Board meeting. Following discussion, upon motion duly
made by Director McShea, seconded by Director Havard and, upon vote, unanimously
carried, the Board determined due to concerns regarding the spread of COVID-19, and the
benefits to the control of the virus by limiting in-person contact, the meeting was held via
videoconference. The Board further noted that notice providing the time, date and video
link information was duly posted and that no objections, or any requests that the means of
hosting the meeting be changed by any interested person have been received.
Upon a motion duly made by Director McShea, seconded by Director Havard and, upon
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vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved the agenda as presented.
Public Comment: None.
Other: None.
CONSENT AGENDA Minutes from November 6, 2020 Special Meeting:
2021 Audit:
District Contractors for 2022:
District’s insurance and Special District Association Membership in 2022:
Claims in the amount of $391,153.46:
Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Dapper, seconded by Director
Havard and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved and/or ratified approval
of the Consent Agenda, with the exception of the 2021 Audit which was deferred to the
December meeting.
FINANCIAL
MATTERS

September 30, 2021 Unaudited Financial Statements: Ms. Beacom reviewed the
Unaudited Financial Statements with the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly
made by Director McShea, seconded by Director Havard and, upon vote, unanimously
carried, the Board accepted the September 30, 2021 Unaudited Financial Statements.
Public Hearing on Amendment to 2021 Budget: The Board opened the public hearing to
consider an amendment to the 2021 Budget at 11:09 a.m.
It was noted that publication of Notice stating that the Board would consider amendment of
the 2021 Budget and the date, time and place of the public hearing was made in a newspaper
having general circulation within the District. No written objections were received prior to
the public hearing.
No public comments were received, and the public hearing was closed 11:10 a.m.
Ms. Pangindian noted that an amendment to the 2021 budget was not needed.
Public Hearing on 2022 Budget: The Board opened the public hearing to consider the
proposed 2022 Budget and to discuss related issues at 11:11 a.m.
It was noted that Notice stating that the Board would consider adoption of the 2022 budget
and the date, time and place of the public hearing was published pursuant to statute. No
written objections were received prior to the public hearing.
No public comments were received, and the public hearing was closed at 11:12 a.m.
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Ms. Pangindian reviewed the 2022 Budget with the Board. Following discussion, upon
motion duly made by Director Dapper, seconded by Director McShea and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the Board approved the 2022 Budget, as discussed, and approved the
Resolution to Adopt the 2022 Budget, Appropriate Sums of Money and Resolution to Set
Mill Levies. The District Accountant was directed to transmit the Certification of Tax
Levies to the Board of County Commissioners of Arapahoe County not later than
December 15, 2021. District Accountant was directed to transmit the Certification of Budget
to the Division of Local Government no later than January 30, 2022.
DLG-70 Mill Levy Certification Form: Following discussion, upon motion duly made by
Director Dapper, seconded by Director McShea and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the
Board authorized the District Accountant to prepare and sign the DLG-70 Mill Levy
Certification Form for certification to the Board of County Commissioners and other
interested parties.
Preparation of 2023 Budget: Upon a motion duly made by Director McShea, seconded by
Director Dapper and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board appointed the District
Accountant to prepare the 2023 Budget.
Wipfli Engagement for 2021 Audit Services: Ms. Pangindian reviewed the engagement
letter with the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director McShea,
seconded by Director Dapper and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved the
engagement of Wipfli for 2021 Audit Services in the amount of $4,750.00.
Other: None.
MANAGEMENT
MATTERS

Diversified Underground Inc. Agreement for Utility Locate Services: Following review,
upon a motion duly made by Director Dapper, seconded by Director Havard and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the Board approved the Agreement for Utility Locate Services between
the District and Diversified Underground Inc.
Master Service Agreement for Accounting Services by and between the District and
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP and related statement(s) of work: Following discussion, upon a
motion duly made by Director Dapper, seconded by Director Havard and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the Board approved the Master Service Agreement for Accounting
Services by and between the District and CliftonLarsonAllen LLP and related statement(s)
of work.

LEGAL MATTERS 2022 Annual Administrative Resolution: Attorney George reviewed the Resolution with
the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director McShea, seconded
by Director Dapper and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board adopted the 2022
Annual Administrative Resolution.
Resolution Calling a Regular Election for Directors on May 3, 2022: Deferred to the
next meeting.
Section 32-1-809, C.R.S., reporting requirements: Following discussion, upon a motion
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duly made by Director McShea, seconded by Director Dapper and, upon vote, unanimously
carried, the Board directed District Manager to comply with the Section 32-1-809, C.R.S.,
reporting requirements.
Project Funding Agreement (Fitzsimons Village Parking Garage, Promenade Park and
Other Improvements) between Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1 and
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 3: Attorney George reviewed the Agreement
with the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director McShea,
seconded by Director Dapper and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved the
Project Funding Agreement (Fitzsimons Village Parking Garage, Promenade Park and Other
Improvements) between Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1 and Fitzsimons
Village Metropolitan District No. 3, in substantially the form presented subject to final
review and approval by legal counsel and the Board President.
Second Amendment to Facilities Funding, Construction and Operations Agreement
between Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1, Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District No. 2 and Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 3:
Attorney George reviewed the Second Amendment with the Board. Following discussion,
upon a motion duly made by Director McShea, seconded by Director Dapper and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the Board approved the Second Amendment to Facilities Funding,
Construction and Operations Agreement between Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District
No. 1, Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 2 and Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan
District No. 3, in substantially the form presented subject to final review and approval by
legal counsel and the Board President.
Facilities Funding and Acquisition Agreement between Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District No. 1 and Corporex Colorado LLC: Attorney George reviewed
the Agreement with the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director
McShea, seconded by Director Dapper and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board
approved the Facilities Funding and Acquisition Agreement between Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District No. 1 and Corporex Colorado LLC, in substantially the form presented
subject to final review and approval by legal counsel and the Board President.
Reimbursement Agreement (2019-2021 Operations) between Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District No. 1 and Corporex Colorado LLC: Attorney George reviewed the
Agreement with the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director
McShea, seconded by Director Dapper and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board
approved the Reimbursement Agreement (2019-2021 Operations) between Fitzsimons
Village Metropolitan District No. 1 and Corporex Colorado LLC, in substantially the form
presented subject to final review and approval by legal counsel and the Board President.
PROPERTY
MANAGER
MATTERS

Other: None.

DIRECTOR

2022 Development/Construction Outlook: Not discussed.
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MATTERS

Other: None.

OTHER BUSINESS Attorney George indicated there will need to be a special meeting held in either late
November or early December.
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, upon a motion duly
made by Director McShea, seconded by director Havard and, upon vote, unanimously
carried, the Board adjourned the meeting at 11:50 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,
By ____________________________
Secretary for the Meeting
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MINUTES OF A COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING OF
THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 & 3
HELD
DECEMBER 6, 2021
A special meeting of the Boards of Directors of the Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan
District Nos. 1, 2 & 3, County of Arapahoe (referred to hereafter as the “Boards”) was
convened on Monday, December 6, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. The Districts’ Board meeting was
also held and properly noticed to be held via video enabled web conference. The meeting
was open to the public via videoconference.
Directors In Attendance Were:
Alan Rodzen
Jamie Curcio
Bob Dapper (District Nos. 1 and 2)
Brian Ratner (District No. 3)
The absence of Directors McShea and Havard were excused.
Also In Attendance Was:
Tom George, Esq.; Spencer Fane LLP
Gigi Pangindian, Carrie Beacom, Anna Jones and Nic Carlson; CliftonLarsonAllen
LLP (“CLA”)
Rita Connerly; Fairfield & Woods
Kamille Curylo and Bradley Scoble; Kutak Rock
Shelby Noble; Piper Sandler
Andy Struckhoff; PGVA Planners
ADMINISTRATIVE Call to Order/Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest: Director Rodzen called the
MATTERS
meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. Attorney George discussed the requirements of Colorado law
to disclose any potential conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty of the
Boards of Directors to the Secretary of State. The members of the Boards were requested to
disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard to any matters scheduled for
discussion at this meeting, and incorporated for the record those applicable disclosures
made by the Boards’ members prior to this meeting in accordance with statute. It was noted
that the disclosures of potential conflicts of interest were filed with the Secretary of State
for all Directors as required by statute. No new conflicts were disclosed.
Quorum/Meeting Location/Approve Agenda: A quorum was confirmed. The Boards
entered into a discussion regarding the requirements of Section 32-1-903(1), C.R.S.,
concerning the location of the Boards’ meeting. Following discussion, the Boards
determined due to concerns regarding the spread of COVID-19, and the benefits to the
control of the virus by limiting in-person contact, the meeting was held via
videoconference. The Boards further noted that notice providing the time, date and video
link information was duly posted and that no objections, or any requests that the means of
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hosting the meeting be changed by any interested person have been received.
Upon a motion duly made by Director Rodzen, seconded by Director Curcio and, upon
vote, unanimously carried, the Boards approved the agenda as presented.
Public Comment: None.
Other: None.
CONSENT AGENDA :Other: None.
FINANCIAL
MATTERS

2021 Bonds:
District No. 3 to consider approval of a bond parameters resolution with respect to the
issuance of limited tax general obligation and special revenue indebtedness by District
No. 3 comprised of its Taxable Parking/Limited Tax General Obligation and Special
Revenue Bonds Series 2021A-2 in the estimated principal amount of $15,000,000 (the
“2021A-2 Bonds”), and its Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue
Refunding and Improvement Bonds Series 2021A-1 in the estimated original principal
amount of $50,000,000 (the “2021A-1 Bonds,” and together with the 2021A-2 Bonds the
“2021 Bonds”) authorizing the issuance of the 2021 Bonds and also authorizing the
execution and delivery by officers of District No. 3 of an Indenture of Trust for the
2021A-2 Bonds, an Indenture of Trust for the 2021A-1 Bonds, Capital Pledge
Agreements with Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2, a Bond
Purchase Agreement, a Continuing Disclosure Agreement and other necessary and
related documents, approving a Post Issuance Tax Compliance Policy, authorizing the
preparation and use of a Preliminary Limited Offering Memorandum and a final
Limited Offering Memorandum, and delegating certain determinations with respect to
the 2021 Bonds to an identified Sale Delegate: Ms. Curylo reviewed the Resolution with
the Board and described the various authorizations contained therein. Following discussion,
upon a motion duly made by Director Rodzen, seconded by Director Ratner and, upon vote
unanimously carried, the District No. 3 Board approved the bond parameters resolution with
respect to the issuance of limited tax general obligation and special revenue indebtedness by
District No. 3 comprised of its Taxable Parking/Limited Tax General Obligation and Special
Revenue Bonds Series 2021A-2 in the estimated principal amount of $15,000,000 (the
“2021A-2 Bonds”), and its Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Refunding
and Improvement Bonds Series 2021A-1 in the estimated original principal amount of
$50,000,000 (the “2021A-1 Bonds,” and together with the 2021A-2 Bonds the “2021
Bonds”) authorizing the issuance of the 2021 Bonds and also authorizing the execution and
delivery by officers of District No. 3 of an Indenture of Trust for the 2021A-2 Bonds, an
Indenture of Trust for the 2021A-1 Bonds, Capital Pledge Agreements with Fitzsimons
Village Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2, a Bond Purchase Agreement, a Continuing
Disclosure Agreement and other necessary and related documents, approving a Post Issuance
Tax Compliance Policy, authorizing the preparation and use of a Preliminary Limited
Offering Memorandum and a final Limited Offering Memorandum, and appointed Director
McShea as the delegate for the purpose of signing bond documents, with Director Rodzen as
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the alternate.
Resolution authorizing the execution and delivery by officers of District No. 1 of a
Capital Pledge Agreement with District No. 3 and other items related to the 2021
Bonds: Ms. Curylo reviewed the Resolution with the Board. Following discussion, upon a
motion duly made by Director Rodzen, seconded by Director Curcio and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the District No. 1 Board approved the Resolution authorizing the
execution and delivery by officers of District No. 1 of a Capital Pledge Agreement with
District No. 3 and other items related to the 2021 Bonds.
Resolution authorizing the execution and delivery by officers of District No. 2 of a
Capital Pledge Agreements with District No. 3 and other items related to the 2021
Bonds: Ms. Curylo reviewed the Resolution with the Board. Following discussion, upon a
motion duly made by Director Rodzen, seconded by Director Curcio and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the District No. 2 Board approved the Resolution authorizing the
execution and delivery by officers of District No. 2 of a Capital Pledge Agreement with
District No. 3 and other items related to the 2021 Bonds.
Past actions of Directors, consultants and others related to the proposed 2021 Bonds:
Mr. George reviewed the actions of the consultants with the Boards. Following discussion,
upon a motion duly made by Director Rodzen, seconded by Director Dapper and, upon vote
unanimously carried, the Districts No. 1 and District No. 2 Boards ratified the past actions of
the Directors, consultants and others related to the proposed 2021 Bonds.
Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Rodzen, seconded by Director
Ratner and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Districts No. 3 Board ratified the past
actions of the Directors, consultants and others related to the proposed 2021 Bonds.
Other items related to the proposed 2021 Bonds: None.
2021 Bonds issuance schedule: Ms. Noble reviewed the 2021 Bonds issuance schedule
with the Boards. No action was taken.
Engineer Cost Certification (Parking Meters): Mr. George reviewed the Engineer Cost
Certification with the District No. 1 Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made
by Director Dapper, seconded by Director Rodzen and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the
District No. 1 Board accepted the Engineer Cost Certification (Parking Meters).
Requisition No. 1: Ms. Pangindian reviewed the Requisition with the District No. 3 Board.
Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Ratner, seconded by Director
Rodzen and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the District No. 3 Board approved Requisition
No. 1.
First Amendment to First Amended and Restated Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan
District No. 1, Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 2, and Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District No. 3 Joint Operations and Maintenance Fee Resolution: Mr.
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George reviewed the First Amendment with the Boards. Discussion ensued regarding a
possible increase to the operations and maintenance mill levies and associated First
Amendment to the First Amended and Restated Operation and Maintenance Fee Resolution.
The Board scheduled a special meeting for December 13, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. and deferred this
matter to the December 13th special meeting.
Update regarding Districts’ 2022 operating budgets: Deferred to the special meeting
scheduled for December 13th.
Update regarding operating mill levy (for 2022 collection): Deferred to the special
meeting scheduled for December 13th.
MANAGEMENT
MATTERS

Other: None.

LEGAL MATTERS Cooperation Agreement between District No. 3 and AURA: Attorney George reviewed
the Resolution with the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director
Rodzen, seconded by Director Ratner and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the District No.
3 Board ratified approval of the Cooperation Agreement between District No. 3 and AURA.
Ground Lease between District No. 1 and CPX Fitz 300, LLC, and related
Subordination, Non-Disturbance, and Recognition Agreement for Ground Lease
among District No. 1, CPX Fitz 300, LLC, and Citywide Banks: Mr. George reviewed the
Ground Lease documents with the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made
by Director Dapper, seconded by Director Curcio and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the
District No. 1 Board approved the Ground Lease between District No. 1 and CPX Fitz 300,
LLC, and related Subordination, Non-Disturbance, and Recognition Agreement for Ground
Lease among District No. 1, CPX Fitz 300, LLC, and Citywide Banks.
District No. 2 PIF Covenant Amendment: Mr. George and Ms. Connerly reviewed the
Amendment with the Boards. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director
Dapper, seconded by Director Rodzen and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the District No.
1 and District No. 2 Boards approved the PIF Covenant Amendment.
District No. 3 Sales PIF Covenant and Lodging PIF Covenant: Mr. George reviewed the
covenants with the Boards. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director
Dapper, seconded by Director Rodzen and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the District No.
1 Board approved the Sales PIF Covenant and Lodging PIF Covenant.
Upon a motion duly made by Director Ratner, seconded by Director Curcio and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the District No. 3 Board approved the District No. 3 Sales PIF
Covenant and Lodging PIF Covenant.
2022 General Election Resolutions for District Nos. 1 – 3: Mr. George reviewed the
Resolutions with the Boards. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director
Rodzen, seconded by Director Curcio and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the District No.
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1 and District No. 2 Boards approved the 2022 General Election Resolutions for District
Nos. 1 – 3.
Upon a motion duly made by Director Ratner, seconded by Director Curcio and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the District No. 3 Board approved the 2022 General Election
Resolutions for District Nos. 1 – 3.
PIF Collection Services Agreement(s) and other items related to public improvement
fees: Mr. George and Ms. Connerly reviewed the PIF Collection Service Agreements with
the Boards. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made by Director Dapper, seconded
by Director Curcio and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the District No. 1 Board approved
the PIF Collection Services Agreement(s) and other items related to public improvement
fees.
Upon a motion duly made by Director Ratner, seconded by Director Rodzen and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the District No. 3 Board approved the PIF Collection Services
Agreement(s) and other items related to public improvement fees.
Contracts, agreements, consents, acknowledgements or other arrangements and other
actions related to the planning, design, financing and construction of public
improvements in the Districts: None.
Other: Upon a motion duly made by Director Dapper, seconded by Director Rodzen and,
upon vote, unanimously carried, the District No. 1 and District No. 2 Boards approved the
notice regarding termination of the PIC and authorized Director McShea and Director
Rodzen to effectuate the PIF collection agreements.
Upon a motion duly made by Director Curcio, seconded by Director Ratner and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the District No. 3 Board approved the termination of the PIC and
authorized Director McShea and Director Rodzen to effectuate the PIF collection
agreements.
PROPERTY
MANAGER
MATTERS

Other: None.

DIRECTOR
MATTERS

Other: None.
Other: None.

OTHER BUSINESS None.
ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Boards at this time, upon a motion duly
made by Director Dapper, seconded by Director Ratner and, upon vote, unanimously
carried, the Boards adjourned the meeting at 11:12 a.m.
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Respectfully submitted,
By ____________________________
Secretary for the Meeting
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MINUTES OF A COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING OF
THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE
FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1, 2 & 3
HELD
DECEMBER 13, 2021
A special meeting of the Boards of Directors of the Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan
District Nos. 1, 2 & 3, County of Arapahoe (referred to hereafter as the “Boards”) was
convened on Monday, December 13, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. The Districts’ Board meeting was
also held and properly noticed to be held via video enabled web conference. The meeting
was open to the public via videoconference.
Directors In Attendance Were:
Alan Rodzen
Jamie Curcio
Bob Dapper (Dist. Nos. 1 and 2)
Brian Ratner (Dist. No. 3)
Brittanny Havard
The absence of Director McShea was excused.
Also In Attendance Was:
Tom George, Esq.; Spencer Fane LLP
Tom Banta, Corporex
Gigi Pangindian, Carrie Beacom and Anna Jones; CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
(“CLA”)
ADMINISTRATIVE Call to Order/Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest: Director Rodzen called the
MATTERS
meetings to order at 2:05 p.m. Attorney George discussed the requirements of Colorado law
to disclose any potential conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty of the
Board of Directors to the Secretary of State. The members of the Boards were requested to
disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard to any matters scheduled for
discussion at this meeting and incorporated for the record those applicable disclosures made
by the Boards’ members prior to this meeting in accordance with statute. It was noted that
the disclosures of potential conflicts of interest were filed with the Secretary of State for all
Directors as required by statute. No new conflicts were disclosed.
Quorum/Meeting Location/Approve Agenda: A quorum was confirmed. The Boards
entered into a discussion regarding the requirements of Section 32-1-903(1), C.R.S.,
concerning the location of the Boards’ meeting. Following discussion, the Boards
determined due to concerns regarding the spread of COVID-19, and the benefits to the
control of the virus by limiting in-person contact, the meeting was held via
videoconference. The Boards further noted that notice providing the time, date and video
link information was duly posted and that no objections, or any requests that the means of
hosting the meeting be changed by any interested person have been received.

17

Public Comment: None.
Other: None.
CONSENT AGENDA :Other: None.
FINANCIAL
MATTERS

Districts’ 2022 operating budgets: Ms. Pangindian and Ms. Beacom reviewed the 2022
operating budgets and operation and maintenance costs with the Boards, explaining the
reason for the recommended mill levy and fee increases.
Operating mill levy (for 2022 collection): Mr. George reviewed the proposed mill levy
increases for all three Districts’ operating budgets to 10.000 mills. Mr. Banta provided some
history and background. Discussion ensued. Following discussion, upon a motion duly
made by Director Dapper, seconded by Director Rodzen and, upon vote, unanimously
carried, the District No. 1 and District No. 2 Boards approved the increase to the operating
budgets to 10.000 mills.
Upon a motion duly made by Director Ratner, seconded by Director Rodzen and, upon vote,
unanimously carried, the District No. 3 Board approved the increase to the operating budget
to 10.000 mills.
First Amendment to First Amended and Restated Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan
District No. 1, Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 2, and Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District No. 3 Joint Operations and Maintenance Fee Resolution: The
Boards tabled this item. No action taken.

MANAGEMENT
MATTERS

Other: None.

LEGAL MATTERS Other: Attorney George reviewed the bond issuance and timing indicating the closing is
anticipated to be December 16th, with a closing on December 28th. No action was taken.
PROPERTY
MANAGER
MATTERS

Other: None.

DIRECTOR
MATTERS

Other: None.
Other: None.

OTHER BUSINESS None.
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ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Boards at this time, the Boards
adjourned the meetings at 2:32 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,
By ____________________________
Secretary for the Meeting
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
INTERIM CLAIMS
NOVEMBER 9, 2021 - JULY 6, 2022

Process Date
11/15/2021
11/15/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
11/23/2021
12/9/2021
12/14/2021
12/17/2021
12/22/2021
12/22/2021
12/22/2021
12/22/2021
12/23/2021
1/10/2022
1/11/2022
1/11/2022
1/11/2022
1/11/2022
1/11/2022
1/13/2022
1/18/2022
1/18/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022

Vendor
Aurora Water
LionHeart Electrical LLC
Altitude Land Consultants Inc.
Aurora Media Group
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CO Special Dist. Prop & Liab. Pool
Diversified Underground Inc.
Horizon Glass
HSS Inc
Premier Services Inc.
Republic Parking System
Roth Property Maintenance LLC
Spencer Fane
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
T. Charles Wilson Insurance Service
UNCC
WIPFLI
Xcel Energy
Aurora Water
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
HSS Inc
Republic Parking System
Spencer Fane
UNCC
Altitude Land Consultants Inc.
CO Special Dist. Prop & Liab. Pool
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Odin Electric
Republic Parking System
Roth Property Maintenance LLC
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
Xcel Energy
Aurora Water
Aurora Water
Odin Electric
Ranger Engineering, LLC
Republic Parking System
Roth Property Maintenance LLC
S A Miro, Inc
Spencer Fane
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
TKE Corp

Invoice Number
372873-160912OCT21
2103002 Location 003
Multiple
101438
Multiple
Multiple
24345
55997
Multiple
Multiple
Aug-21
Multiple
Multiple
Multiple
9885
221080567
1899904
756803297
372873-160912 NOV
3029969
Multiple
Sep-21
1069508
Multiple
Multiple
POL-0010777
Multiple
Multiple
Oct-21
Multiple
12293
760621626
352465-169294 DEC21
372873-160912DEC21
1033
1393
Nov-21
60345
31172
1074631
Multiple
3006345475

Amount
$
904.41
1,885.00
4,264.00
45.20
10,564.99
3,064.00
2,160.00
11,100.00
1,138.57
18,035.36
3,027.39
2,947.38
1,385.00
1,643.52
495.00
14.52
4,500.00
826.28
17.58
1,050.00
573.48
2,652.77
309.00
62.04
6,729.00
13,532.00
6,996.37
3,483.95
3,453.42
3,460.98
821.76
868.32
17.58
17.58
450.00
1,445.16
2,539.80
1,317.96
810.00
497.00
6,853.36
859.50
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2/9/2022
2/9/2022
2/16/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/14/2022
3/15/2022
3/16/2022
3/31/2022
4/6/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/19/2022
4/27/2022
5/4/2022
5/4/2022
5/4/2022
5/4/2022
5/4/2022
5/4/2022
5/4/2022
5/4/2022
5/4/2022
5/17/2022
6/3/2022
6/3/2022
6/3/2022
6/3/2022

UNCC
Xcel Energy
Aurora Water
Altitude Land Consultants Inc.
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Fire Alarm Services, Inc.
HSS Inc
Martinson Services
Republic Parking System
Roth Property Maintenance LLC
S A Miro, Inc
Special District Association
Spencer Fane
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
TKE Corp
TKE Corp
UNCC
Xcel Energy
Martinson Services
Aurora Water
UMB Bank, N.A.
Xcel Energy
Aurora Regional Transportation Authority
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
HSS Inc
Martinson Services
Republic Parking System
Spencer Fane
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
TKE Corp
Xcel Energy
Aurora Water
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Denver Commercial Property Services
HSS Inc
Martinson Services
Republic Parking System
Roth Property Maintenance LLC
S A Miro, Inc
Spencer Fane
UNCC
Aurora Water
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
HSS Inc
Martinson Services
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC

221110563
764107119
372873-160912 JAN22
20-027.12
Multiple
Multiple
Multiple
Multiple
Multiple
60663
31424
Multiple
Multiple
Multiple
5001749357
5001749100
221120543
768456689
152639
372873-160912 FEB22
915520
771902551
Multiple
Multiple
INV2264878
Multiple
Feb-22
1093281
224
3006515616
776295647
372873-160912 MAR22
Multiple
199520
Multiple
Multiple
Mar-22
Multiple
31729
1100175
Multiple
372873-160912 APR22
3279272
Multiple
Multiple
275
TOTAL

15.84
986.64
17.98
390.00
17,651.48
960.07
1,140.06
11,194.75
4,800.10
962.53
1,072.50
881.85
3,645.00
1,643.49
169.25
289.50
9.24
998.93
3,297.00
18.20
7,000.00
929.87
8,417.98
5,690.31
566.40
20,139.00
2,724.81
2,328.00
821.74
859.50
994.79
18.20
9,245.42
4,301.00
572.17
10,573.50
2,816.34
4,179.21
6,060.00
82.00
210.60
18.20
3,309.60
1,132.80
17,178.87
823.64
$ 287,957.59
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
INTERIM CLAIMS
NOVEMBER 9, 2021 - JULY 6, 2022
Process Date
11/15/2021
11/24/2021
11/24/2021
11/24/2021
11/24/2021
11/24/2021
11/24/2021
1/11/2022
1/11/2022
1/11/2022
1/11/2022
1/11/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022
2/9/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
3/10/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
4/14/2022
5/4/2022
6/2/2022
6/3/2022
6/3/2022

Vendor
LionHeart Electrical
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CO Special District Prop & Liab Pool
S.A. Miro Inc.
Spencer Fane
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
WIPFLI
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CO Special District Prop & Liab Pool
S.A. Miro Inc.
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
T. Charles Wilson Insurance Service
S.A. Miro Inc.
Spencer Fane
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Martinson Services
Special District Association
Spencer Fane
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
Aurora Regional Transportation Authority
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Martinson Services
Spencer Fane
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Spencer Fane
Martinson Services
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC

Invoice Number
2103002 Location 003
3000735
POL-0007641
30856
Multiple
Multiple
1899905
Multiple
POL-0009988
Multiple
12294
10596
Multiple
1078836
114
Multiple
Multiple
2022 Dues
Multiple
Multiple
FVMD#3 3-7-22
Multiple
Multiple
1093305
225
3222380
1105966
Multiple
Multiple

Amount
$ 1,885.00
2,961.16
450.00
1,780.00
690.00
2,062.80
3,000.00
8,899.07
2,456.00
2,885.00
687.60
775.00
1,365.00
11,910.00
448.57
3,396.83
6,210.75
427.97
3,198.00
1,375.21
3,703.03
6,230.56
13,162.50
1,344.00
687.60
3,110.78
426.00
7,362.38
1,390.38
$ 94,281.19
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Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum

Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge over
Colfax- Follow Up Inspection
Date: May 24, 2022
From: Michael Baker International, Tom Ritz, PE, email: thomas.ritz@mbakerintl.com
To: Anna Jones, Fitzsimmons Village Metro District
As a reminder, our recent structural analysis report determined that most of the impact load was taken up by
the south abutment via the steel floor system. On a maximum stress case, the bearings are the weakest
elements in the load path and thus a leading indicator if more inspection would be necessary.
Follow Up Inspection Condition Review: The Michael Baker engineers have reviewed photo and video evidence
we collected in the field on May 18th in our office for a closer assessment of conditions. The office review was
important for the following reasons: 1) our access to the bearings and structural members was very limited; 2)
certain areas of interest were only feasible by hand-held camera pointed where necessary in the confined space;
and 3) lighting was also limited. The office review allowed us to zoom, pause, and generally take a virtual
“hands-on” review that wasn’t entirely possible in the field.

PHOTO A – DEMO WORK IN PROGRESS BY MICHAEL BAKER ENGINEERS
TO GAIN ACCESS TO THE SOUTHWEST BEARING
FOLLOW UP INSPECTION FINIDINGS
Bearings:
-

The southwest bearing anchor bolts did not exhibit distortion, distress, or evidence of recent lateral or
longitudinal movement other than thermal movement. See Photo Group 1 in the appendix.

-

The grout pad under the bottom plate exhibited several defects as noted below:

Page |1
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Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum

o

A ragged 1/16 inch to 1/8 inch diagonal crack near the back of the bearing that appears be
historic and associated with poor construction / improper consolidation of the grout during
construction. See Photo Group 2 in the appendix.

o

Spalling along the front face of bearing, and more so at the northwest corner of bearing, was
found and represents a loss of bearing area as shown in Photo 3 of the appendix. It is relatively
clear the spalling is not recent, but more spalling could have certainly been exacerbated by the
shock load to the bearing.

o

A new vertical hairline crack in the grout pad between the two anchor bolts. This appears
relatively new and is likely associated with the impact load taken at the bearings. See Photo 4.

o

A small 1.5”x1.5”x3/4” corner spall in the northeast corner of the bearing. This spall does not
look recent, and again, appears the result of poor/faulty construction workmanship.

Structural Floor System:
-

No damage, defects or signs of distress were found in the floor system structural members that were
evident in the field or during the office review. This is a positive finding. See Photo GROUP 5

-

A broken glass panel was identified on the east site.

Conclusions:
-

Bearings: the condition of the southwest bearing is concerning regarding the deteriorated condition of
the grout pad which could lead to a downward vertical drop of several inches in the structure creating
many other problems. This grout pad must be repaired. Michael Baker will consult with the District
about inspecting the other bearings to check for similar problems and repair those if necessary.

-

The bearing anchor bolts appeared to be fully engaged in the direction of thermal expansion even
though the day was a 70-degree day. If the expansion range is limited, then it could be this condition
has repeatedly stressed the grout pad over time leading to premature deterioration as seen with the
cracking and spalling.

-

Low chord damage: The location where the truss low chord was struck by the crane clearly has damage.
Repairs are recommended to return the member to full 100% capacity. Our opinion is that the structural
deficiency in this member is primarily in the lateral direction, much less so with respect to gravity loads.
We are looking at a select range of repair options for this location, however; this member is a fracture
critical load member, and any repairs need to be carefully considered.

-

Repairs to the aluminum façade and underlayment should be made to restore the original architecture
of the bridge. If more bearings are agreed to be inspected, additional limited demolition of the façade
will determine the extent of repairs to the aluminum facing that is required.

-

One windowpane on the east side should be replaced.

Bridge Operations: Based on the information discussed above, we recommend opening the bridge to pedestrian
traffic and normal operations. When structural repairs are being made by a contractor later, the bridge will
need to be temporarily closed for a period of a few days. More information will be forthcoming to provide
advance notice of a future temporary closure.
As the engineering in charge, Michael Baker will prepare a separate letter of approval to open the bridge.
Page |2

24

Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum

Appendix – May 18, 2022
Follow Up Inspection Photos

Page |3
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Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum

PHOTO GROUP 1
(Showing relatively plumb anchor bolts, yet fully engaged in the thermal expansion range)

Page |4
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Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum

PHOTO GROUP 2
(Near the back of bearing: A ragged 1/16 to 1/8 inch crack - shown in the top photo in perspective view
and directly above in close. The grout pad is in a progressive state of failure)

Page |5
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Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum

PHOTO 3
(Front of bearing: shallow spalling in the foreground and deeper spalling undermining the bottom
bearing plate in the background with associated loss of bearing area under the plate)

Page |6
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Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum

PHOTO 4
(A near-vertical hairline crack that appears new
located between the front and rear anchor bolts)

Page |7
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Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum

PHOTO GROUP 5
(Two of several photos and video taken of the floor beam and diagonal floor system structural members
between the last two panel points - without any evident damage from the incident

Page |8
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Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge
Impact Analysis Memorandum
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AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES
(Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1)
THIS AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING CONSULTING SERVICES (this
“Agreement”) is entered into and effective the ____ day of ________________, 2022 (the
“Effective Date”), by and between FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO.
1, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the state of Colorado (“District”), and
MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC., a Pennsylvania corporation (“Consultant”)
(District and Consultant may be referred to herein individually as a “Party,” and collectively as the
“Parties”), to set forth the Parties’ mutual understandings and agreements.
RECITALS
WHEREAS, District desires to engage the services of Consultant in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement; and
WHEREAS, Consultant is specially trained and possesses certain skills, experience, and
competency to perform those services as hereinafter set forth, and Consultant is able and willing
to provide such services under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
AGREEMENT
NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the compensation to be paid hereunder and the
mutual agreements set forth herein, the Parties agree as follows:
1.
PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES. District does hereby engage the Consultant to
perform and provide the engineering consulting services hereinafter set forth, and Consultant does
hereby agree to perform such services in accordance with the terms and conditions hereof.
Consultant shall provide at its sole cost and expense all materials, equipment and personnel
required to perform its services under and pursuant to this Agreement.
2.
EXHIBITS TO AGREEMENT. The following exhibits (the “Exhibits”) are
attached to this Agreement, and the provisions of the following Exhibits are expressly incorporated
into this Agreement and thus made an integral part hereof:
Exhibit A:

Scope of Work

In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the text of this Agreement and the
Exhibits, the text of this Agreement shall control.
3.
SCOPE OF SERVICES. Consultant shall provide those services described and set
forth on the Exhibits in the manner and to the extent described in the Exhibits and this Agreement
(the “Work”). The Parties agree that to the extent the Exhibits do not contain all necessary details
and information regarding the Work, Consultant will take direction from the District
Representative (as defined herein) and will not perform any services contrary to or in excess of the
District Representative’s direction.
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4.
TERM OF AGREEMENT. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the
Effective Date of this Agreement first set forth above and shall terminate on the earlier to occur of
completion of the Work or December 31, 2022, provided this agreement may be extended at any
time upon mutual written agreement of the Parties.
5.
COMPENSATION; COMPLETION OF WORK. As compensation for the
services to be performed by Consultant hereunder, District agrees to pay Consultant for the Work
performed consistent with this Agreement and the Exhibits. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties,
Consultant shall provide invoices to the District on a monthly basis no later than the 5th day of
each month for the Work performed in the preceding month, describing the Work underlying such
invoices in reasonable detail. The District will make payments or provide reasonable objection(s)
to all or any portion of the Work claimed to have been provided in each invoice within thirty (30)
days of receipt of such invoice. If the District objects to only a portion of the Work claimed to
have been completed, the District shall pay the amount not in dispute. In the event the District
objects to payment of all or any portion of an invoice submitted by Consultant, the District shall
reasonably describe the deficiency of the subject Work, and Consultant shall use its best efforts to
make any changes or take any action necessary to correct any such deficiencies. In the event that
material deficiencies are not corrected, the District shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement
and shall be released from any further obligations to provide any additional compensation to be
paid to Consultant in accordance herewith.
In addition, when so directed by the District Representative in writing, the Consultant may
perform additional Work and be compensated on a time and materials basis at the applicable rates
set forth in the Exhibits or as otherwise agreed upon in writing by the Parties. Upon completion of
any such additional Work, Consultant shall include the additional Work in its monthly invoices or
submit an invoice to the District detailing the additional Work completed, as appropriate.
Additional work performed without prior written authorization of the District Representative will
not be compensated.
6.
COORDINATION WITH DISTRICT. The District hereby identifies Anna Jones,
the District Manager, or his or her designee, as the District’s representative for the purposes of
this Agreement (the “District Representative”) and authorizes the District Representative to act on
behalf of the District in directing, supervising, modifying as necessary, and accepting the services
to be performed by Consultant hereunder. The District Representative shall have the authority to
make service- or Agreement-related decisions which do not require approval from the Board of
Directors of the District.
7.
LIABILITY; INSURANCE. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant
shall indemnify District, its officers, directors, partners, employees, and representatives, from and
against losses, damages, and judgments arising from claims by third parties, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses recoverable under applicable law, but only to the extent they are
found to be caused by a negligent act, error, or omission of Consultant or Consultant’s officers,
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, or sub consultants in the performance of services

Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
Agreement for Services
Page 2 of 9
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under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the above, in no case shall the total liability of any kind
to the Consultant exceed the insurance coverage limitations set forth herein.
Consultant shall at all times during the term of this Agreement carry and maintain in full
force at Consultant ’s expense insurance that meets or exceeds the insurance coverages shown
below:
A.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by State of Colorado law.

B.

Comprehensive Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum coverage
limits of liability of $1,000,000 general aggregate and $1,000,000 each occurrence

C.

Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance as required by State of Colorado law.

The Consultant’s policy shall be primary to any other insurance policies held by the District
or any other additional insured, and no other insurance of the District will be called on to contribute
to a loss. Any subcontractor providing services to Consultant related to this Agreement shall at all
times during the term of this Agreement carry and maintain in full force at such subcontractor’s
expense insurance that meets or exceeds the insurance coverages shown above. Any Consultantsubcontractor agreement related to this Agreement shall contain a provision indemnifying the
District in substantially similar form as this Agreement’s indemnification provisions If requested
by the District, Consultant shall, prior to commencement of Work, provide the District with
certificates of insurance evidencing the policies listed above, which certificates shall contain a
statement that the policies certified shall not be cancelled nor materially modified without 10 days’
prior written notice to the District.
8.
STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE. Consultant shall perform the Work in a good
and workmanlike manner, consistent with or in excess of industry standards and in full compliance
with all applicable laws and/or regulations, whether federal, state or local. Consultant shall not
perform any Work hereunder unless all applicable regulations are met.
9.
GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING. Without limiting any rights or obligations
as specifically set forth herein, the Parties agree to act in good faith and deal fairly with one another
pursuant to this Agreement.
10.
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Consultant, for all purposes arising out of this
Agreement, is an independent contractor and shall not be deemed an employee of District.
11.
TERMINATION. Either Party may, upon seven (7) days’ notice, terminate this
Agreement for convenience. If such termination occurs, Consultant shall be entitled to be
compensated for all Work performed to the date of termination.
District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in the event of any default by
Consultant, provided District shall provide Consultant written notice of such default and afford
Consultant a period of 10 days to cure such default. If the default is not or cannot be cured after
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
Agreement for Services
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such 10 day period, the District may, in the District’s discretion, thereupon terminate this
Agreement. It shall be considered a default by Consultant whenever Consultant shall:
a.
disregard or violate important provisions of the Agreement or instructions
of the District Representative, or fail to prosecute the Work according to the agreed-upon
schedule of completion, including extensions thereof, if any; and/or
b.
fail to provide a qualified representative, or subconsultants, or proper
materials for the Work as applicable to its services hereunder, or fail to make prompt
payment therefore.
12.
NOTICE. All notices, statements, demands, requirements, approvals or other
communications and documents (“Communications”) required or permitted to be given, served,
or delivered by or to any Party or any intended recipient under this Agreement shall be in writing
and shall be given to the applicable address set forth below (“Notice Address”). Communications
to a Party shall be deemed to have been duly given (i) on the date and at the time of delivery if
delivered personally to the Party to whom notice is given at such Party’s Notice Address; or (ii)
on the date and at the time of delivery or refusal of acceptance of delivery if delivered or attempted
to be delivered by an overnight courier service to the Party to whom notice is given at such Party’s
Notice Address; or (iii) on the date of delivery or attempted delivery shown on the return receipt
if mailed to the Party to whom notice is to be given by first-class mail, sent by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and properly addressed to such Party at such Party’s
Notice Address; or (iv) on the date and at the time shown on the facsimile or electronic mail
message if telecopied or sent electronically to the number or address designated in such Party’s
Notice Address and receipt of such telecopy or electronic mail message is electronically
confirmed. The Notice Addresses for each Party are as follows:
Consultant:

Michael Baker International
165 S. Union Boulevard, Suite 1000
Lakewood, CO 80228

District:

Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
c/o CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Attn: Anna Jones
8390 E. Crescent Parkway, Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Phone: (303) 779-5710
Email: anna.jones@claconnect.com

With a copy to the District’s Legal Counsel:
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
c/o Spencer Fane LLP
Attn: Tom George
1700 Lincoln Street, Suite 2000
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
Agreement for Services
Page 4 of 9
DN 6796785.1

DocuSign Envelope ID: FB86D7CD-DD43-4DD1-8237-15EA6030DE32
35

Email: tgeorge@spencerfane.com
Phone: (303) 839-3800
The foregoing Notice Addresses may be changed at any time by a Party by submitting notice of
such change to the other Party consistent with this section.
13.
DEFAULT/REMEDIES. In the event of a breach or default of this Agreement by
either Party, the non-defaulting Party shall be entitled to exercise all remedies available at law or
in equity, provided the Parties waive any claims against each other for consequential damages
arising out of or relating to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, special, incidental,
consequential, liquidated, or punitive damages of any kind arising out of or related to the
performance or non-performance of the Agreement, and regardless of whether such losses,
damages or liability arises from breach of contract or warranty, tort (including negligence), strict
liability or otherwise.
14.
WAIVER. The waiver of any breach, or alleged breach, of this Agreement by either
Party hereto shall not constitute a continuing waiver of any subsequent breach by said Party of the
same or any other provision of this Agreement.
15.
WORKERS WITHOUT AUTHORIZATION. The Consultant shall comply with
any and all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations regarding the hiring of employees
and retention of subcontractors, including without limitation Section 8-17.5-101, et seq., C.R.S.
The Consultant shall not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to
perform work under this Agreement or contract with a sub-contractor who (a) knowingly employs
or contracts with a worker without authorization to perform work under this Agreement, or (b)
fails to certify to the Consultant that the subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract with
a worker without authorization to perform work under this Agreement.
The Consultant hereby certifies that it does not knowingly employ or contract with a
worker without authorization. The Consultant shall participate in either the E-Verify Employment
Verification Program administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security (“EVerify Program”) or the State’s Department Program established pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5102(5)(c) to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for
employment to perform work under the Agreement. The Consultant shall not utilize the E-Verify
Program or the Department Program procedures to independently undertake pre-employment
screening of job applicants.
The Consultant shall require each subcontractor to certify that subcontractor will not
knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under the
Agreement. If Consultant obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under
the Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with a worker without authorization, Consultant
shall be required to: (a) notify the subcontractor and the District within three (3) days that
Consultant has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker
without authorization; and (b) terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three (3)
days of receiving notice from Consultant the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
Agreement for Services
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with the worker without authorization; except that Consultant shall not terminate the contract with
the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish
that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with a worker without
authorization. Consultant shall comply with any reasonable request by the Colorado Department
of Labor and Employment (“Department”) made in the course of an investigation by the
Department pursuant to Section 8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S.
In addition to any other legal or equitable remedy the District may be entitled to for a
breach of this Agreement, if the District terminates this Agreement, in whole or in part, due to the
Consultant’s breach of any of this Section, the Consultant shall be liable for actual and
consequential damages of the District resulting from such termination, and the District shall report
such violation by the Consultant to the Colorado Secretary of State as required by law.
16.
COLORADO OPEN RECORDS ACT. Consultant expressly recognizes that the
District is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado and is subject to the provisions of the
Colorado Open Records Act, Section 24-72-201, et seq., C.R.S. The District agrees to protect
confidential, proprietary, trademark, copyrighted and otherwise protected materials of the
Consultant, as applicable, but only to the extent such protection does not conflict with the Colorado
Open Records Act and District’s obligations thereunder.
17.
DISCLOSURE: During the performance of the Work and for all time subsequent
to completion of the Work, the Consultant agrees to treat as confidential and not to use or disclose
to anyone, except as required in the performance of this Agreement or by law, or as otherwise
authorized in writing by the District, any and all information given to the Consultant by the District,
or by the Consultant to the District, or which is developed by the Consultant as a result of the
performance of this Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of the Agreement.
18.
FORCE MAJEURE. Neither Party shall be liable to the other for, or be considered
to be in breach of or default under this Agreement because of, any delay or failure in performance
by such Party under this Agreement to the extent such delay or failure is due to any cause or
condition beyond such Party’s reasonable control. Each Party shall exercise reasonable diligence
to overcome the cause of such delay; provided, however, that to the extent the cause of such delay
arises from any breach of, or failure by the other Party to perform any of its obligations under this
Agreement, the costs and expenses incurred by the Party that has delayed or failed in its
performance under this Agreement to overcome the cause of such delay shall be for the account of
such other Party.
19.
ASSIGNMENTS. Consultant agrees that it shall not assign this Agreement, or any
of the amounts due it, or to become due hereunder, nor subcontract any portion of the Work without
first obtaining written consent of the District. Any such assignment or subcontract without the
District’s consent shall be void ab initio.
20.
APPROPRIATION/NO LIENS. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that District
is a political subdivision of the State of Colorado and, as such, (1) any and all financial obligations
of District under and pursuant to this Agreement are subject to prior appropriations of monies
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
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expressly made by the District’s Board of Directors for the purposes of the Agreement, and (2)
neither the Consultant nor any of the Consultant’s subconsultants shall have lien rights against the
District or against any property of the District in the event of nonpayment of any amount due under
this Agreement or for any other reason. Provided, however, the District hereby affirms that it has
appropriated sufficient funds to meet is financial obligations as set forth in this Agreement.
21.
CONSULTANT’S OBLIGATIONS. Consultant shall pay, at no expense to the
District, all contributions, taxes or premiums which may be payable under Federal or State
Unemployment Insurance Law or the Federal Social Security Act. The District is exempt from
sales and use taxes. It is Consultant’s responsibility to obtain and use the sales tax exemption
number of District to the extent appropriate and applicable. District shall not reimburse Consultant
for sales or use taxes erroneously paid.
22.
SAFETY. Consultant shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and
regulations and orders of any public body having jurisdiction for the safety or persons or property
or to protect them from damage, injury or loss, and shall erect and maintain all necessary
safeguards for such safety and protection. The Consultant shall not be responsible for the
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and
programs in connection with the Work, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of any
other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.
23.
COVID-19 SAFETY. In addition to its other responsibilities as set forth in the
Agreement, Consultant shall be responsible for Consultant’s and any subconsultant’s compliance
in performing the services set forth in this Agreement with any and all applicable local, state and
federal laws, rules, regulations, orders, ordinances, guidelines, recommendations and/or other
directives related to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19), as any of the same may be
amended or updated from time to time.
24.
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. No term or condition of this Agreement shall
be construed or interpreted as a waiver by the District, express or implied, of any of the notice
requirements, immunities, limitations to liability, rights, benefits, protections, or other provisions
under the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., or under any other
law.
25.
NO PERSONAL LIABILITY. No elected official, director, officer, agent or
employee of either Party shall be charged personally or held contractually liable by or under any
term or provision of this Agreement or because of any breach thereof or because of its or their
execution, approval or attempted execution of this Agreement.
26.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT, AMENDMENT AND BINDING EFFECT. This
Agreement contains the entire agreement between the Parties regarding the Work, and supersedes
and replaces any and all prior and contemporaneous written and oral agreements, promises,
representations, or conditions with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be altered, changed
or amended, except by instrument in writing signed by both Parties hereto. The terms and
conditions contained in this Agreement shall apply to, inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
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the Parties hereto, and upon their respective successors in interest and permitted assigns, except as
otherwise herein expressly provided.
27.
ATTORNEY FEES. If any Party breaches this Agreement, the breaching Party
shall pay all of the non-breaching Party’s reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in enforcing this
Agreement whether or not legal proceedings are instituted, to the extent caused by the negligent
acts, errors, or omissions of breaching Party.
28.
GOVERNING LAW. The Parties agree that Colorado law shall apply to this
agreement and that any dispute shall be tried and heard in the District Court in and for Arapahoe
County, Colorado.
29.
COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute
one and the same instrument. The signature pages from one or more counterparts may be removed
from such counterparts and such signature pages all attached to a single instrument so that the
signatures of all Parties may be physically attached to a single document. This Agreement may be
executed and delivered electronically in portable document format (.pdf) or similar means and
delivery of the signature page by such method will be deemed to have the same effect as if the
original signature had been delivered to the other.
30.
THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Nothing expressed or implied in this
Agreement is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or to give to any person or entity other
than the District and the Consultant any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this
Agreement or any covenants, terms, conditions, or provisions hereof, and all the covenants, terms,
conditions, and provisions in this Agreement by and on behalf of the District and the Consultant
shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the District or the Consultant. It is the express
intention of the Parties that any person other than the Parties shall be deemed to be an incidental
beneficiary only.
31.
HEADINGS. The headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes
only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.
[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the
date first set forth above.
CONSULTANT:
MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC.
Signature:
Name: Stephen
Title:

Pouliot

Vice President | Office Executive

DISTRICT:
FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
Signature:
Name:
Title:

Brittanny Harvard

Director of Marketing and Public Relations
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SCOPE OF SERVICES
Fitzsimons Village Colfax Pedestrian Bridge Emergency Response
For
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
c/o CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Attn: Anna Jones
8390 E. Crescent Parkway, Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Dated: May 6, 2022
Project Description:
Michael Baker International (MBI) was notified of a vehicle collision (a 23-ton crane) on the Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District’s (FVMD/CLA) Colfax Pedestrian Bridge in the morning of April 25, 2022, with a request to
provide immediate structural inspection of the damage to determine the integrity of the structure. MBI was
notified that Colfax Avenue was closed to all vehicular traffic under the bridge, and pedestrian access to use
the bridge was also closed.
MBI engineers Stephen (Steve)Pouliot and Tom Ritz mobilized immediately in response to this request in
contacting CDOT Region 1 Bridge Lead Tristan Siegel and CDOT Statewide Bridge & Tunnel Inspection Engineer
Lynn Croswell. MBI requested assistance from CDOT Region 1 maintenance crews to provide a bucket truck to
support access to the bridge. CDOT was cooperative and notified Tom that MBI was recognized as the Engineer
in Charge and would make all decisions regarding structural integrity, level of damage, recommendations
if/when to reopen Colfax Avenue or pedestrian use of the bridge. Concurrently, and over the next several
days, Steve established contacts with the City of Aurora Public Works and the Aurora Police Department,
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District / CLA, Children’s Hospital Colorado, Engle Martin (Insurance Adjuster),
the Hyatt Regency and Corporex Colorado to ensure full and open communication going forward.
Team Responsibilities and Authority:
The roles of responsibility as they unfolded on the 25th and now supplemented through ongoing coordination
are as listed below. Primary roles include FVMD who shall direct and administer the contract, including review
and comment of the work prepared by the MBI team. MBI will serve as the Engineer in Charge (regarding all
field inspection and evaluation activities) and Engineer of Record (regarding engineering assessments,
calculations, repair details and related activities) as authorized and directed by FVMD/CLA. More specifical
roles include:
Project Coordination
FVMD/CLA:
Anna Jones
Michael Baker International
Stephen Pouliot, PE
Tom Ritz, PE

Project Contact/District Management
MBI Project Manager
MBI Lead Structural Engineer
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Insurance Coordination
Sedgewick
Nella Rosales

Insurance Adjuster

Engle Martin
Wesley Ellis

Insurance Adjuster

Golden Forensics
Drew Houser

Forensic Engineer

Scope of Work - Overview
MBI will provide bridge inspection services, non-destructive material testing, analytical structural assessment
of the bridge, structural repair details, agency coordination (City of Aurora Public Works, Aurora Police
Department and CDOT), and subconsultant coordination to confirm and/or restore the load-carrying capacity
of the bridge as necessary to reopen the structure.
Guidelines and References (Current Version Unless Noted Otherwise):
The standards, reports, and manuals we will use to complete the work may include:
• National Bridge Inspection Standards, 23 CFR Part 650
• FHWA Bridge Inspector’s Reference Manual
• AASHTO Manual for Bridge Element Inspection
• AASHTO Manual for Bridge Evaluation (MBE), 3rd Ed.
• CDOT Bridge Inspection Coding Guide and NBI Coding Guide
• FHWA Fracture Critical Inspection Techniques for Steel
• AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specification, 9th Edition
• AASHTO Standard Specifications for Highway Bridges 17th Edition (2002)
Note:

FHWA = Federal Highway Administration
AASHTO = American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials

Scope of Work – Detail
1.0 Project Administration
MBI will perform on-going project administration duties throughout the length of the contract as follows:
•

Develop project scope, fee estimate and schedule. Provide on-going project management of the MBI
team to coordinate work tasks, schedules, and scope of work responsibilities, file sharing management,
and quality assurance reviews. Management practices will follow the published “Michael Baker Way”
management principles.

•

Conduct weekly update/progress calls weekly (via Teams) to FVMD/CLA and other interested
stakeholders during the first month of activity. This task assumes a total of four (4) meetings at 30
minutes each. This scope item will be reassessed after the fourth meeting.

•

Conduct six (6) monthly project progress meetings with FVMD/CLA to maintain communications. It is
assumed that the scope of work as described will be completed in October 2022.

•

Maintain other email / telephone client communications as necessary.

•

Prepare and submit invoices and progress reports. Invoice format will be in accordance with current MBI
practices and will include timecard and direct cost information as requested.
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•

Provide coordination and management of the field inspection and testing teams including oversight of
trip logistical arrangements with traffic control vendors, City of Aurora and CDOT. Manage vendor
payments and any terms and conditions as required.

•

Gather information for design drawings, design calculations, inspection reports, maintenance records
and CDOT records on the bridge. Maintain technical coordination with CDOT Staff Bridge engineers.

2.0 In-Depth, Hands-On Emergency Inspection and Testing
Background Information. The bridge was inspected using hands-on inspection of fracture critical members
throughout the day by a NBIS-certified Senior Bridge Inspector (Tom Ritz) the day on April 25, 2022. Field
inspection activities were tailored to the emergency, public safety, and maintenance of traffic conditions
present that day. Inspection that day also included:
•
•
•

Limited demolition to gain visual and hands-on access to critical structural members as needed to
determine the extent of damage.
Removal of paint and grinding small areas to facilitate magnetic particle testing for cracks or fractures
in the structure’s bottom chord member.
Coordination activates with the FVMD/CLA, CDOT, City of Aurora and others by Senior Project
Manager Steve Pouliot.

The Emergency Inspection was conducted to determine the structural integrity of the bridge as expediently as
possible. This inspection concluded same day with enough evidence to open Colfax Avenue traffic operations
under the bridge, but MBI recommended the bridge remain closed to pedestrian traffic since the engineer was
unable to be 100% conclusive of the extent and consequences of damage. The inability to be 100% certain was
based on very limited/blocked access to supplemental structural elements (bolted or welded connections,
bearings at each end of bridge, and adjacent member conditions).
For this reason, two additional inspection events are planned as follows:
1. Follow Up Inspection #1 – As informed by a structural modeling assessment (see Task 4.0 below for
more information) in the office to analyze the full impact loading on the bridge, this evaluation will
identify bridge elements for targeted follow-up inspection. This scope of work assumes more
demolition at bridge bearings and within the span will be necessary. Accordingly, the inspection will
involve three (3) bridge inspectors, one (1) material tester, two (2) construction laborers (to support
demolition activities) a traffic control vendor, two (2) rented bucket trucks to conduct the work.
a. At this time, we anticipate that supplemental demolition will be necessary to inspect bridge
bearings and welded connections in truss members in the panel points on each side of the
impact zone, including the spliced members at the west panel point 5.
2. Follow Up Inspection #2 – A final inspection to be conducted six (6) months after the incident, and
prior to architectural repairs (which would hide any/all exposed bridge elements from further visual
inspection). This final inspection will require two (2) bridge inspectors, traffic control and a rented
bucket truck to complete the work.
3. Inspection Access Coordination:
a. Prior to commencing any field inspection activity, MBI will coordinate with a traffic control
vendor to prepare traffic control plans, submit plans to the City of Aurora for approval, and
assemble all equipment necessary for the work.
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b. Inspections include the preparation of Project Safety Plan prior to beginning any field work
that will detail the procedures and standards to be followed to ensure safety of the inspectors
and the public.
c. Site inspections are assumed to be completed in the evening hours to minimize disruptions of
traffic. Follow Up Inspection #1 is anticipated to take 8 hours at the site plus 2 hours
mobilization; while Follow Up Inspection #2 is anticipated to take 2 hours at the site plus 2
hours mobilization.
3.0 Inspection Data and Reporting
The Emergency Inspection data findings and presentation of defects will follow NBIS procedures for concrete
and fracture critical steel members in addition to CDOT inspection criteria as applicable. Observations will be
recorded in the form of descriptions, photographs, notes, and sketches for the primary purpose of supporting
the design team efforts in assessment of the bridge’s structural integrity as a result of the impact .
Reporting for Follow up Inspection #1 and #2 will append the emergency inspection report that, again, will
include descriptions, photographs, notes, and sketches as necessary to fully document findings.
Deliverables:

Emergency Inspection Report
Follow Up #1 Inspection Report as Appendix A
Follow Up #2 Inspection Report as Appendix B

4.0 Detailed Structural Assessment
To provide the MBI team with a deeper understanding of the damage caused by the crane truck impact on the
bridge, MBI has initiated structural modeling and calculations in our office using registered professional
engineers licensed in Colorado. This assessment is important since it will provide calculated insight regarding
the extent, severity, and potentially hidden consequential structural defects. This evaluation will inform the
locations of interest to guide Follow Up Inspection #1 activities.
MBI is using a widely accepted practice by creating a 3D model of the primary steel truss members to evaluate
the deflection response and stress levels in the truss members and connections. The model software platform
is Midas Civil v1.2 which provides for rapid model development and evaluation of a range of loading and
behavioral characteristics. The goals of the structural modeling task include:
•

Calculate the lower and upper boundaries of impact load on the low chord at the point of impact.

•

Assess the total deflected shape of the bridge induced from the collision to understand the stress
levels witnessed by the bridge bearings. Damage of anchor bolts may have occurred.

•

Determine the total shear and axial forces in the structural members in the vicinity of the impact to
include a focus on panel point members each side of the impact zone.

•

Review the welded and bolted connections of the truss in the same vicinity as described above.

•

Prepare a summary of the model and calculations for review by the owner and/or their designated
representative.
Deliverables:

Structural Assessment Summary of Findings and Recommendations
Structural Assessment Calculations
Midas Civil Model Input File Emergency Inspection Report
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5.0 Prepare Bridge Repair Plans550, 935
MBI expects that the structural assessment paired with Follow Up Inspection #1 will result in one of two
alternative bridge repair scenarios as described below. In either scenario, MBI will provide signed and sealed
drawings by a registered engineer in the State of Colorado and will coordinate plan reviews with Aurora Public
Works department.
A.
Structural Repairs are Not Required – in this scenario, the assessment and follow up inspection
determine that no repairs are warranted other than to prepare details necessary to replace
architectural panels at the point of impact and any other areas where additional demolition is
necessary to uncover truss members and connections.
B.

Structural Repairs are Required – in this scenario, the assessment and follow up inspection determine
that repairs are necessary to restore the load carrying capacity for the bridge to reopen. Repairs may
be necessary at welded connections, bridge bearings, and/or bolted splice connections. Currently, the
range of repair detailing is too broad and too indeterminate to reasonably estimate the level of
effort at this point in time. No estimate of cost is included.

Therefore, since the scope of work under this task is indeterminate at this time, MBI has assumed the
deliverable below and level of effort in the attached fee estimate associated with Scenario A - Structural
Repairs are Not Required.
Deliverables:

Construction Drawings to Replace Architectural Panels

6.0 Quality Control of Engineering Tasks and Deliverables35
MBI will provide quality control reviews for all calculations and deliverables in accordance with Michael Baker
International Denver Office Quality Control Procedures. These procedures include steps required to ensure all
engineering activities are reviewed by engineers of equal or senior experience to the engineer who prepared
the original documents. All reviews and certifications of quality are document and can be included with our
deliverables upon request. The intent is to achieve the highest quality possible (per Michael Baker policy and
AASHTO, FHWA, and CDOT requirements). We employ discipline checklists, verification forms, independent
design checks, constructability reviews, and client comment resolution forms as required for the given
deliverable prepared for submittal.
7.0 Information to be Provided by Fitzsimons Village Metro District, 935
The District will provide the following items for this assignment:
•

As-built drawings for the bridge

•

Most recent bridge inspection reports if available

•

Original design calculations and load rating calculations

•

Coordination with stakeholders that could include Children’s Hospital, Retail Stores in the area, City of
Aurora, and others as necessary to inform stakeholders of ongoing engineering activities

Fee Estimate Basis:
The fee estimate attached is based on direct and indirect rates in accordance with the audited indirect cost
rate information as certified by an independent accounting firm. MBI consulting services performance period
is expected to span through the end of October 2022. Direct expenses for milage, equipment rental, traffic
control vendor, construction personnel, and consumable supplies (material testing, tool blades, etc.) have
been estimated without markup in the estimate in accordance with planned site activities.
END OF SCOPE OF WORK
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May 6, 2022
Michael Baker International Fee Estimate
for Fitzsimons Village Colfax Pedestrian Bridge
Emergency Response
Billable Rate:
1.0 Project Management
Manage Project Team, Scope, Schedule, and Budget
Weekly Update Communications
Monthly Progress Meetings & Communications
Monthly Invoices with Progress Reports
Coordinate Field Inspection Team Logistics & Suppliers
Gather Information & Maintain Coordinated Activities
Total Hours
2.0 In-Depth, Hands-On Emergency Inspection and Testing
April 25, 2022 Emergency Inspection
Follow Up Inspection #1
Follow Up Inspection #2
Inspection Access Coordination

Principal

Sr. Inspector /
Design Engineer

QC Engineer II

Engineer II

Engineer I

Designer II

Administrative
Assistant

$248

$248

$155

$144

$129

$95

$79

8
6
8
4

3
3
6

6
2

Total Hours
3.0 Inspection Data and Reporting
Emergency Inspection Report
Follow Up Inspection #1 Reporting
Follow Up Inspection #2 Reporting

1
9
$2236

4.0 Detailed Structural Assessment
Engineering & Modeling
Prepare Deliverables (Findings & Recommendations)
Total Hours
5.0 Prepare Bridge Repair Plans
Construction Drawings to Replace Architectural Panels
Construction Drawings for Repairs to Steel Truss

6
0
$0

0
$0

6.0 Quality Control of Engineering Tasks & Deliverables
QA/QC Engineering & Modeling
QA/QC Final Deliverables
Total Hours

Combined Total Hours (Task 1 Thru 6)
Total Labor Cost $

2
$289

6
$772

0
$0

9
$708

10
4

8
8
$1155

10
4
5
19
$2444

14
$1333

4
4
2
10
$1286

10
4
2
16
$1523

1
$79

2
1

1
$248

0
$0

0
$0

2
2
$497

6
2
8
$1987

4
4
$619

78
14
92
$13288

0
$0

0
$0

2
2
$157

6

22

14

20

2

14
$1801

20
$1904

2
$157

1
$248

0
$0

6
$929

22
$3177

3
3
$745

2
2
$497

9
3
12
$1857

2
2
4
$578

44
10,929.60

11
10
21

0
$0

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS:

$

4,243.00

TOTAL PRIME:
DIRECT COSTS:
SUBCONSULTANT / CONTRACTOR (demo support - 2 men and tools):

$
$
$

59,290.02
4,243.00
2,400.00

CONTRACT:

$

65,933.02

$

50
4,759.62

65
0
65

3,000.00
1,243.00

$

49
6,303.54

84
24
108

$
$

7 Direct Costs
Traffic Control Vendor (as per GDT Traffic Control quotes: $1450.00 + $640.00 = $2,090.00)
Boom Lift Equipment Rental

$

128
18,487.14

0
$0

20
10
6
36

368
59,290.02

$

22
3,405.18

1

$

$

56
13,910.40

0
$0

15
31
12
18
76

2
5
$393

4
2
2
8
$1987

1
Total Hours

16
11
16
6
9
4
62

2
2

7
8
4
2
21
$5216

1

Total Hours

5
2

3
2
17
$4223

2
28
$6955

PRIME
CONSULTANT

$

19
1,494.54
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SCOPE OF SERVICES
Fitzsimons Village Colfax Pedestrian Bridge Emergency Response
For
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
c/o CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Attn: Anna Jones
8390 E. Crescent Parkway, Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Dated: May 6, 2022
UPDATED July 1, 2022
Project Description (Unchanged):
Michael Baker International (MBI) was notified of a vehicle collision (a 23-ton crane) on the Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District’s (FVMD/CLA) Colfax Pedestrian Bridge in the morning of April 25, 2022, with a request to
provide immediate structural inspection of the damage to determine the integrity of the structure. MBI was
notified that Colfax Avenue was closed to all vehicular traffic under the bridge, and pedestrian access to use
the bridge was also closed.
MBI engineers Stephen (Steve)Pouliot and Tom Ritz mobilized immediately in response to this request in
contacting CDOT Region 1 Bridge Lead Tristan Siegel and CDOT Statewide Bridge & Tunnel Inspection Engineer
Lynn Croswell. MBI requested assistance from CDOT Region 1 maintenance crews to provide a bucket truck to
support access to the bridge. CDOT was cooperative and notified Tom that MBI was recognized as the Engineer
in Charge and would make all decisions regarding structural integrity, level of damage, recommendations
if/when to reopen Colfax Avenue or pedestrian use of the bridge. Concurrently, and over the next several
days, Steve established contacts with the City of Aurora Public Works and the Aurora Police Department,
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District / CLA, Children’s Hospital Colorado, Engle Martin (Insurance Adjuster),
the Hyatt Regency and Corporex Colorado to ensure full and open communication going forward.
Team Responsibilities and Authority (Unchanged):
The roles of responsibility as they unfolded on the 25th and now supplemented through ongoing coordination
are as listed below. Primary roles include FVMD who shall direct and administer the contract, including review
and comment of the work prepared by the MBI team. MBI will serve as the Engineer in Charge (regarding all
field inspection and evaluation activities) and Engineer of Record (regarding engineering assessments,
calculations, repair details and related activities) as authorized and directed by FVMD/CLA. More specifical
roles include:
Project Coordination
FVMD/CLA:
Anna Jones
Michael Baker International
Stephen Pouliot, PE
Tom Ritz, PE
Keely Matson, PE

Project Contact/District Management
MBI Project Manager
MBI Lead Structural Engineer
MBI Design Lead
Page | 1

48

Luke Potthast

MBI Design Engineer

Insurance Coordination
Sedgewick
Nella Rosales

Insurance Adjuster

Engle Martin
Wesley Ellis

Insurance Adjuster

Golden Forensics
Drew Houser

Forensic Engineer

Scope of Work – Overview (Unchanged)
MBI will provide bridge inspection services, non-destructive material testing, analytical structural assessment
of the bridge, structural repair details, agency coordination (City of Aurora Public Works, Aurora Police
Department and CDOT), and subconsultant coordination to confirm and/or restore the load-carrying capacity
of the bridge as necessary to reopen the structure.
Guidelines and References (Current Version Unless Noted Otherwise) (Unchanged):
The standards, reports, and manuals we will use to complete the work may include:
• National Bridge Inspection Standards, 23 CFR Part 650
• FHWA Bridge Inspector’s Reference Manual
• AASHTO Manual for Bridge Element Inspection
• AASHTO Manual for Bridge Evaluation (MBE), 3rd Ed.
• CDOT Bridge Inspection Coding Guide and NBI Coding Guide
• FHWA Fracture Critical Inspection Techniques for Steel
• AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specification, 9th Edition
• AASHTO Standard Specifications for Highway Bridges 17th Edition (2002)
Note:

FHWA = Federal Highway Administration
AASHTO = American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials

Scope of Work – Detail
1.0 Project Administration (Updated)
MBI will perform on-going project administration duties throughout the length of the contract as follows:
•

Develop project scope, fee estimate and schedule. Provide on-going project management of the MBI
team to coordinate work tasks, schedules, and scope of work responsibilities, file sharing management,
and quality assurance reviews. Management practices will follow the published “Michael Baker Way”
management principles.

•

Conduct monthly (beginning in late July) update/progress calls weekly (via Teams) to FVMD/CLA and
other interested stakeholders during the first month of activity. This task assumes a total of four plus
three additional (4 + 3 = 7) meetings at 30 minutes each. This scope item will be reassessed after the
fourth meeting.

•

Conduct six (6) monthly project progress meetings with FVMD/CLA to maintain communications. It is
assumed that the scope of work as described will be completed in October 2022.

•

Maintain other email / telephone client communications as necessary.
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•

Prepare and submit invoices and progress reports. Invoice format will be in accordance with current MBI
practices and will include timecard and direct cost information as requested.

•

Provide coordination and management of the field inspection and testing teams including oversight of
trip logistical arrangements with traffic control vendors, City of Aurora and CDOT. Manage vendor
payments and any terms and conditions as required.

•

Gather information for design drawings, design calculations, inspection reports, maintenance records
and CDOT records on the bridge. Maintain technical coordination with CDOT Staff Bridge engineers.

2.0 In-Depth, Hands-On Emergency Inspection and Testing (Updated)
Background Information. The bridge was inspected using hands-on inspection of fracture critical members
throughout the day by a NBIS-certified Senior Bridge Inspector (Tom Ritz) the day on April 25, 2022. Field
inspection activities were tailored to the emergency, public safety, and maintenance of traffic conditions
present that day. Inspection that day also included:
•
•
•

Limited demolition to gain visual and hands-on access to critical structural members as needed to
determine the extent of damage.
Removal of paint and grinding small areas to facilitate magnetic particle testing for cracks or fractures
in the structure’s bottom chord member.
Coordination activates with the FVMD/CLA, CDOT, City of Aurora and others by Senior Project
Manager Steve Pouliot.

The Emergency Inspection was conducted to determine the structural integrity of the bridge as expediently as
possible. This inspection concluded same day with enough evidence to open Colfax Avenue traffic operations
under the bridge, but MBI recommended the bridge remain closed to pedestrian traffic since the engineer was
unable to be 100% conclusive of the extent and consequences of damage. The inability to be 100% certain was
based on very limited/blocked access to supplemental structural elements (bolted or welded connections,
bearings at each end of bridge, and adjacent member conditions).
For this reason, two additional inspection events are planned as follows:
1. Follow Up Inspection #1 – As informed by a structural modeling assessment (see Task 4.0 below for
more information) in the office to analyze the full impact loading on the bridge, this evaluation will
identify bridge elements for targeted follow-up inspection. This scope of work assumes more
demolition at bridge bearings and within the span will be necessary. Accordingly, the inspection will
involve three (3) bridge inspectors, one (1) material tester, two (2) construction laborers (to support
demolition activities) a traffic control vendor, two (2) rented bucket trucks to conduct the work.
a. At this time, we anticipate that supplemental demolition will be necessary to inspect bridge
bearings and welded connections in truss members in the panel points on each side of the
impact zone, including the spliced members at the west panel point 5.
2. Follow Up Inspection #2 – A final inspection to be conducted six (6) months after the incident, and
prior to architectural repairs (which would hide any/all exposed bridge elements from further visual
inspection). This final inspection will require two (2) bridge inspectors, traffic control and a rented
bucket truck to complete the work. UPDATE: Three inspectors will be required in the field, as
budgeted in our previous fee estimate. This is a zero cost adjustment.
3. Inspection Access Coordination:
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a. Prior to commencing any field inspection activity, MBI will coordinate with a traffic control
vendor to prepare traffic control plans, submit plans to the City of Aurora for approval, and
assemble all equipment necessary for the work.
b. Inspections include the preparation of Project Safety Plan prior to beginning any field work
that will detail the procedures and standards to be followed to ensure safety of the inspectors
and the public.
c. Site inspections are assumed to be completed in the evening hours to minimize disruptions of
traffic. Follow Up Inspection #1 is anticipated to take 8 hours at the site plus 2 hours
mobilization; while Follow Up Inspection #2 is anticipated to take 2 hours at the site plus 2
hours mobilization.
3.0 Inspection Data and Reporting (Unchanged)
The Emergency Inspection data findings and presentation of defects will follow NBIS procedures for concrete
and fracture critical steel members in addition to CDOT inspection criteria as applicable. Observations will be
recorded in the form of descriptions, photographs, notes, and sketches for the primary purpose of supporting
the design team efforts in assessment of the bridge’s structural integrity as a result of the impact.
Reporting for Follow up Inspection #1 and #2 will append the emergency inspection report that, again, will
include descriptions, photographs, notes, and sketches as necessary to fully document findings.
Deliverables:

Emergency Inspection Report
Follow Up #1 Inspection Report as Appendix A
Follow Up #2 Inspection Report as Appendix B

4.0 Detailed Structural Assessment (Unchanged)
To provide the MBI team with a deeper understanding of the damage caused by the crane truck impact on the
bridge, MBI has initiated structural modeling and calculations in our office using registered professional
engineers licensed in Colorado. This assessment is important since it will provide calculated insight regarding
the extent, severity, and potentially hidden consequential structural defects. This evaluation will inform the
locations of interest to guide Follow Up Inspection #1 activities.
MBI is using a widely accepted practice by creating a 3D model of the primary steel truss members to evaluate
the deflection response and stress levels in the truss members and connections. The model software platform
is Midas Civil v1.2 which provides for rapid model development and evaluation of a range of loading and
behavioral characteristics. The goals of the structural modeling task include:
•

Calculate the lower and upper boundaries of impact load on the low chord at the point of impact.

•

Assess the total deflected shape of the bridge induced from the collision to understand the stress
levels witnessed by the bridge bearings. Damage of anchor bolts may have occurred.

•

Determine the total shear and axial forces in the structural members in the vicinity of the impact to
include a focus on panel point members each side of the impact zone.

•

Review the welded and bolted connections of the truss in the same vicinity as described above.

•

Prepare a summary of the model and calculations for review by the owner and/or their designated
representative.
Deliverables:

Structural Assessment Summary of Findings and Recommendations
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Structural Assessment Calculations
Midas Civil Model Input File Emergency Inspection Report
5.0 Prepare Bridge Repair Plans (Updated Entirely)
UPDATE: Michael Baker’s Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge over Colfax Avenue Inspection and Impact
Analysis report delivered on May 4, 2022, and our Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge over Colfax – Follow
Up Inspection report delivered on May 24, 2022, detail the structure response, damage and findings from the
inspections and analysis performed to-date. The damage found is as follows:
1. The incident did result in damage to the truss bridge at the low chord in the vicinity of the point of
impact. The damage has weakened the lateral capacity of the bridge in this localized area; however,
the damage is relatively minor to the tensile capacity of the member. Repairs to address the reduced
capacity in lateral strength (in transverse shear primarily) will be determined from both design
calculations and empirical repair research of similar repairs in the industry.
a. Our structural team will evaluate two (2) of the most feasible and effective (cost and structural
performance) options for the repair of the low chord. The options evaluated and final option
chosen will be documented in a brief memo for the District’s approval prior to finalizing
drawings and specifications.
b. Details and notes will not require more than two drawing sheets, plus special provisions as
necessary.
2. The architectural anodized aluminum panels have been damaged in two locations. These panels must
be replaced with new connection details that provide for a close match to the style and color of the
remaining anodized aluminum on the bridge.
a. These panels are normally sourced from a fabricator, but Michael Baker has already
determined this is not as straight forward as once estimated. Additional time and potentially
detailing replacement panels may be required.
b. Details are not expected to take more than two drawings sheets plus special provisions as
necessary.
3. Damage to the bearing concrete leveling pad was found during the follow up inspection, but this
damage was determined to precede the incident and more likely the result of poor craftmanship in the
original construction. This damage should be repaired but will be detailed in a separate scope of work
and not included in this scope or associated fee estimate.
Deliverables:

Construction drawings, special provisions and engineers estimate of probable cost.

6.0 Quality Control of Engineering Tasks and Deliverables (Unchanged)
MBI will provide quality control reviews for all calculations and deliverables in accordance with Michael Baker
International Denver Office Quality Control Procedures. These procedures include steps required to ensure all
engineering activities are reviewed by engineers of equal or senior experience to the engineer who prepared
the original documents. All reviews and certifications of quality are document and can be included with our
deliverables upon request. The intent is to achieve the highest quality possible (per Michael Baker policy and
AASHTO, FHWA, and CDOT requirements). We employ discipline checklists, verification forms, independent
design checks, constructability reviews, and client comment resolution forms as required for the given
deliverable prepared for submittal.
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7.0 Information to be Provided by Fitzsimons Village Metro District (Updated)
The District will provide the following items for this assignment:
•

As-built drawings for the bridge Update: and original construction specifications

•

Most recent bridge inspection reports if available

•

Original design calculations and load rating calculations

•

Coordination with stakeholders that could include Children’s Hospital, Retail Stores in the area, City of
Aurora, and others as necessary to inform stakeholders of ongoing engineering activities

Fee Estimate Basis (Updated):
The fee estimate attached is based on direct and indirect rates in accordance with the audited indirect cost
rate information as certified by an independent accounting firm. MBI consulting services performance period
is expected to span through the end of October 2022. Direct expenses for milage, equipment rental, traffic
control vendor, construction personnel, and consumable supplies (material testing, tool blades, etc.) have
been estimated without markup in the estimate in accordance with planned site activities.
Update: the fee estimate has been adjusted in parallel with the scope modifications above. Please see the
attached fee estimate for more details. In summary, the following hours and fees have been updated:
•
•
•

Overall effort has increased from 368 hours to 548 hours
Direct costs: Additional traffic control costs and lift equipment has now been added for Follow Up
Inspection #2 that was not previously included.
Total fee, not to exceed, is now $100,428.86.

END OF SCOPE OF WORK
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5/6/2022 (Updated 7/1/22)
Michael Baker International Fee Estimate
for Fitzsimons Village Colfax Pedestrian Bridge
Emergency Response
Billable Rate:
1.0 Project Management
Manage Project Team, Scope, Schedule, and Budget
Weekly Update Communications
Monthly Progress Meetings & Communications
Monthly Invoices with Progress Reports
Coordinate Field Inspection Team Logistics & Suppliers
Gather Information & Maintain Coordinated Activities
Total Hours
2.0 In-Depth, Hands-On Emergency Inspection and Testing
April 25, 2022 Emergency Inspection
Follow Up Inspection #1
Follow Up Inspection #2
Inspection Access Coordination
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Principal

Sr. Inspector /
Design Engineer

QC Engineer II

Engineer II

Engineer I

Designer II

Administrative
Assistant

$248

$248

$155

$144

$129

$95

$79

8
6
9
4

3
3
8

6
2

Total Hours
3.0 Inspection Data and Reporting
Emergency Inspection Report
Follow Up Inspection #1 Reporting
Follow Up Inspection #2 Reporting

1
9
$2236

4.0 Detailed Structural Assessment
Engineering & Modeling
Prepare Deliverables (Findings & Recommendations)
Total Hours
5.0 Prepare Bridge Repair Plans (Updated)
Construction Drawings to Replace Architectural Panels
Construction Drawings for Repairs to Steel Truss
Prepare Engineers Estimate of Probable Cost
Total Hours
6.0 Quality Control of Engineering Tasks & Deliverables (Updated)
QA/QC Engineering & Modeling
QA/QC Final Deliverables
Total Hours

Combined Total Hours (Task 1 Thru 6)
Total Labor Cost $

6
0
$0

0
$0

2
$289

6
$772

0
$0
10
4

8
8
$1155

10
4
5
19
$2444

14
$1333

4
4
2
10
$1286

10
4
2
16
$1523

1
$79

0
$0

2
2
$157

1
$248

4
2
2
8
$1987

0
$0

0
$0

2
2
$497

6
2
8
$1987

4
4
$619

78
14
92
$13288

0
$0

46
54
6
111
$16032

51
47
4
107
$13765

4
6
10
$1444

1

8
14

1
$248

22
$5465

6
5
2
13
$2012

1
1
$248

2
2
$497

8
9
17
$2631

43
10,681.20

1

0
$0

84
24
108

1

113
120

1
$79

233

12
18
30

0
$0

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS:

$

7,466.00

TOTAL PRIME:
DIRECT COSTS:
SUBCONSULTANT / SUPPLIER (Panel fabrication coordination to 3rd party supplier):

$
$
$

90,562.86
7,466.00
2,400.00

CONTRACT:

$ 100,428.86

$

30
2,855.77

20
10
6
36

4,980.00
2,486.00

$

142
18,267.39

2
5
$393

0
$0

0
$0

15
31
12
18
76

$
$

7 Direct Costs
Traffic Control Vendor (GDT Traffic Control) (Updated)
Boom Lift Equipment Rental (United Rental) (Updated)

$

223
32,208.07

2
1

548
90,562.86

$

34
5,262.55

9
$708

18
1,415.88 $

$

80
19,872.00

16
11
19
6
9
4
65

2
2

7
8
4
2
21
$5216

1

Total Hours

5
2

3
2
19
$4720

2
29
$7204

PRIME
CONSULTANT

$
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

Non-Insured Repairs to the Fitzsimons Village Colfax Pedestrian Bridge
For
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
c/o CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Attn: Anna Jones
8390 E. Crescent Parkway, Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Dated: July 1, 2022

Project Description
Michael Baker International (MBI) was notified of a vehicle collision (a 23-ton crane) on the Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District’s (FVMD/CLA) Colfax Pedestrian Bridge in the morning of April 25, 2022, with a request to
provide immediate structural inspection of the damage to determine the integrity of the structure. Michael
Baker’s work to-date has determined that repairs found during inspections revealed damage unrelated to the
incident, yet damage that should be repaired.
Team Responsibilities and Authority
The roles of responsibility as they unfolded on the 25th and now supplemented through ongoing coordination
are as listed below. Primary roles include FVMD who shall direct and administer the contract, including review
and comment of the work prepared by the MBI team. MBI will serve as the Engineer of Record (regarding
engineering assessments, calculations, repair details and related activities) as authorized and directed by
FVMD/CLA. More specifical roles include:
Project Coordination
FVMD/CLA:
Anna Jones

Project Contact/District Management

Michael Baker International
Stephen Pouliot, PE
Keely Matson, PE
Luke Potthast, PE

MBI Project Manager
MBI Lead Structural Engineer
MBI Design Engineer

Insurance Coordination
Sedgewick
Nella Rosales

Insurance Adjuster

Engle Martin
Wesley Ellis

Insurance Adjuster

Scope of Work – Overview
MBI will provide bridge repair details for the failing concrete leveling pad at the bridge’s southwest bearing.
This is a rather simple repair, but for a contractor to gain adequate space to work and lift the bridge in a stable
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manner requires more engineering assessment and creation of the operational parameters for the contractor
to adhere to. Michael Baker will continue with agency coordination (City of Aurora Public Works, Aurora Police
Department and CDOT), for plan reviews. No permits are anticipated at this time.
Guidelines and References (Current Version Unless Noted Otherwise)
The standards, reports, and manuals we will use to complete the work may include:
• AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specification, 9th Edition
• AASHTO Standard Specifications for Highway Bridges 17th Edition (2002)
• CDOT Standard Specifications for Bridge and Highway Construction
Note:

AASHTO = American Association of State Highway Transportation Officials

Scope of Work – Detail
1.0 Project Administration
MBI will perform on-going project administration duties throughout the short length of the contract as follows:
•

Develop project scope, fee estimate and schedule. Provide on-going project management of the MBI
team to coordinate work tasks, schedules, and scope of work responsibilities, file sharing management,
and quality assurance reviews. Management practices will follow the published “Michael Baker Way”
management principles.

•

Prepare and submit invoices and progress reports. Invoice format will be in accordance with current MBI
practices and will include timecard and direct cost information as requested.

•

Gather information for design drawings, design calculations, maintenance records and CDOT records on
the bridge.

2.0 Prepare Bridge Repair Plans
Michael Baker’s Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge over Colfax Avenue Inspection and Impact Analysis
report delivered on May 4, 2022, and our Fitzsimmons Village Pedestrian Bridge over Colfax – Follow Up
Inspection report delivered on May 24, 2022, detail the structure response, damage and findings from the
inspections and analysis performed to-date. The damage found is as follows:
1. The incident did result in damage to the truss bridge at the low chord in the vicinity of the point of
impact. The damage has weakened the lateral capacity of the bridge in this localized area and will be
repaired.
a. Note: The engineering drawings and specifications to repair and restore the lateral capacity (in
transvers shear primarily) will be provided under a separate contract.
2. The architectural anodized aluminum panels have been damaged in two locations. The engineering
drawings and specifications to replace these panels will be provided under a separate contract. It is
assumed that more panels will be removed as part of the proposed bridge repairs, therefore these
panels must be replaced with new connection details that provide for a close match to the style and
color of the remaining panels on the bridge. The engineering drawings and specifications prepared
under the separate contract will be referenced to complete this work and will not be duplicated.
3. Damage to the bearing concrete leveling pad at the southwest corner of the bridge was found during
the follow up inspection, but this damage was determined to precede the incident and more likely the
result of poor craftmanship in the original construction. This damage should be repaired to ensure
stable bearing over the long-term service life of the bridge. The repair detail is not complicated, but
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the contractor’s access and stability of the bridge to jack it vertically to make the repair is more
complicated. Michael Baker will include the following to complete the repair work:
a. Analyze the induced stresses into the bridge and allowable movement tolerances in the
architectural components from the temporary jacking of the south end of the bridge using the
model created during the inspection analytical phase. This will ensure the repair detail, notes
and specifications are clear in the parameters that must be satisfied under the contractor’s
chosen means and methods
b. Review the possible methods to increase the allowable expansion length at the south bridge
bearings. During the previous inspection it was noted that the bearing anchors were fully
engaged even though the temperature outside was far less than temperatures that could exist.
If repaired as-is there could be persistent issues with stress induced damage to the bridge and
the architectural components, so the proposed work will include minimizing those stresses.
c. One (1) field visit during construction to determine if the southwest bearing also requires
repair. It is assumed that the Contractor will provide access to the bearing.
Deliverables:

Construction drawings, special provisions and engineers estimate of probable cost.

3.0 Inspection Quality Control of Engineering Tasks and Deliverables
MBI will provide quality control reviews for all calculations and deliverables in accordance with Michael Baker
International Denver Office Quality Control Procedures. These procedures include steps required to ensure all
engineering activities are reviewed by engineers of equal or senior experience to the engineer who prepared
the original documents. All reviews and certifications of quality are document and can be included with our
deliverables upon request. The intent is to achieve the highest quality possible (per Michael Baker policy and
AASHTO, FHWA, and CDOT requirements). We employ discipline checklists, verification forms, independent
design checks, constructability reviews, and client comment resolution forms as required for the given
deliverable prepared for submittal.
Fee Estimate Basis:
The fee estimate attached is based on direct and indirect rates in accordance with the audited indirect cost
rate information as certified by an independent accounting firm. MBI consulting services performance period
is expected to span through the end of October 2022.

END OF SCOPE OF WORK
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7/1/22
Michael Baker International Fee Estimate
for Non-Insured Repairs to
Fitzsimons Village Colfax Pedestrian Bridge
Billable Rate:

1.0 Project Management
Manage Project Team, Scope, Schedule, and Budget
Monthly Invoices with Progress Reports
Gather Information & Maintain Coordinated Activities
Total Hours
2.0 Prepare Bridge Repair Plans
Engineering & Modeling for Lift Condition
Prepare Drawing and Special Provisions
Prepare Engineers Estimate of Probable Cost
Field Visit during Construction Prior to Repairs

Principal

QC Engineer II

Sr. Engineer

Engineer II

Engineer I

Designer II

Administrative
Assistant

$90.00
$248

$56.08
$155

$75.04
$207

$52.33
$144

$46.61
$129

$34.49
$95

$28.50
$79

6
3
1
10
$2484

1
1

2
0
$0

2
$414

0
$0

0
$0

0
$0

2
$157

10
4

40
18
6
4

4
4

20

1

0
$0

14
$2900

68
$9821

8
$1029

20
$1904

1
$79

8
6

3

3

14
$2167

3
$621

3
$433

1

Total Hours

1
$248

3.0 Quality Control of Engineering Tasks & Deliverables
QA/QC Engineering & Modeling
QA/QC Final Deliverables
Total Hours

Combined Total Hours (Task 1 Thru 3)
Total Labor Cost $

0
$0
11
2,732.40

$

14
2,166.93

$

19
3,935.10

PRIME
CONSULTANT

$

71
10,254.59

0
$0

$

8
1,029.15

0
$0

$

20
1,903.85

9
4
1
14

50
47
11
4
0
112

8
12
0
20

0
$0
3
$

235.98 $

146
22,257.99

4.0 Direct Costs

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS:

$

-

TOTAL PRIME:
DIRECT COSTS:
SUBCONSULTANT / SUPPLIER

$
$

22,257.99
-

CONTRACT:

$

22,257.99
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June 24, 2022

RESPONSE REQUESTED:
• See our Recommendation and
Action Plan captions

Sedgwick - Colorado Special Districts
Attention: Nella Rosales

Sent via Electronic Mail: nella.rosales@sedgwick.com
RE:

Report Number:
Insured:
Location of Loss:
Nature of Loss:
Date of Loss:
Date Assigned:
Date Inspected:
Policy Number:
Our File Number:
Claim Number:

Two
Colorado Special Districts - Fitzsimons Village Metro
E. Colfax Ave & N. Ursula & N. Uvalda, Aurora, CO
Vehicle Impact
April 25, 2022
April 25, 2022
April 26, 2022
POL-0010777
1000364192
4A2204TD3S2-0001

Dear Ms. Rosales:
Please allow this to serve as our interim report for the above-referenced assignment.
ESTIMATE OF LOSS:

$ 100,000.00 Engineer's Scope of Work

DEDUCTIBLE:

($

NET ESTIMATE OF LOSS:

$ 99,000.00

1,000.00)

The Estimate of Loss is based upon Engle Martin's initial inspection(s) and preliminary
information obtained as of the report date. The Estimate of Loss is preliminary and
precautionary only and is not intended to reflect liability or coverage, if any, afforded
under the policy for any portion of the loss or claim. Additionally, the referenced
Estimate of Loss is neither a recommendation of any reserve(s), nor suggestion of
payment(s), and thus is subject to further revision(s) as additional information is
received and analyzed, as well as verification of coverage by the insurer(s).
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INVESTIGATION AND ADJUSTMENT:
Bridge:
As discussed in our email on Thursday, June 23, 2022, our contact for Michael Baker,
Thomas Ritz, advised that they continue preparing the scope of work to repair the bridge
for the claim and non-claim-related damages. We have advised Michael Baker to
exclude their financial work on the non-claim-related damages as we understand this
will be an expense incurred by the member. Mr. Ritz is working to have their scope of
work finalized by next week, and once received/reviewed, we will discuss directions
with you for the member to obtain bids to repair the claim damages.
We direct your attention to the following payment recommendations.
RECOMMENDATION (2):
We recommend the following two payments for the vendor's work for engineering and
the temporary board-up.
Enclosure #1 includes the Michael Baker invoice #1149255 totaling $33,104.25. The 40pages of supporting documentation broke down the engineer's regular and overtime
labor, totaling 174 hours, and two receipts with sales tax from Home Depot, but were
removed on the invoice statement.
We recommend the following payment:
•

Payee:
Attn:
Address:
Tax ID:
Services:
Total:

Michael Baker International
Invoice #1149255
P.O. Box 536408 Pittsburgh, PA 15253-5906
#25-1228638
Engineering
$33,104.25

Enclosure #2 includes the Servpro estimate and invoice #5095320 for the temporary
board-up of the pedestrian bridge. We recommend the following payment:
•

Payee:
Attn:
Address:
Services:
Total:

Servpro of Greater Boulder, Broomfield,
Arvada/Servpro Construction Services
Invoice #5095320
9085 Marshall Ct., Westminster, CO 80031
Emergency temporary board up
$1,783.96, less sales tax
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ACTION PLAN:
1. Obtain Michael Baker's scope of work and the contractor estimate
We thank you very much for the referral of this claim. Upon receiving and reviewing this
report, please contact our office if you have any questions or additional handling
instructions. Otherwise, our subsequent report will follow in 30-days.
Report Prepared By:
ENGLE MARTIN

Wes Ellis
National General Adjuster
Denver, Colorado Office
wellis@englemartin.com
M: 843.267.5216
WLE/an
Enclosures:
1. Michael Baker International Invoice #1149255 $33,104.25
2. Servpro Board-up Estimate $1,824.29
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#ChangeHeaderFontStart
Michael Baker International, Inc.
165 South Union Boulevard
Suite 1000
Lakewood, CO 80228
720-514-1100
Invoice Date:
Invoice No:
Invoice Amount:

6/8/2022
1149255
$33,104.25

Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District'
Anna Jones
C/O CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 E Crescent Parkway
Suite 500
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Invoice for Professional Services through period ending'May 29, 2022
Agreement Number: Fitzsimons Village
Project Name: Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Project Number: 189514
Reference to Claim Number 4A2204TD3S2-0001 Fitzsimons Metropolitan District No. 1 - Pedestrian bridge hit struck by truck 04/25/2022

Payment Options: Include invoice number on all remittances
EFT/ACH (Preferred Method):
Michael Baker International
Citizens Bank
Account No.: 6101710975
ABA: 036-076-150
SWIFT: CTZIUS33
Payment Inquiries: AR@mbakerintl.com

Check:
Michael Baker International
P.O. Box 536408
Pittsburgh, PA 15253-5906

Project Inquiries: Pouliot, Stephen Gerald - Stephen.Pouliot@mbakerintl.com
Invoice Inquiries: Gonzalez, Hanneh - Hanneh.Gonzalez@mbakerintl.com
--------------------------

------------------- ----------------------

--------------------- ----------------
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#ROWDELETE

Michael Baker International, Inc.
165 South Union Boulevard
Suite 1000
Lakewood, CO 80228
720-514-1100
Agreement Number: Fitzsimons Village
Project Name: Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Project Number: 189514
Reference to Claim Number 4A2204TD3S2-0001 Fitzsimons Metropolitan District No. 1 - Pedestrian bridge hit struck by truck 04/25/2022#comm

#ARIAL18

Invoice for Professional Services through period ending'May 29, 2022
#Contract Value

Current Invoice

Previously Invoiced

Total Invoiced

$65,933.02

$33,104.25

$0.00

$33,104.25

Remaining
Balance
$32,828.77

Total Invoice Amount

$33,104.25

ODCs

#TSKDEL

Other Direct Costs
Name
Baker Fleet Management
System

Date
4/25/2022

Baker Fleet Management
System

4/25/2022

Description
Fleet (hour)/Stephen
Pouliot|042522|042522|46484|46533|FL4748|Emer
gency inspection on Bridge
Fleet (mile)/Stephen
Pouliot|042522|042522|46484|46533|FL4748|Emer
gency inspection on Bridge

Task 1 Project Management

Quantity
5

Rate
3.32

Amount
$16.60

49

0.585

$28.67

Total Other Direct Costs

$45.27

Total for Top Task ODCs

$45.27

#TSKDEL

Labor
Employee Name
Office Executive II
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen
Pouliot, Stephen

Date
4/25/2022
4/26/2022
4/27/2022
4/28/2022
4/29/2022
5/2/2022
5/3/2022
5/5/2022
5/10/2022
5/11/2022
5/12/2022
5/13/2022
5/17/2022
5/18/2022
5/24/2022
5/25/2022

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

Regional Practice/Market Lead
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

Type

Hrs

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

5.00
1.50
1.00
1.00
1.25
0.50
0.50
0.50
1.00
0.50
1.00
1.00
1.00
6.00
0.50
0.50

Total Regular
Total Labor

22.75
22.75

Rate
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00

Regular
Regular
Regular

2.50
1.00
0.50

Total Regular
Total Labor

4.00
4.00

$1,240.00
$372.00
$248.00
$248.00
$310.00
$124.00
$124.00
$124.00
$248.00
$124.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$1,488.00
$124.00
$124.00
$5,642.00
$5,642.00

Total Labor for Office Executive II
4/28/2022
5/6/2022
5/24/2022

Amount

$248.00
$248.00
$248.00

$5,642.00
$620.00
$248.00
$124.00
$992.00
$992.00

Total Labor for Regional Practice/Market Lead

$992.00

Total Labor

$6,634.00
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Other Direct Costs
Name
Potthast, Luke

Date
5/17/2022

Potthast, Luke

5/18/2022

Ritz, Thomas

Quantity
38.42

Rate
1

Amount
$38.42

66.7

1

$66.70

4/25/2022

Description
Field Supplies-ODC/Tools for bridge inspectionTax Exempt
Field Equipment Rental/Hammer Drill rental for
inspection demolition- Tax Exempt
Personal Mileage/Emergency inspection on Bridge

33

0.585

$19.31

Ritz, Thomas

4/25/2022

Personal Mileage/Emergency inspection on Bridge

33

0.585

$19.31

Ritz, Thomas

5/13/2022

36

0.585

$21.06

Ritz, Thomas

5/13/2022

36

0.585

$21.06

Ritz, Thomas

5/18/2022

36

0.585

$21.06

Ritz, Thomas

5/18/2022

Personal Mileage/Site Visit to check on reported
Broken glass
Personal Mileage/Site Visit to check on reported
Broken glass
Personal Mileage/Follow-Up Inspection on Fitz
bridge
Personal Mileage/Follow-Up Inspection on Fitz
bridge

36

0.585

$21.06

Total Other Direct Costs
Total for Top Task Task 1

$227.98
$6,861.98

Task 3 Insp Data and Report

#TSKDEL

Labor
Employee Name
Civil Engineer II
Potthast, Luke

Date
4/29/2022

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

Regional Practice/Market Lead
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

Type

Hrs

Overtime

3.50

Total Overtime
Total Labor

3.50
3.50

Rate
$144.00

#nf4

#nf4

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

6.50
1.50
2.00
3.00
1.00
1.00
7.00
1.00
1.00
0.50

Total Regular
Total Labor

24.50
24.50

$504.00
$504.00
$504.00

Total Labor for Civil Engineer II
4/25/2022
4/26/2022
4/27/2022
5/12/2022
5/16/2022
5/17/2022
5/18/2022
5/19/2022
5/23/2022
5/24/2022

Amount

$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00

$504.00
$1,612.00
$372.00
$496.00
$744.00
$248.00
$248.00
$1,736.00
$248.00
$248.00
$124.00
$6,076.00
$6,076.00

Total Labor for Regional Practice/Market Lead

$6,076.00

Total for Top Task Task 3

$6,580.00

Task 4 Det. Struct Assess

#TSKDEL

Labor
Employee Name
Civil Engineer II
Jensen, Daniel
Jensen, Daniel
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
Potthast, Luke
#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

Date
4/27/2022
4/28/2022
4/27/2022
4/28/2022
4/29/2022
4/30/2022
5/2/2022
5/3/2022
5/4/2022
5/5/2022
5/10/2022
5/11/2022
5/12/2022
5/13/2022
5/18/2022
5/19/2022
5/20/2022

Type

Hrs

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Overtime
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

1.00
3.00
6.50
8.00
2.50
3.50
9.00
6.00
8.50
5.00
0.75
6.00
7.00
2.00
9.00
1.00
4.00

Total Regular
Total Overtime

79.25
3.50

Rate
$155.00
$155.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00
$144.00

Amount
$155.00
$465.00
$936.00
$1,152.00
$360.00
$504.00
$1,296.00
$864.00
$1,224.00
$720.00
$108.00
$864.00
$1,008.00
$288.00
$1,296.00
$144.00
$576.00
$11,456.00
$504.00

64
Total Labor

#nf4

Regional Practice/Market Lead
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

82.75

$11,960.00

Total Labor for Civil Engineer II
4/29/2022
5/2/2022
5/3/2022
5/9/2022
5/11/2022
5/20/2022
5/23/2022
5/24/2022

#nf4

#nf4

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

3.00
3.00
2.00
3.00
2.00
2.50
1.00
0.50

Total Regular
Total Labor

17.00
17.00

$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00
$248.00

$11,960.00
$744.00
$744.00
$496.00
$744.00
$496.00
$620.00
$248.00
$124.00
$4,216.00
$4,216.00

Total Labor for Regional Practice/Market Lead

$4,216.00

Total for Top Task Task 4

$16,176.00

Task 6 QC Engineering

#TSKDEL

Labor
Employee Name
Civil Engineer II
Jensen, Daniel
Jensen, Daniel
Jensen, Daniel
Jensen, Daniel
Jensen, Daniel
Jensen, Daniel
Jensen, Daniel

Date
4/29/2022
5/2/2022
5/4/2022
5/11/2022
5/12/2022
5/13/2022
5/16/2022

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

Regional Practice/Market Lead
Ritz, Thomas
Ritz, Thomas
#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

#nf4

Type

Hrs

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

2.00
1.00
2.00
4.00
2.00
2.00
2.00

Total Regular
Total Labor

15.00
15.00

$155.00
$155.00
$155.00
$155.00
$155.00
$155.00
$155.00

5/13/2022
5/16/2022

Regular
Regular

2.00
2.50

Total Regular
Total Labor

4.50
4.50

Amount
$310.00
$155.00
$310.00
$620.00
$310.00
$310.00
$310.00
$2,325.00
$2,325.00

Total Labor for Civil Engineer II
$248.00
$248.00

$2,325.00
$496.00
$620.00
$1,116.00
$1,116.00

Total Labor for Regional Practice/Market Lead

$1,116.00

Total for Top Task Task 6

$3,441.00

#STOPTRAVERSE
#STOPTRAVERSE

Rate

Total Invoice Amount Due: $33,104.25

65

Vehicle Usage Report

Vehicle ID Date Out
Date In
Project # Task # Driver
FL4748
25-Apr-22 25-Apr-22
189514 ODCs Stephen Pouliot
FL4748
25-Apr-22 25-Apr-22
189514 ODCs Stephen Pouliot

  

Total Invoice Amount:

$45.27

Odom. Out Odom. In Category
46484
46533 Fleet (mile)
46484
46533 Fleet (hour)

Quantity Bill Rate Bill Amount Comment
49
0.585
$28.67 Emergency inspection on Bridge
5
3.32
$16.60 Emergency inspection on Bridge
Total
$45.27
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Employee Name:
Expense Report Number:
Cost Center:
Project
Date
Number

Ritz, Thomas Alan
IEXP1952879

Task

Expense Type

Expense Dates:
Purpose:

Amount

Exchange
Rate

Receipt Required

03-APR-2022 - 18-MAY-2022
OH / Project 185301

Miles

Rate

Justification

Emergency
25-APR-2022

189514

Task 1

Personal Mileage

19.31

N

33.00

0.5850

25-APR-2022

189514

Task 1

Personal Mileage

19.31

N

33.00

0.5850

Bridge
Emergency
inspection on
Bridge

Amount Paid:
Invoice Amount:
Add'l
Justification 1

Add'l
Justification 2

Add'l
Justification 3

1,886.37
1,886.37
Add'l
Justification 4

67

13-MAY-2022

189514

Task 1

Personal Mileage

21.06

N

36.00

0.5850

13-MAY-2022

189514

Task 1

Personal Mileage

21.06

N

36.00

0.5850

Site Visit to check
on reported
Broken glass
Site Visit to check
on reported
Broken glass

0123144527289
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70 #: 297037
CONTRACT
Status: CLOSED

STORE 1514 Lakewood, CO
6701 W Alameda Ave
Lakewood, CO 80226
(303)462-3564

LUKE POTTHAST
1850 CHESTNUT PL APT 434
DENVER, CO 80202
(618) 541-2239

Rental Center Hours
MON 6A- 8P TUE 6A- 8P WED 6A- 8P THU 6A- 8P FRI 6A- 8P SAT 6A- 8P SUN 7A- 8P

ACTUAL DURATION

CONTRACT TOTAL

$71.31

22 Hours, 59 Minutes
Deposit Trans:

Register #: 90

Transaction #: 29968

Date: 05/17/22

eDeposit #: 1514220517073565629703756

Charge Trans:

Register #: 90

Transaction #: 31576

Date: 05/18/22

eDepositt #: 1514220517073565629703756

Customer Name:

LUKE POTTHAST

Tool Description

Date out:

05/17/2022 - 5:42 PM

Date Due:

05/18/2022 - 5:42 PM

Date In:

05/18/2022 - 4:41 PM

Charges

Amount

11 LB Demolition Hammer

Tool Rental Fee

$58.00

(02-204-20698)
(1) SDS Max 1 x 13 bit
(1) Narrow Flat Chisel SDS Max 14"

SubTotal

$58.00

IN

Rental Subtotal
Damage Protection*
Sales Tax

$58.00
$8.70
$4.61

Contract Total

$71.31

Deposit - PAID 05/17/22

-$50.00

(VISA ending 4602)

Balance Charged

$21.31

(VISA ending 4602)

Outstanding Balance

$0.00

* 15% of Rental Subtotal if applicable.
RENTAL FEE CALCULATOR DISCLAIMER
Home Depot uses a Rental Calculator to insure our customers to get the lowest rates possible for the time they had the tool.

TERMS & CONDITIONS
I agree that no representative of The Home Depot is authorized to make any promise, warranty, or representation to me other than those reﬂected in
writing in the Agreement. I agree to the Terms & Conditions and understand that the Agreement cannot be modiﬁed or changed except in writing
signed by both parties. With respect to equipment I am renting, I have received the equipment referenced in the Agreement. In the event that I am
returning equipment, I acknowledge and agree that I am returning the listed rental equipment, the total charges are correct, and additional charges
may apply if the equipment is returned damaged.

1 of 6
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6701 W ALAMEDA AVE, LAKEWOOD, CO 80226
MANAGER ALEJANDRO GONZALEZ 303/232-6303
1514 00061 39216
SALE SELF CHECKOUT

05/17/22

05:55 PM

4710374980094 EARPLUGS <A>
6.47
HDX REUSABLE CORDED EARPLUGS
051131917576 RESP 5PK <A>
16.98
3M N95 8511 VALVE RESPIRATOR M/L 5PK
731919552778 DCKGLOVEL <A>
14.97
BTP FIRM GRIP DUCK CANVAS GLOVE LG
SUBTOTAL
SALES TAX
TOTAL
XXXXXXXXXXXX4602 VISA
AUTH CODE 06058C/0614389
Chip Read
AID A0000000031010

38.42
2.88
$41.30
USD$ 41.30
TA
CHASE VISA

1514 05/17/22 05:55 PM

1514 61 39216 05/17/2022 2364

A

RETURN POLICY DEFINITIONS
POLICY ID
DAYS
POLICY EXPIRES ON
1
90
08/15/2022

***************************************

DID WE NAIL IT?
Take a short survey for a chance TO WIN
A $5,000 HOME DEPOT GIFT CARD
Opine en español
www.homedepot.com/survey
User ID: H89 80235 78782
PASSWORD: 22267 78721
Entries must be completed within 14 days
of purchase. Entrants must be 18 or
older to enter. See complete rules on
website. No purchase necessary.

Page 1 of 1
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Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Pouliot, Stephen Gerald
Week Ending Date: 01-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
25-APR-2022
26-APR-2022
27-APR-2022
28-APR-2022
29-APR-2022

Week Day

Hours

Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

5.00
1.50
1.00
1.00
1.25

Sum

9.75

Employee Number: 809665
Approval Date: : 02-MAY-22 14:58
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

Total Time: 9.75 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514
189514
189514
189514
189514

Task Name
Project Management
Project Management
Project Management
Project Management
Project Management

Task Number
Task 1
Task 1
Task 1
Task 1
Task 1
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Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Pouliot, Stephen Gerald
Week Ending Date: 08-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
02-MAY-2022
03-MAY-2022
05-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Monday
Tuesday
Thursday

0.50
0.50
0.50

Sum

1.50

Employee Number: 809665
Approval Date: : 09-MAY-22 12:49
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular
Regular
Regular

Total Time: 1.50 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514
189514
189514

Task Name
Project Management
Project Management
Project Management

Task Number
Task 1
Task 1
Task 1
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Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Pouliot, Stephen Gerald
Week Ending Date: 15-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
10-MAY-2022
11-MAY-2022
12-MAY-2022
13-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday

1.00
0.50
1.00
1.00

Sum

3.50

Employee Number: 809665
Approval Date: : 14-MAY-22 04:09
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular
Regular
Regular
Regular

Total Time: 3.50 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514
189514
189514
189514

Task Name
Project Management
Project Management
Project Management
Project Management

Task Number
Task 1
Task 1
Task 1
Task 1
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Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Pouliot, Stephen Gerald
Week Ending Date: 22-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
17-MAY-2022
18-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Tuesday
Wednesday

1.00
6.00

Sum

7.00

Employee Number: 809665
Approval Date: : 23-MAY-22 02:32
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular
Regular

Total Time: 7.00 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514
189514

Task Name
Project Management
Project Management

Task Number
Task 1
Task 1
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Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Pouliot, Stephen Gerald
Week Ending Date: 29-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
24-MAY-2022
25-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Tuesday
Wednesday

0.50
0.50

Sum

1.00

Employee Number: 809665
Approval Date: : 26-MAY-22 21:31
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular
Regular

Total Time: 1.00 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514
189514

Task Name
Project Management
Project Management

Task Number
Task 1
Task 1
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Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 01-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
28-APR-2022

Week Day

Hours

Thursday
Comment:
Continued
oversight on
model
development.
Scoping document
progress &
coordination.

2.50

Sum

2.50

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 01-MAY-22 01:23
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 2.50 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
Project Management

Task Number
Task 1
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Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 08-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
06-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Friday
Comment: Scope
and fee final
adjustments

1.00

Sum

1.00

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 09-MAY-22 15:42
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 1.00 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
Project Management

Task Number
Task 1
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Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 29-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
24-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Tuesday
Comment: Update
call

0.50

Sum

0.50

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 27-MAY-22 14:13
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 0.50 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
Project Management

Task Number
Task 1

80

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Potthast, Luke Allen
Week Ending Date: 01-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
29-APR-2022

Week Day

Hours

Friday

3.50

Sum

3.50

Employee Number: 803812
Approval Date: : 02-MAY-22 04:56
Approver: Matson, Keely Marie
Expenditure Type

Overtime

Total Time: 3.50 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
Insp Data and Report

Task Number
Task 3

81

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 01-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
25-APR-2022

26-APR-2022

27-APR-2022

Week Day
Monday
Comment:
Mobilize and
emergency
inspect bridge
damage
Tuesday
Comment:
Prepare briefing
notes, and discuss
next steps. Start
scoping
document.
Wednesday
Comment:
Orientate design
engineer on
damage, modeling
goals, and
concerns.
Oversight on
model
development.
Sum

Hours

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 01-MAY-22 01:23
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 10.00 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

6.50

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

1.50

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

2.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

10.00

82

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 15-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
12-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Thursday
Comment:
structural
evaluation
refinements and
reporting

3.00

Sum

3.00

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 15-MAY-22 16:21
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 3.00 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
Insp Data and Report

Task Number
Task 3

83

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 22-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
16-MAY-2022

17-MAY-2022

18-MAY-2022

19-MAY-2022

Week Day
Monday
Comment:
Equipment vendor
coord. and prep
for follow-up
inspection
Tuesday
Comment: Prep.
demo equipment
for follow-up
inspection
Wednesday
Comment: field
day - follow-up
inspection = travel
time
Thursday
Comment: de-mob
equipment and
download field
data
Sum

Hours

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 23-MAY-22 02:33
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 10.00 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

1.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

1.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

7.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

1.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

10.00

84

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 29-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
23-MAY-2022

24-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 27-MAY-22 14:13
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 1.50 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

Monday
Comment: Task 3:
Follow Up
Inspection #1
Reporting
Tuesday
Comment: Task 3:
Follow Up
Inspection #1
Reporting

1.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

0.50

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Insp Data and Report

Task 3

Sum

1.50

85

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Jensen, Daniel Fredrick
Week Ending Date: 01-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
27-APR-2022

28-APR-2022

Week Day

Hours

Employee Number: 19080
Approval Date: : 08-MAY-22 22:50
Approver: Sahakian, Vartan
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 4.00 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

Wednesday
Comment: Truss
impact analysis.
Change time to
appropriate
project
Thursday
Comment: Truss
impact analysis.
Change time to
appropriate
project

1.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

3.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

Sum

4.00

86

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Potthast, Luke Allen
Week Ending Date: 01-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
27-APR-2022

28-APR-2022

29-APR-2022
30-APR-2022

Week Day
Wednesday
Comment:
Fitzsimmons
Truss Bridge
Emergency
analysis: reviewed
plans and site visit
photos, began
working on truss
model
Thursday
Comment:
Fitzsimmons
Truss Bridge
Emergency
analysis: updated
truss model
Friday
Saturday
Sum

Hours

Employee Number: 803812
Approval Date: : 02-MAY-22 04:56
Approver: Matson, Keely Marie
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 20.50 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

6.50

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

8.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

2.50
3.50

Regular
Overtime

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514
189514

Det. Struct Assess
Det. Struct Assess

Task 4
Task 4

20.50

87

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Potthast, Luke Allen
Week Ending Date: 08-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
02-MAY-2022

03-MAY-2022

04-MAY-2022

05-MAY-2022

Week Day
Monday
Comment:
Updated Midas
models and other
calculations to
determine
load/stresses on
structure
Tuesday
Comment:
Updated Midas
models and other
calculations to
determine
load/stresses on
structure
Wednesday
Comment:
Updated
calculations and
began writing
findings report
Thursday
Comment:
Updated findings
report
Sum

Hours

Employee Number: 803812
Approval Date: : 07-MAY-22 19:56
Approver: Butters, Michael Edward
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 28.50 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

9.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

6.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

8.50

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

5.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

28.50

88

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Potthast, Luke Allen
Week Ending Date: 15-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
10-MAY-2022

11-MAY-2022

12-MAY-2022

13-MAY-2022

Week Day
Tuesday
Comment:
Meeting to discuss
findings report
Wednesday
Comment:
Updated models
and report
Thursday
Comment:
Updated models
and report
Friday
Comment:
Finished updated
report and
calculations
Sum

Hours

Employee Number: 803812
Approval Date: : 16-MAY-22 15:44
Approver: Matson, Keely Marie
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 15.75 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

0.75

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

6.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

7.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

2.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

15.75

89

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Potthast, Luke Allen
Week Ending Date: 22-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
18-MAY-2022

19-MAY-2022

20-MAY-2022

Week Day
Wednesday
Comment: Field
inspection
Thursday
Comment:
Reviewed field
inspection photos
Friday
Comment:
Updated structural
analysis reporting
Sum

Hours

Employee Number: 803812
Approval Date: : 23-MAY-22 18:47
Approver: Matson, Keely Marie
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 14.00 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

9.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

1.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

4.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

14.00

90

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 01-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
29-APR-2022

Week Day

Hours

Friday
Comment: Review
modeling
assumptions and
initial behavior
characteristics.
Prepare briefing
email to CDOT.
Scope and
schedule
development.

3.00

Sum

3.00

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 01-MAY-22 01:23
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 3.00 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
Det. Struct Assess

Task Number
Task 4

91

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 08-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
02-MAY-2022

03-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 09-MAY-22 15:42
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 5.00 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

Monday
Comment: 3D
model oversight
Tuesday
Comment:
Prepare for
briefing, 3D model
oversight

3.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

2.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

Sum

5.00

92

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 15-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
09-MAY-2022

11-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 15-MAY-22 16:21
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 5.00 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

Monday
Comment:
Coordination on
3D model and
behavior
Wednesday

3.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

2.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

Sum

5.00

93

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 22-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
20-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Friday
Comment: Review
filed photos &
video. Consult on
findings.

2.50

Sum

2.50

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 23-MAY-22 02:33
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 2.50 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
Det. Struct Assess

Task Number
Task 4

94

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 29-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
23-MAY-2022

24-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 27-MAY-22 14:13
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 1.50 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

Monday
Comment: Wrap
up analytics
reporting
Tuesday
Comment: Wrap
up analytics
reporting

1.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

0.50

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

Det. Struct Assess

Task 4

Sum

1.50

95

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Jensen, Daniel Fredrick
Week Ending Date: 01-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
29-APR-2022

Week Day

Hours

Friday
Comment: Truss
impact analysis.
Change time to
appropriate
project

2.00

Sum

2.00

Employee Number: 19080
Approval Date: : 08-MAY-22 22:50
Approver: Sahakian, Vartan
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 2.00 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
QC Engineering

Task Number
Task 6

96

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Jensen, Daniel Fredrick
Week Ending Date: 08-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
02-MAY-2022

04-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Employee Number: 19080
Approval Date: : 09-MAY-22 16:24
Approver: Sahakian, Vartan
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 3.00 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

Monday
Comment: Truss
impact analysis
Wednesday
Comment: Truss
impact analysis.

1.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

QC Engineering

Task 6

2.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

QC Engineering

Task 6

Sum

3.00

97

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Jensen, Daniel Fredrick
Week Ending Date: 15-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
11-MAY-2022

12-MAY-2022

13-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Employee Number: 19080
Approval Date: : 16-MAY-22 02:41
Approver: Sahakian, Vartan
Expenditure Type

Report Date: 06/02/22

Total Time: 8.00 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Task Name

Task Number

Wednesday
Comment: Truss
impact analysis.
Thursday
Comment: Truss
impact analysis.
Friday
Comment: Truss
impact analysis.

4.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

QC Engineering

Task 6

2.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

QC Engineering

Task 6

2.00

Regular

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

189514

QC Engineering

Task 6

Sum

8.00

98

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Jensen, Daniel Fredrick
Week Ending Date: 22-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
16-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Monday
Comment: Model
and report review

2.00

Sum

2.00

Employee Number: 19080
Approval Date: : 23-MAY-22 01:24
Approver: Sahakian, Vartan
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 2.00 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
QC Engineering

Task Number
Task 6

99

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 15-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
13-MAY-2022

Week Day

Hours

Friday
Comment: Report
QC and edits

2.00

Sum

2.00

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 15-MAY-22 16:21
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 2.00 Hours

Project Name
Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

Report Date: 06/02/22

Project Number
189514

Task Name
QC Engineering

Task Number
Task 6

100

Timecard Entry

Time: 17:49:42

Timecard Ending Dates: 01-MAY-2022 THRU 29-MAY-2022

Employee Name: Ritz, Thomas Alan
Week Ending Date: 22-MAY-2022
Entry Method/Transaction Source: Oracle Time and Labor
Item Date
16-MAY-2022

Total for Report:

Week Day

Hours

Monday
Comment: QC &
Edit Impact
Analysis Report
on 5/13

2.50

Sum

2.50

Employee Number: 807635
Approval Date: : 23-MAY-22 02:33
Approver: Dougherty, Malcolm Xavier
Expenditure Type

Regular

Total Time: 2.50 Hours

Project Name

Project Number

Fitzsimons Village Bridge Insp

174.00
End of Report

Report Date: 06/02/22

189514

Task Name
QC Engineering

Task Number
Task 6
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Servpro of Greater Boulder,
Broomfield, Arvada / Servpro
Construction Services
9085 Marshall Ct
Westminster, CO 80031
(303) 604-3463

INVOICE
BILL TO
Engle Martin and Associates
63 Inverness Cir E
Suite 101
Englewood, CO 80112

SHIP TO
Anshutz Medical Center Pedestrian Bridge
1635 Aurora Ct
Aurora, CO 80045

INVOICE
DATE
TERMS
DUE DATE

5095320
04/29/2022
Net 30
05/29/2022

DESCRIPTION

AMOUNT

Board Up 4/25/22
Anshutz Medical Center Pedestrian Bridge

1,824.29

Remit payment to:
Olson Restoration II, LLC
9085 Marshall Ct.
Westminster, CO 80031

BALANCE DUE

Thank you for your business. If you have questions email: office-admin@servpro1444.com
Page 1 of 1

$1,824.29

1
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Servpro of Greater Boulder
9085 Marshall Ct. Westminster, CO 80031
(303) 494-2000 | (303) 530-0670 (fax)
TIN # 26-4216808 Franchise # 1444
http://servproofgreaterboulder.com /
office-admin@servpro1444.com
*LIKE IT NEVER EVEN HAPPENED*
Client:
Property:

Anshutz Medical Center
Anshutz Medical Center Pedestrian Bridge
Aurora, CO 80045

Operator:

LMINCHEN

Estimator:
Company:
Type of Estimate:
Date Entered:
Date Est. Completed:
Price List:
Labor Efficiency:
Estimate:

Ivan Ramirez
SERVPRO of Greater Boulder
Board Up
4/27/2022

Date Assigned:
Date Job Completed:

CODE8X_APR22
Restoration/Service/Remodel
COL-SL-22-1741-BUP

4/25/2022
4/25/2022

Home:

(843) 267-5216

Business:

(303) 494-2000

2
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Servpro of Greater Boulder
9085 Marshall Ct. Westminster, CO 80031
(303) 494-2000 | (303) 530-0670 (fax)
TIN # 26-4216808 Franchise # 1444
http://servproofgreaterboulder.com /
office-admin@servpro1444.com
*LIKE IT NEVER EVEN HAPPENED*
COL-SL-22-1741-BUP
COL-SL-22-1741-BUP
DESCRIPTION
1. Emergency service call - during business hours
Emergency response on Apr 25, 2022, 1:47 PM
2. Carpenter - General Framer - per hour
3. General Laborer - per hour
clean up the area
4. Material Only Sheathing - plywood - 5/8" CDX
5. Material Only 2" x 4" lumber (.667 BF per LF)

COL-SL-22-1741-BUP

QTY

UNIT PRICE

TOTAL

1.00 EA @

218.40 =

218.40

10.00 HR @
5.00 HR @

74.79 =
52.48 =

747.90
262.40

128.00 SF @
96.00 LF @

2.28 =
1.71 =

291.84
164.16

4/29/2022

Page: 2
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Servpro of Greater Boulder
9085 Marshall Ct. Westminster, CO 80031
(303) 494-2000 | (303) 530-0670 (fax)
TIN # 26-4216808 Franchise # 1444
http://servproofgreaterboulder.com /
office-admin@servpro1444.com
*LIKE IT NEVER EVEN HAPPENED*

Summary
Line Item Total
Material Sales Tax

1,684.70
40.33

Subtotal
Overhead
Profit

1,725.03
49.63
49.63

Replacement Cost Value
Net Claim

$1,824.29
$1,824.29

Ivan Ramirez

COL-SL-22-1741-BUP

4/29/2022

Page: 3
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Servpro of Greater Boulder
9085 Marshall Ct. Westminster, CO 80031
(303) 494-2000 | (303) 530-0670 (fax)
TIN # 26-4216808 Franchise # 1444
http://servproofgreaterboulder.com /
office-admin@servpro1444.com
*LIKE IT NEVER EVEN HAPPENED*

1

2

3

4

5

6

COL-SL-22-1741-BUP

4/29/2022

Page: 4
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Servpro of Greater Boulder
9085 Marshall Ct. Westminster, CO 80031
(303) 494-2000 | (303) 530-0670 (fax)
TIN # 26-4216808 Franchise # 1444
http://servproofgreaterboulder.com /
office-admin@servpro1444.com
*LIKE IT NEVER EVEN HAPPENED*

7

COL-SL-22-1741-BUP

8

4/29/2022

Page: 5
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Servpro of Greater Boulder
9085 Marshall Ct. Westminster, CO 80031
(303) 494-2000 | (303) 530-0670 (fax)
TIN # 26-4216808 Franchise # 1444
http://servproofgreaterboulder.com /
office-admin@servpro1444.com
*LIKE IT NEVER EVEN HAPPENED*

Image Detail
Image No.

Type

Date Taken

1

1-Front of Structure

4/25/2022

2

2-Cause of Loss

4/25/2022

3

3-affected area before

4/25/2022

4

4-affected area before

5

5-board up

4/25/2022

6

6-affected area after

4/25/2022

7

7-affected area after

8

8-affected area after (1)

COL-SL-22-1741-BUP

Taken By

4/29/2022

Page: 6
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From: Rosales, Nella <nella.rosales@sedgwick.com>
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2022 1:00 PM
To: Jones, Anna <Anna.Jones@claconnect.com>; Carlson, Nicholas <Nicholas.Carlson@claconnect.com>
Cc: Ellis, Wesley <wellis@englemartin.com>; Youngblood, Lev <Lev.Youngblood@sedgwick.com>
Subject: [External] 4A2204TD3S2-0001 Fitzsimons Village Metro EMA Report 02 | EM File #1000364192
Think Security – This email originated from an external source. Be cautious with any links or
attachments.
Anna, we have submitted payment per Engle Martin & Associates attached report 2, for emergency
services and engineering services fees per invoices submitted by Servpro and Michael Baker
International, for approval. Benefit breakdown as follows:
Servpro Emergency Services

$ 1,783.96

Michael Baker International

$ 33,104.25

Total claim to date

$ 34,888.21

Less property deductible

-$ 1,000.00

Net owed to member

$ 33,888.21

Check will be issue later this week and mail via USPS. Should you have any questions, please call
me. Thank you.
Nella Rosales | Claims Examiner - Property
Sedgwick
DIRECT 303-713-6133 Mobile 720-724-1257| EMAIL Nella.Rosales@sedgwick.com
www.sedgwick.com | Caring counts®

Any personal data acquired, processed or shared by us will be lawfully processed in line with applicable
data protection legislation. If you have any questions regarding how we process personal data refer to
our Privacy Notice https://www.sedgwick.com/global-privacy-policy. Any communication including this
email and files/attachments transmitted with it are confidential and are intended solely for the use of
the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If this message has been sent to you in error, you
must not copy, distribute or disclose of the information it contains and you must notify us immediately
(contact is within the privacy policy) and delete the message from your system.
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From: Tom Banta <TBanta@Corporex.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2022 8:04 AM
To: Jones, Anna <Anna.Jones@claconnect.com>; George, Tom (tgeorge@spencerfane.com)
<tgeorge@spencerfane.com>
Cc: Beacom, Carrie <Carrie.Beacom@claconnect.com>; Suzanne Schlicht
<SSchlicht@AlpineMountainRanch.com>; Carlson, Nicholas <Nicholas.Carlson@claconnect.com>;
Pangindian, Gigi <Gigi.Pangindian@claconnect.com>; Brittanny Havard
<BHavard@AlpineMountainRanch.com>
Subject: [External] RE: Fitz - Republic Parking
Think Security – This email originated from an external source. Be cautious with any links or
attachments.
Yes,
Let’s go ahead and cancel it.
Tom
From: Jones, Anna <Anna.Jones@claconnect.com>
Sent: Tuesday, May 24, 2022 6:33 PM
To: Tom Banta <TBanta@Corporex.com>; George, Tom (tgeorge@spencerfane.com)
<tgeorge@spencerfane.com>
Cc: Beacom, Carrie <Carrie.Beacom@claconnect.com>; Carlson, Nicholas
<Nicholas.Carlson@claconnect.com>; Pangindian, Gigi <Gigi.Pangindian@claconnect.com>
Subject: Fitz - Republic Parking
Tom and Tom –
Carrie looked into the Republic contract and it is still active. The District is paying approx. $3K per
month for this.
Based on yesterday’s conversation we would like to go ahead and terminate the contract. It requires 30
days’ notice.
Are you both OK with that?
Please advise asap.
Anna Jones (she/her/hers)
Public Manager
State and Local Government
Direct 303-793-1478 Mobile 303-931-6134
CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP)
anna.jones@CLAconnect.com

We'll get you there.

CPAs | Consultants | Wealth Advisors
Send me your files with secure file transfer.
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Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen
Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor.

---------------------------The information (including any attachments) contained in this document is confidential and is for the
use only of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient, you should delete this
message. Any distribution, disclosure, or copying of this message, or the taking of any action based on
its contents is strictly prohibited.
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

---------------------------CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.
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From: Beacom, Carrie
Sent: Wednesday, May 25, 2022 8:46 AM
To: Tamara Von Feldt <tamara.von.feldt@reefparking.com>
Cc: Tom Banta <TBanta@Corporex.com>; Jones, Anna <Anna.Jones@claconnect.com>
Subject: FW: [External] Re: Fitzsimons Village
Tamara,
This is notification that Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1 is cancelling it’s contract with
Republic Parking effective 6/25/22. Let us know if you require any further documentation. Please
confirm receipt of this email.
Thanks,
Carrie
Carrie Beacom, CPA
Controller, Outsourcing
Business Operations (BizOps)
Direct 303-265-7858
CLA (CliftonLarsonAllen LLP)

carrie.beacom@CLAconnect.com

Create Opportunities
Wealth Advisory

| Outsourcing | Audit, Tax, and Consulting

Send me your files with secure file transfer.

Investment advisory services are offered through CliftonLarsonAllen
Wealth Advisors, LLC, an SEC-registered investment advisor.
CLA is an independent member of Nexia International. See member firm disclaimer for details.
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Invoice #770
Date
Terms
PO #
Sales Rep

6101 W 11th Ave #2
Lakewood, CO 80214

5/8/2022

Net 30
Tim Flanagan

Property Address

Bill To

Fitzsimons Metro District 1
13100 East Colfax Avenue
Aurora, CO 80011

Anna Jones
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 E Crescent Parkway, Suite 300,
Greenwood Village, CO 80111

Description

Amount

#1020 - Fitzsimons Mainline Repair Due to Construction
5/08/22-5/13/22

Mainline repair due to construction - 05/08/2022

$6,342.60

Total
Credits/Payments

$6,342.60
($0.00)

Balance Due

$6,342.60

Current

1-30 Days
Past Due

31-60 Days
Past Due

61-90 Days
Past Due

90+ Days
Past Due

$2,916.12

$7,989.88

$0.00

$821.74

$0.00

p 303-986-4000 | f 732-737-0664
www.sustainablelandscapescolorado.com

113

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303-779-5710 fax 303-779-0348
CLAconnect.com

Special Districts Public Management Services SOW – Revised May 20, 2022
This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by and
between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and Fitzsimons Village Metro District 1 (“you” and
“your”) dated October 7, 2021. The purpose of this revised SOW is to outline certain services you wish us to
perform in connection with that agreement.
Scope of professional services
Matt Urkoski is responsible for the performance of the engagement and other services identified in this
agreement. They may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the performance of the engagement.
Scope of Public Management Services
CLA will perform the following services for the District:
District Board of Directors (“Board”) Meetings

•
•
•
•
•
•

Coordination of all Board meetings;
Meeting Attendance: District Manager and/or designee will attend all Board meetings;
Preparation and distribution of agenda and informational materials;
Preparation of meeting minutes for all meetings;
Preparation and posting of legal notices required in conjunction with the meetings;
Other details incidental to meeting preparation and follow-up.

Recordkeeping

•
•
•

Maintain lists of persons and organizations for correspondence;
Vendor listing as needed or requested by the Board;
Repository of all District records and act as Custodian of records for purposes of CORA (as that term is
defined in the District’s Resolution Designating an Official Custodian for Purposes of the Colorado Open
Records Act, Sections 24-72-201 et seq., C.R.S.).

Communications

•
•
•
•
•

24/7 answering and paging services;
Website administration. It is recommended that the District have a website; however, CLA will not
provide a website for the District on CLA’s website. CLA will oversee daily management and
maintenance of the District website as needed or requested by the District;
Respond to routine inquiries, questions and requests for information regarding the District;
Periodic reports to the Board regarding the status of District matters and actions taken or contemplated
by the District Manager on behalf of the District as requested by the Board;
Provide liaison and coordination with municipal, county and state governmental agencies.
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Contract Administration

•
•
•
•
•
•

Insurance administration, including risk evaluation, comparison of coverage, processing claims,
completion of applications, monitoring expiration dates, processing routine written and telephone
correspondence;
In conjunction with District counsel, ensure all contractors and sub-contractors maintain the
required insurance coverage for the District’s benefit;
Bidding, contract and construction administration and supervision of project processes assigned by
the Board and project contractors;
Confer with and coordinate legal, accounting, engineering, auditing and other professional
services to the District by those professionals and consultants retained by the District as directed
by the Board (CLA itself will not and cannot provide legal services);
Represent the District with other entities and bodies as requested by the Board (but not as
its representative for legal matters);
Coordinate with and/or at Board direction, supervise District vendors

Document Administration

•
•
•

•

Provide coordination and administration for the continuing revision of the District’s Rules and
Regulations;
Provide framed aerial photographic mapping of the District, if requested;
In conjunction with and at the direction of the District’s legal counsel, coordinate all elections
for the District in accordance with state law, including preparation of election materials,
publications, legal notices, training session for election judges and general election
assistance; CLA will not serve as the Designated Election Official (“DEO”);
Administer any legal documents, permits, or agreements that relate to or District facilities
and any Rules and Regulations adopted by the Board.

Accounts Payable Services to be Provided:
•
•

Receive and process all invoices;
Coordinate review, approval and coding of all invoices with District Accountant and Board to
ensure timely payment

In addition to these services, when, in the professional opinion of the District Manager, other services
are necessary, the District Manager shall recommend the same to the Board or perform such services and
report to the Board the nature of such services, the reason they were required, and the result achieved;
provided however, with the exception of emergencies, that if such additional services are expected
to cost more than $2,000.00, the District Manager shall discuss such costs with the Board and receive
prior authorization to perform such services.
Fees, time estimates, and terms
Our professional fees will be billed based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills
required. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a technology and
client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Our invoices for these fees will be
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rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm
policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will
be deemed to have been completed even if we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date
of termination.
CLA’S 2022 STANDARD HOURLY RATES FOR PUBLIC MANAGEMENT SERVICES:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Principals
Public managers
Assistant public managers
Public management analysts
District administrators
Records retention coordinators

$300 - $400
$190 - $240
$110 - $150
$110 - $150
$125 - $145
$ 90 - $115

Out-of-pocket expenses such as out-of-town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not
included in the fees quoted above. The fee estimates are based on anticipated cooperation from your
personnel and their assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available
on the dates required or are not accurate, the estimated fees will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances
require significant additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a
substantial increase in the fee estimates.
CLA will provide management services at an overall rate of $170 per hour across all roles. The management
team dedicated to Fitzsimons at the outset of this agreement will include Matt Urkoski, Principal, Anna
Jones, Manager, Nic Carlson, Assistant Manager, and Ashley Heidt, District Administrator. The $170 per
blended
hour raterate
is aacross the different roles.
Municipal advisors
For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is
not acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you pursuant to Section 158 of the Act
with respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You
should discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and
external advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.
Additional provisions required by CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)
Unlawful employees, contractors, and subcontractors
We shall not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under this
contact. We shall not knowingly contract with a subcontractor that (a) knowingly employs or contracts with a
worker without authorization to perform work under this contract or (b) fails to certify to us that the
subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work
under this contact. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)]
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Verification regarding workers without authorization
We have verified or attempted to verify through participation in the E-Verify Program or the Department
Program [as defined in CRS 8-17.5-101(3.3) and (3.7) of the state of Colorado that we do not employ or
contract workers without authorization.
Limitation regarding E-Verify Program and the Department Program
We shall not use the E-Verify Program or the Department Program procedures to undertake pre-employment
screening of job applicants while performing this contract. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(II)]
Duty to terminate a subcontractor and exceptions
If we obtain actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this contract knowingly employs
or contracts with an illegal alien, we shall, unless the subcontractor provides information to establish that the
subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with a worker without authorization.
(1) Notify the subcontractor and the district within three days that we have actual knowledge that the
subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker without authorization; and
(2) Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if, within three days of receiving notice that we
have actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker without
authorization, the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the worker without
authorization. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(A) and (B)]
Duty to comply with state investigation
We shall comply with any reasonable request of the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment made in
the course of an investigation pursuant to CRS 8-17.5-102(5). [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(IV)]
Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms
and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign
below and return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and
understanding of, and agreement with, this SOW.
Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Matt Urkoski
Principal

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent
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APPROVED:

____________________________________________
Signature

____________________________________________
Title

____________________________________________
Date

DocuSign Envelope ID: 50950D5C-F1CB-4CE6-A74C-9A4223208306
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303-779-5710 fax 303-779-0348
CLAconnect.com

October 7, 2021
Board of Directors
FITZSIMONS VILLAGE MD NOS. 1 - 3
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Dear Board of Directors:
This master service agreement (“MSA”) documents the terms, objectives, and the nature and limitations of
the services CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) will provide for FITZSIMONS VILLAGE
MD NOS. 1 - 3 (“you,” “your,” or “the district”). The terms of this MSA will apply to the initial and
each subsequent statement of work (“SOW”), unless the MSA is changed in a communication that you
and CLA both sign or is terminated as permitted herein.
Scope of professional services
CLA will provide services as described in one or more SOW that will reference this MSA. The SOW will describe
the scope of professional services; the nature, limitations, and responsibilities related to the specific services
CLA will provide; and the fees for such services.
If modifications or changes are required during CLA’s performance of requested services, or if you request
that we perform any additional services, we will provide you with a separate SOW for your signature. Such
SOW will advise you of the additional fee and time required for such services to facilitate a clear understanding
of the services.
Our services cannot be relied upon to disclose errors, fraud, or noncompliance with laws and regulations.
Except as described in the scope of professional services section of this MSA or any applicable SOW, we have
no responsibility to identify and communicate deficiencies in your internal control as part of any services.
Management responsibilities
Management and, when appropriate, the board of directors of the district acknowledge and understand that
our role is to provide the services identified in an SOW and that management and the board of directors of
the district have certain responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking to perform the identified
services. The district may engage CLA to perform management functions to help the board of directors of the
district to meet your responsibilities, but the board of directors of the district acknowledges its management
responsibilities. References to management in this MSA and in an SOW are applicable to the board of directors
of the district.

CLA

is

an

independent

member

of

Nexia

International,

a

leading,

global

network

of

independent
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Responsibilities and limitations related to nonattest services
For all nonattest services we may provide to you, your management agrees to assume all management
responsibilities; oversee the services; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; ensure that your data
and records are complete; and accept responsibility for the results of the services.
Fees and terms
See the applicable SOW for the fees for the services.
Work may be suspended if your account becomes 90 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until
your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagements will be
deemed to have been completed even if we have not completed the services. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date
of termination.
Payments may be made utilizing checks, Bill.com, your online banking platform, CLA’s electronic payment
platform, or any other client initiated payment method approved by CLA. CLA’s electronic online bill pay
platform claconnect.com/billpay accepts credit card and Automated Clearing House (ACH) payments.
Instructions for making direct bank to bank wire transfers or ACH payments will be provided upon request.
Other fees
You also agree to compensate us for any time and expenses, including time and expenses of legal counsel, we
may incur in responding to discovery requests or participating as a witness or otherwise in any legal,
regulatory, or other proceedings that we are asked to respond to on your behalf.
Finance charges and collection expenses
You agree that if any statement is not paid within 30 days from its billing date, the unpaid balance shall accrue
interest at the monthly rate of one and one-quarter percent (1.25%), which is an annual percentage rate of
15%. In the event that any collection action is required to collect unpaid balances due us, reasonable attorney
fees and expenses shall be recoverable.
Mediation
Any disagreement, controversy, or claim (“Dispute”) that may arise out of any aspect of our services or
relationship with you shall be submitted to non-binding mediation by written notice (“Mediation Notice”) to
the other party. In mediation, we will work with you to resolve any differences voluntarily with the aid of an
impartial mediator.
The mediation will be conducted as specified by the mediator and agreed upon by the parties (i.e., you and
CLA). The parties agree to discuss their differences in good faith and to attempt, with the assistance of the
mediator, to reach an amicable resolution of the Dispute.
Each party will bear its own costs in the mediation. The fees and expenses of the mediator will be shared
equally by the parties.
Any Dispute will be governed by the laws of the state of Colorado, without giving effect to choice of law
principles.
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Limitation of remedies
These limitation of remedies provisions are not applicable for any audit, examination, or agreed-upon
procedures services provided to you.
Our role is strictly limited to the services described in an SOW, and we offer no assurance as to the results or
ultimate outcomes of any services or of any decisions that you may make based on our communications with
you. You agree that it is appropriate to limit the liability of CLA, its partners, principals, directors, officers,
employees, and agents (each a “CLA party”) and that this limitation of remedies provision is governed by the
laws of the state of Colorado, without giving effect to choice of law principles.
You further agree that you will not hold CLA or any other CLA party liable for any claim, cost, or damage,
whether based on warranty, tort, contract, or other law, arising from or related to this MSA, the services
provided under an SOW, the work product, or for any plans, actions, or results of an SOW, except to the extent
authorized by this MSA. In no event shall any CLA party be liable to you for any indirect, special, incidental,
consequential, punitive, or exemplary damages, or for loss of profits or loss of goodwill, costs, or attorney
fees.
The exclusive remedy available to you shall be the right to pursue claims for actual damages that are directly
caused by acts or omissions that are breaches by a CLA party of our duties owed under this MSA and the
specific SOW thereunder, but any recovery on any such claims shall not exceed the fees actually paid by you
to CLA pursuant to the SOW that gives rise to the claim.
Time limitation
The nature of our services makes it difficult, with the passage of time, to gather and present evidence that
fully and fairly establishes the facts underlying any dispute that may arise between you and any CLA party.
The parties (you and CLA) agree that, notwithstanding any statute or law of limitations that might otherwise
apply to a dispute, including one arising out of this MSA or the services performed under an SOW, for breach
of contract or fiduciary duty, tort, fraud, misrepresentation or any other cause of action or remedy, any action
or legal proceeding by you against any CLA party must be commenced as provided below, or you shall be
forever barred from commencing a lawsuit or obtaining any legal or equitable relief or recovery. An action to
recover on a dispute shall be commenced within the shorter of these periods (“Limitation Period”):
Consulting services
•

For each service pursuant to an SOW, separately within twenty-four (24) months after the date we
deliver the services or work product pursuant to the SOW on which the dispute is based, regardless
of whether any CLA party provides other services for you under this MSA or other SOW.

•

Within twenty-four (24) months from the date of our last billing for services performed pursuant to
the SOW on which the dispute is based.

•

Within twenty-four (24) months after the termination by either party of either this MSA or the
district’s ongoing relationship with CLA.

Tax services
•

For tax return preparation, separately within thirty-six (36) months after the date when we deliver
any final tax return(s) pursuant to the SOW on which the dispute is based, regardless of whether any
CLA party provides other services for you under this MSA or other SOW relating to said return(s).
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•

For tax consulting engagements, separately within thirty-six (36) months from the date of our last
billing for services pursuant to the SOW on which the dispute is based.

•

For all tax return and tax consulting engagements, within twelve (12) months from the date when you
terminate this MSA or the district’s ongoing relationship with CLA.

Examination, compilation, and preparation services related to prospective financial information
•

For examination, compilation, and preparation services related to prospective financial information
(i.e., forecasts and projections), separately within twelve (12) months after the dates when we deliver
the work product pursuant to the SOW on which the dispute is based, regardless of whether any CLA
party provides other services for you relating to the work product.

Audit, review, examination, agreed-upon procedures, compilation, and preparation services other than
those related to prospective financial information
•

For audit, review, examination, agreed-upon procedures, compilation, and preparation services,
separately within twenty-four (24) months after the dates when we deliver the work product pursuant
to the SOW on which the dispute is based, regardless of whether any CLA party provides other services
for you relating to the work product.

The applicable Limitation Period applies and begins to run even if you have not suffered any damage or loss,
or have not become aware of the existence or possible existence of a dispute.
CLA shall be authorized to the following cash access services:
•

Using any or a combination of the following methods and approval processes, we will pay your vendors
and service providers based upon invoices that you have reviewed and approved:
o

Paper checks – we will prepare the checks for your approval and wet ink signature.

o

Payments using Bill.com – we will only release payments after you have electronically approved
and authorized such payments.

o

ACH/Wire – we will use this method as needed/as requested, with your approval.

We understand that you will designate one or more members of the Board to approve disbursements using
the above methods.
•

If applicable, access the entity credit card for purposes of purchasing products and services on your behalf
up to a certain limit that will be discussed with you and documented separately.

•

Obtain administrator access to your bank accounts for purposes of performing the duties documented in
our engagement letter identified above.

•

Take deposits to the bank that include cash.

•

If applicable, have access to cash-in-kind assets, such as coupons.

•

If applicable, initiate direct deposits or sign checks as part of the payroll processing function.
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Management responsibilities relevant to CLA’s access to your cash
All members of your Board of Directors are responsible for the processes below; however, we understand
that you will designate one or more board members to review and give approvals for disbursements. All
approvals must be documented in writing, either electronically or manually, then formally ratified in board
meetings and documented in the meeting minutes.
•

Approve all invoices and check payments.

•

Approve all new vendors and customers added to the accounting system.

•

Approve non-recurring wires to external parties.

•

Pre-approve for recurring wires, then Board will ratify approval.

•

Approve all new employees and all employee status changes prior to those employees or changes
being added to the payroll system.

•

Approve all credit card statements prior to those expenses being processed in the accounting system
and subsequently paid.

•

Approve (or delegate to the CLA controller if applicable) all customer and vendor credit memos and
accounts receivable amounts written off.

•

Review and approve (or delegate to the CLA controller if applicable) all bank statements and affiliated
monthly reconciliations.

Other provisions
Except as permitted by the “Consent” section of this agreement, CLA will not disclose any confidential,
proprietary, or privileged information of the district or you to any person or party, unless the district or you
authorizes us to do so, it is published or released by the district, it becomes publicly known or available other
than through disclosure by us, or disclosure is required by law. This confidentiality provision does not prohibit
us from disclosing your information to one or more of our affiliated companies in order to provide services
that you have requested from us or from any such affiliated company. Any such affiliated company shall be
subject to the same restrictions on the use and disclosure of your information as apply to us.
Pursuant to authority given by law or regulation, we may be requested to make certain workpapers available
to a regulator for its regulatory oversight purposes. We will notify you of any such request, if permitted by
law. Access to the requested workpapers will be provided to the regulator under the supervision of CLA
personnel and at a location designated by our firm. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide copies of
selected workpapers to such regulator. The regulator may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies or
information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies.
You acknowledge and agree that this agreement and the pricing structure and billing rates of CLA are sensitive
information which you shall not furnish or otherwise disclose to any third party without the prior written
consent of CLA or as required by law.
We will be responsible for our own property and casualty, general liability, and workers compensation
insurance, taxes, professional training, and other personnel costs related to the operation of our business.
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When performing the services identified in applicable SOWs, we will utilize the resources available at the
district, when applicable, to the extent practical to continue development of your personnel. During a portion
of our work, we may require the use of your computers. We will try to give you advance notice and coordinate
our use so it does not interfere with your employees.
The relationship of CLA with the district shall be solely that of an independent contractor and nothing in this
agreement shall be construed to create or imply any relationship of employment, agency, partnership, or any
relationship other than an independent contractor.
If applicable, accounting standards and procedures will be suggested that are consistent with those normally
utilized in a district of your size and nature. Internal controls may be recommended relating to the
safeguarding of the district’s assets. If fraud is initiated by your employees or other service providers, your
insurance is responsible for covering any losses.
The district agrees that CLA will not be assuming any fiduciary responsibility on your behalf during the course
of this agreement, except as may be assumed in a SOW.
CLA may, at times, utilize external web applications to receive and process information from our clients;
however, it is not appropriate for you to upload protected health information using such applications. All
protected health information contained in a document or file that you plan to transmit to us via a web
application must be redacted by you to the maximum extent possible prior to uploading the document or file.
In the event that you are unable to remove or obscure all protected health information, please contact us to
discuss other potential options for transmitting the document or file.
Consent
Consent to use financial information
Annually, we assemble a variety of benchmarking analyses using data obtained through our client
engagements. Some of this benchmarking information is published and released publicly. However, the
information that we obtain is confidential, as required by the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct.
Your acceptance of this MSA will serve as your consent to use of FITZSIMONS VILLAGE MD NOS. 1 - 3
information in these cost comparison, performance indicator, and/or benchmarking reports.
Subcontractors
CLA may, at times, use subcontractors to perform services under this agreement, and they may have access
to your information and records. Any such subcontractors will be subject to the same restrictions on the use
of such information and records as apply to CLA under this agreement.
Technology
CLA may, at times, use third-party software applications to perform services under this agreement. You
authorize CLA to sign on your behalf any vendor agreements applicable to such software applications. CLA
can provide a copy of the application agreement at your request. You acknowledge the software vendor may
have access to your data.
Termination of MSA
Either party may terminate this MSA at any time by giving 30 days written notice to the other party. In that
event, the provisions of this MSA shall continue to apply to all services rendered prior to termination.
CLA

is

an

independent

member

of

Nexia

International,

a

leading,

global

network

of

independent
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Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and believe this MSA accurately summarizes the
significant terms of our relationship. This MSA, along with the applicable SOW(s), constitute the entire
agreement regarding services to be performed and supersedes all prior agreements (whether oral or written),
understandings, negotiations, and discussions between you and CLA. If you have any questions, please let us
know. If you agree with the terms of our relationship as described in this MSA, please sign, date, and return.
Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Gigi Pangindian, CPA
Principal
Gigi.Pangindian@CLAconnect.com
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Response:
This agreement correctly sets forth the understanding of FITZSIMONS VILLAGE MD NOS. 1 - 3.

APPROVED:
____________________________________________
Signature
___________________________________________
Title: President
12/27/2021

____________________________________________
Date
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303-779-5710
fax 303-779-0348
CLAconnect.com

Special Districts Preparation SOW
This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by
and between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and FITZSIMONS VILLAGE MD NOS. 1 - 3
(“you” and “your”) dated October 7, 2021. The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you
wish us to perform in connection with that agreement.
Scope of professional services
Gigi Pangindian is responsible for the performance of the preparation engagement and other services
identified in this agreement. She may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the
performance of the preparation engagement.
Ongoing normal accounting services:
•

Outsourced accounting activities
−

For each fund of the district, CLA will generally prepare and maintain the following accounting
records:
o

Cash receipts journal

o

Cash disbursements journal

o

General ledger

o

Accounts receivable journals and ledgers

o

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

o

Schedule of disbursements

o

Bank account reconciliations

o

Investment records

o

Detailed development fee records

−

Process accounts payable including the preparation and issuance of checks for approval by a
designated individual

−

Prepare billings, record billings, enter cash receipts, and track revenues

−

Reconcile certain accounts regularly and prepare journal entries

−

Prepare depreciation schedules
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−

Prepare monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements and supplementary information, but
not perform a compilation with respect to those financial statements. Additional information is
provided below.

−

Prepare a schedule of cash position to manage the district’s cash deposits, funding for disbursements,
and investment programs in accordance with policies established by the district’s board of directors.

−

Prepare the annual budget and assist with the filing of the annual budget – additional information is
provided below.

−

Assist the district’s
appropriation/budget.

−

If an audit is required, prepare the year-end financial statements (additional information is provided
below) and related audit schedules for use by the district’s auditors.

−

If an audit is not required, prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit, perform a compilation
engagement with respect to the Application for Exemption from Audit, and assist with the filing of the
Application for Exemption from Audit – additional information is provided below.

−

Monitor compliance with bond indentures and trust agreements, including preparation of continuing
disclosure reports to the secondary market as required.

−

Review claims for reimbursement from related parties prior to the board of directors’ review and
approval.

−

Read supporting documentation related to the district’s acquisition of infrastructure or other capital
assets completed by related parties for overall reasonableness and completeness. Procedures in
excess of providing overall reasonableness and completeness will be subject to a separate SOW. These
procedures may not satisfy district policies, procedures, and agreements’ requirements. Note: our
procedures should not be relied upon as the final authorization for this transaction.

−

Attend board meetings as requested.

−

Be available during the year to consult with you on any accounting matters related to the district.

−

Review and approve monthly reconciliations and journal entries prepared by staff

−

Reconcile complex accounts monthly and prepare journal entries

−

Analyze financial statements and present to management and the board of directors.

−

Develop and track key business metrics as requested and review periodically with the board of
directors.

−

Document accounting processes and procedures

−

Continue process and procedure improvement implementation

−

Report and manage cash flows

−

Assist with bank communications.

board

of

directors

in

monitoring

actual

expenditures

against
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−

Perform other nonattest services.

Compilation services
If an audit is not required, we will complete the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form prescribed by
the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and perform a compilation engagement with respect to the Application
for Exemption from Audit.
Preparation services – financial statements
We will prepare the monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information if applicable of the district, which comprise the balance sheet – governmental funds
and the related statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance – general fund. The financial
statements will not include the related notes to the financial statements; the government-wide financial
statements; the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental funds;
statement of cash flows for business type activities, if applicable; and required supplementary information.
Preparation services - annual
If an audit is required, we will prepare the year-end financial statements of the government wide governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information if applicable, and Management Discussion and Analysis, if applicable,
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the district, and the related notes to the financial
statements. The year-end financial statements, including the related notes to the financial statements, will be
prepared for use by the district’s auditors.
Preparation services – prospective financial information (i.e., unexpired budget information)
You have requested that we prepare the financial forecast, which comprises the forecasted financial statements
identified below.
A financial forecast presents, to the best of management’s knowledge and belief, the entity’s expected financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows for the forecast period. It is based on management’s assumptions
reflecting conditions it expects to exist and the course of action it expects to take during the forecast period.
The financial forecast will omit substantially all of the disclosures required by the guidelines for presentation of a
financial forecast established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA presentation
guidelines) other than those related to the significant assumptions.
The supplementary information accompanying the financial forecast will be prepared and presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial forecast.
References to financial statements in the remainder of this SOW are to be taken as a reference to also include the
prospective financial information, where applicable.
Engagement objectives and our responsibilities
The objectives of our engagement are to:
a. Prepare monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), except for the departures from U.S. GAAP
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identified above, based on information provided by you and information generated through our
outsourced accounting services.
b. As requested, apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of your
monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any
assurance that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements in
order for them to be in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for the departures from U.S. GAAP identified
above.
c. Prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes
C.R.S. 29-1-105 based on information provided by you.
d. Apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of the annual budget
without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no material modifications that
should be made to the annual budget in order for the annual budget to be in accordance with
requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105.
e. If an audit is required, prepare the year-end financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) based on information provided by you.
f.

If applicable, we will complete the Application for Exemption from Audit in the form prescribed by the
Colorado Office of the State Auditor and perform a compilation engagement on the application.

We will conduct our preparation and compilation engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services (SSARSs) promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and comply with the AICPA's Code of Professional
Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, and due care.
Engagement procedures and limitations
We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided to us for
the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion.
Accordingly, we will not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on the financial statements,
the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required), the year-end financial
statements (if an audit is required), and the supplementary information.
Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any misstatements in the monthly/quarterly/as
requested financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit, and the year-end
financial statements, including misstatements caused by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing
within the district or noncompliance with laws and regulations. We have no responsibility to identify and
communicate deficiencies in your internal control as part of this engagement. You agree that we shall not be
responsible for any misstatements in the district’s financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for
Exemption from Audit, and the year-end financial statements that we may not identify as a result of
misrepresentations made to us by you.
Our report
The compilation report on the Application for Exemption from Audit will state that management is responsible for
the accompanying application included in the prescribed form, that we performed a compilation of the
application, that we did not audit or review the application, and that, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
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a conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on it. The report will also state that the Application for Exemption
from Audit is presented in accordance with the requirements of the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and is
not intended to be a presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. The report will include a statement that the report is intended solely for the information and use of
the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
this specified party and may not be suitable for another purpose.
There may be circumstances in which the report may differ from its expected form and content. If, for any reason,
we are unable to complete the compilation, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if an audit is not required),
we will not issue reports on budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit as a result of this engagement.
No assurance statements
The monthly/quarterly/as requested financial statements prepared for the district will not be accompanied by a
report. However, management agrees that each page of the financial statements will include a statement clearly
indicating that no assurance is provided on them.
As part of our preparation of financial statements each page of the financial statements and supplementary
information will include the following statement: “No assurance is provided on these financial statements.
Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements, and the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted if applicable, For best
business type activities the Statement of Cash Flows has been omitted”.
If an audit is required, the year-end financial statements prepared for use by the district’s auditors will not be
accompanied by a report. However, management agrees that each page of the year-end financial statements will
include a statement clearly indicating that no assurance is provided on them.
Management responsibilities
The financial statement engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges
and understands that our role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP and assist
management in the presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except for the
departures from U.S. GAAP identified above.
The annual budget engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and
understands that our role is to prepare the annual budget in accordance with the requirements prescribed by
Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105 and assist management in the presentation of the annual budget in
accordance with the requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105.
The Application for Exemption from Audit engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that
management acknowledges and understands that our role is to prepare the Application for Exemption from Audit
in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor and assist
management in the presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor.
We are required by professional standards to identify management’s responsibilities in this agreement.
Professional standards define management as the persons with executive responsibility for the conduct of the
district’s operations and may include some or all of those charged with governance. Those standards require that
you acknowledge and understand that management has the following overall responsibilities that are
fundamental to our undertaking the engagement in accordance with SSARSs:
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a. The selection of the financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial
statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit.
b. The preparation and fair preparation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, except as
identified as above, the preparation and fair presentation of the annual budget in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29.1.105, and the preparation and fair
presentation of the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) in accordance with the
requirements prescribed by the Colorado Office of the State Auditor.
c. The presentation of the supplementary information.
d. The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if
applicable) that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
e. The prevention and detection of fraud.
f.

To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities.

g. The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information, including
significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare financial statements.
h. To provide us with the following:
i.

Access to all information relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements,
and the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) such as records,
documentation, and other matters.

ii.

Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the engagement.

iii.

Unrestricted access to persons within the entity with whom we determine it necessary to
communicate.

We understand that you are engaging us to make recommendations and perform services to help you meet your
responsibilities relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, the annual budget,
and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable).
For all accounting services we may provide to you, including the preparation of your financial statements, the
annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable), management agrees to assume all
management responsibilities; oversee the services by designating an individual (i.e., the Board Treasurer);
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for the results of the services.
Fees, time estimates, and terms
Our professional fees will be billed based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills required.
We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a technology and client support
fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as
work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended
if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid in full. If we
elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed even if
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we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us
for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.
The hour rates currently in effect for our services are as follows:
Principal
Chief Financial Officer
Controller
Senior
Staff
Administrative support

$300 - $425
$200 - $385
$180 - $250
$140 - $180
$ 80 - $150
$ 80 - $120

Out-of-pocket expenses such as out-of-town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not included
in the fees quoted above. We will also add a technology and client support fee of five percent (5%) of all
professional fees billed. The fee estimates are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and their
assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available on the dates required or
are not accurate, the estimated fees will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances require significant
additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a substantial increase in the fee
estimates.
Use of financial statements, the annual budget, the Application for Exemption from Audit
The financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) are for
management’s use. If you intend to reproduce and publish the financial statements, the annual budget, and the
Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) and our report thereon, they must be reproduced in their
entirety. Inclusion of the financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit
(if applicable) in a document, such as an annual report or an offering document, should be done only with our
prior approval of the document. You are responsible to provide us the opportunity to review such documents
before issuance.
With regard to the electronic dissemination of financial statements, the annual budget, and the Application for
Exemption from Audit (if applicable) that have been subjected to a compilation engagement, including financial
statements, the annual budget, and the Application for Exemption from Audit (if applicable) published
electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and,
therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in those sites or to consider the consistency of
other information in the electronic site with the original document.
We may issue preliminary draft financial statements to you for your review. Any preliminary draft financial
statements should not be relied on or distributed.
Municipal advisors
For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is not
acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you pursuant to Section 158 of the Act with
respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You should
discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and external advisors
that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.
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Additional provisions required by CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)
Unlawful employees, contractors, and subcontractors
We shall not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under this
contact. We shall not knowingly contract with a subcontractor that (a) knowingly employs or contracts with a
worker without authorization to perform work under this contract or (b) fails to certify to us that the subcontractor
will not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under this contact.
[CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)]
Verification regarding workers without authorization
We have verified or attempted to verify through participation in the E-Verify Program or the Department Program
[as defined in CRS 8-17.5-101(3.3) and (3.7) of the state of Colorado that we do not employ and contract workers
without authorization.
Limitation regarding E-Verify Program and the Department Program
We shall not use the E-Verify Program or the Department Program procedures to undertake pre-employment
screening of job applicants while performing this contract. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(II)]
Duty to terminate a subcontractor and exceptions
If we obtain actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this contract knowingly employs or
contracts with a worker without authorization, we shall, unless the subcontractor provides information to
establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with a worker without authorization.
(1) Notify the subcontractor and the district within three days that we have actual knowledge that the
subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker without authorization; and
(2) Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if, within three days of receiving notice that we have
actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker without authorization,
the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the worker without authorization. [CRS 817.5-102(2)(b)(A) and (B)]
Duty to comply with state investigation
We shall comply with any reasonable request of the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment made in the
course of an investigation pursuant to CRS 8-17.5-102(5). [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(IV)]
Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms and
provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign below and
return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and understanding of, and
agreement with, this SOW.
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Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Gigi Pangindian, CPA
Principal
Gigi.Pangindian@CLAconnect.com
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APPROVED:
____________________________________________
Signature
___________________________________________
Title: President
12/27/2021

____________________________________________
Date
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Pkwy., Suite 300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
phone 303-779-5710 fax 303-779-0348
CLAconnect.com

Special Districts Management Services SOW
This agreement constitutes a Statement of Work (“SOW”) to the Master Service Agreement (“MSA”) made by and
between CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (“CLA,” “we,” “us,” and “our”) and Fitzsimons Village Ranch Metro District
Nos. 1 - 3 (“you” and “your”) dated October 7, 2021. The purpose of this SOW is to outline certain services you
wish us to perform in connection with that agreement.
Scope of professional services
Matt Urkoski is responsible for the performance of the engagement and other services identified in this
agreement. They may be assisted by one or more of our authorized signers in the performance of the engagement.
Scope of Management Services
CLA will perform the following services for the District:
District Board of Directors (“Board”) Meetings

•
•
•
•
•
•

Coordination of all Board meetings;
Meeting Attendance: District Manager and/or designee will attend all Board meetings;
Preparation and distribution of agenda and informational materials;
Preparation of meeting minutes for all meetings;
Preparation and posting of legal notices required in conjunction with the meetings;
Other details incidental to meeting preparation and follow-up.

Recordkeeping

•
•
•

Maintain lists of persons and organizations for correspondence;
Vendor listing as needed or requested by the Board;
Repository of all District records and act as Custodian of records for purposes of CORA (as that term is
defined in the District’s Resolution Designating an Official Custodian for Purposes of the Colorado Open
Records Act, Sections 24-72-201 et seq., C.R.S.).

Communications

•
•
•
•
•

24/7 answering and paging services;
Website administration. It is recommended that the District have a website; however, CLA will not
provide a website for the District on CLA’s website. CLA will oversee daily management and
maintenance of the District website as needed or requested by the District;
Respond to routine inquiries, questions and requests for information regarding the District;
Periodic reports to the Board regarding the status of District matters and actions taken or contemplated
by the District Manager on behalf of the District as requested by the Board;
Provide liaison and coordination with municipal, county and state governmental agencies.
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Contract Administration

•
•
•
•
•
•

Insurance administration, including risk evaluation, comparison of coverage, processing claims,
completion of applications, monitoring expiration dates, processing routine written and telephone
correspondence;
Ensure all contractors and sub-contractors maintain the required insurance coverage for the
District’s benefit;
Bidding, contract and construction administration and supervision of project processes assigned by
the Board and project contractors;
Confer with and coordinate legal, accounting, engineering, auditing and other professional
services to the District by those professionals and consultants retained by the District as directed
by the Board (CLA itself will not and cannot provide legal services);
Represent the District with other entities and bodies as requested by the Board (but not as
its representative for legal matters);
Bid, contract, and supervise all District vendors

Document Administration

•
•
•

•

Provide coordination and administration for the continuing revision of the District’s Rules and
Regulations;
Provide framed aerial photographic mapping of the District, if requested;
In conjunction with and at the direction of the District’s legal counsel, coordinate all elections
for the District in accordance with state law, including preparation of election materials,
publications, legal notices, training session for election judges and general election
assistance; CLA will not serve as the Designated Election Official (“DEO”);
Administer any legal documents, permits, or agreements that relate to or District facilities
and any Rules and Regulations adopted by the Board.

Accounts Payable Services to be Provided:
•
•

Receive and process all invoices;
Coordinate review, approval and coding of all invoices with District Accountant and Board to
ensure timely payment

In addition to these services, when, in the professional opinion of the District Manager, other services
are necessary, the District Manager shall recommend the same to the Board or perform such services and
report to the Board the nature of such services, the reason they were required, and the result achieved;
provided however, with the exception of emergencies, that if such additional services are expected
to cost more than $2,000.00, the District Manager shall discuss such costs with the Board and receive
prior authorization to perform such services.
Fees, time estimates, and terms
Our professional fees will be billed based on the time involved and the degree of responsibility and skills
required. We will also bill for expenses (including internal and administrative charges) plus a technology and
client support fee of five percent (5%) of all professional fees billed. Our invoices for these fees will be
rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. In accordance with our firm
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policies, work may be suspended if your account becomes 60 days or more overdue and will not be resumed
until your account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will
be deemed to have been completed even if we have not issued our report. You will be obligated to
compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date
of termination.
CLA’S 2021 STANDARD HOURLY RATES FOR PUBLIC MANAGEMENT SERVICES:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Principals
Public managers
Assistant public managers
Public management analysts
District administrators
Records retention coordinators

$190 - $325
$190 - $325
$110 - $150
$110 - $150
$125 - $145
$ 90 - $115

Out-of-pocket expenses such as out-of-town travel, meals, and lodging will be billed at cost and are not
included in the fees quoted above. The fee estimates are based on anticipated cooperation from your
personnel and their assistance with preparing requested schedules. If the requested items are not available
on the dates required or are not accurate, the estimated fees will likely be higher. If unexpected circumstances
require significant additional time, we will advise you before undertaking work that would require a
substantial increase in the fee estimates.
Municipal advisors
For the avoidance of doubt, the district is not engaging CLA as a municipal advisor, and CLA is not a municipal
advisor as defined in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act or under
Section 158 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”). CLA is not recommending an action to you, is
not acting as an advisor to you, and does not owe a fiduciary duty to you pursuant to Section 158 of the Act
with respect to the information and material contained in the deliverables issued under this engagement. You
should discuss any information and material contained in the deliverables with any and all internal and
external advisors that you deem appropriate before acting on this information or material.
Additional provisions required by CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)
Unlawful employees, contractors, and subcontractors
We shall not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work under this
contact. We shall not knowingly contract with a subcontractor that (a) knowingly employs or contracts with a
worker without authorization to perform work under this contract or (b) fails to certify to us that the
subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract with a worker without authorization to perform work
under this contact. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(a)(I) and (II)]
Verification regarding workers without authorization
We have verified or attempted to verify through participation in the E-Verify Program or the Department
Program [as defined in CRS 8-17.5-101(3.3) and (3.7) of the state of Colorado that we do not employ or
contract workers without authorization.
Limitation regarding E-Verify Program and the Department Program
We shall not use the E-Verify Program or the Department Program procedures to undertake pre-employment
screening of job applicants while performing this contract. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(II)]
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Duty to terminate a subcontractor and exceptions
If we obtain actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under this contract knowingly employs
or contracts with an illegal alien, we shall, unless the subcontractor provides information to establish that the
subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with a worker without authorization.
(1) Notify the subcontractor and the district within three days that we have actual knowledge that the
subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker without authorization; and
(2) Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if, within three days of receiving notice that we
have actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with a worker without
authorization, the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the worker without
authorization. [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(A) and (B)]
Duty to comply with state investigation
We shall comply with any reasonable request of the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment made in
the course of an investigation pursuant to CRS 8-17.5-102(5). [CRS 8-17.5-102(2)(b)(IV)]
Agreement
We appreciate the opportunity to provide the services described in this SOW related to the MSA. All terms
and provisions of the MSA shall apply to these services. If you agree with the terms of this SOW, please sign
below and return a signed copy to us by email or U.S. mail to indicate your acknowledgment and
understanding of, and agreement with, this SOW.
Sincerely,
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Matt Urkoski
Principal
Matt.Urkoski@CLAconnect.com
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APPROVED:

____________________________________________
Signature

___________________________________________
Title: President
12/27/2021

____________________________________________
Date

141

Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: 50950D5CF1CB4CE6A74C9A4223208306

Status: Completed

Subject: Please DocuSign: 4.B. Fitzsimons Village MD Nos. 1-3.pdf
Client Name: Fitsimons MD #1
Client Number: 011-043403-OS01-2021
Source Envelope:
Document Pages: 23

Signatures: 3

Envelope Originator:

Certificate Pages: 4

Initials: 0

Sandy Brandenburger

AutoNav: Enabled

220 South 6th Street

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Suite 300

Time Zone: (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)

Minneapolis, MN 55402
Sandy.Brandenburger@claconnect.com
IP Address: 67.137.57.251

Record Tracking
Status: Original

Holder: Sandy Brandenburger

12/27/2021 4:25:26 PM

Signer Events

Location: DocuSign

Sandy.Brandenburger@claconnect.com

Signature

Timestamp

Karen C. McShea

Sent: 12/27/2021 4:33:14 PM

kmcshea@corporex.com

Resent: 12/27/2021 4:34:44 PM

Senior Vice President

Viewed: 12/27/2021 5:22:53 PM

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Signed: 12/27/2021 5:23:55 PM

Using IP Address: 174.198.145.125
Signed using mobile
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:
Accepted: 12/27/2021 5:22:53 PM
ID: 2da3e6dc-f0e0-4517-8591-174954737c42

In Person Signer Events

Signature

Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events

Status

Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events

Status

Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events

Status

Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events

Status

Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events

Status

Timestamp

Witness Events

Signature

Timestamp

Notary Events

Signature

Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events

Status

Timestamps

Envelope Sent

Hashed/Encrypted

12/27/2021 4:33:14 PM

Certified Delivered

Security Checked

12/27/2021 5:22:53 PM

Signing Complete

Security Checked

12/27/2021 5:23:55 PM

Completed

Security Checked

12/27/2021 5:23:55 PM

Payment Events

Status

Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/12/2019 8:04:21 AM
Parties agreed to: Karen C. McShea

142

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE
From time to time, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (we, us or Company) may be required by law to
provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and
conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign
system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this
information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature
Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to
use electronic records and signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign
system.
Getting paper copies
At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send
to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you
elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time
(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to
send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a
$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the
procedure described below.
Withdrawing your consent
If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures
only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and
disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures
electronically is described below.
Consequences of changing your mind
If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to
you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format,
and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to
receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents
from us.
All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically
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Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide
electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made
available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you
inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required
notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given
us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through
the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as
described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the
consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures
electronically from us.

How to contact CliftonLarsonAllen LLP:
You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically,
to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to
receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:
To contact us by email send messages to: BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com
To advise CliftonLarsonAllen LLP of your new email address
To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures
electronically to you, you must send an email message to us
at BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request you must state: your
previous email address, your new email address. We do not require any other information from
you to change your email address.
If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your
account preferences.
To request paper copies from CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided
by us to you electronically, you must send us an email
to BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request you must state your
email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at
that time, if any.
To withdraw your consent with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic
format you may:
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i. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page,
select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;
ii. send us an email to BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request
you must state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need
any other information from you to withdraw consent.. The consequences of your withdrawing
consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..
Required hardware and software
The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The
current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guidesigning-system-requirements.
Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically
To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to
other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have
read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for
your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address
where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further,
if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described
herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before
clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system.
By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm
that:





You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and
You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send
this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future
reference and access; and
Until or unless you notify CliftonLarsonAllen LLP as described above, you consent to
receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations,
acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made
available to you by CliftonLarsonAllen LLP during the course of your relationship with
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP.
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LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING
and
AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED
June 23, 2022

Denver

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 E Crescent Pkwy #300
Greenwood Village, CO 80111
Attention: Anna Jones

Civil
Structural
Integrated Services

This letter represents our understanding of the scope and fee for the Fitzsimons Village Metro
District Engineer located in Aurora, Colorado and serves as authorization to proceed.
BASIC SCOPE OF SERVICES:
S. A. Miro, Inc. will provide Civil Engineering services with the following scope summary:
Provide metro district engineering services related to the inspection and maintenance of the
Fitzsimons Village stormwater system as outlined in the approved Stormwater Management Facility
Inspection and Maintenance (I&M) Plan by the City of Aurora dated 03/23/21.
Other services include assisting in coordinating maintenance services: finding vacuum truck
excavating services, writing scope RFP’s for such companies, make recommendations to Fitzsimons
Metro District, and post-cleaning inspections. City of Aurora requires annual reporting forms to be
provided to them prior to May 31st of each year.
This scope and fee is valid once the contract is signed and up to June 1, 2023. Subsequent scope and
fee will be renegotiated each year.
It is understood and agreed that S. A. Miro, Inc.’s Scope of Services under this agreement does not
include project observation or review of Contractor’s performance or any other construction phase
services, and that such services will be provided by the Client. The Client assumes all responsibility
for interpretation of the Contract Documents and for construction observation and the Client waives
any claims against S. A. Miro, Inc. that may be in any way connected thereto.
In addition, Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless
S. A. Miro, Inc., its officers, directors, employees and subconsultants (collectively, Miro) against all
damages, liabilities or costs, arising out of or in any way connected with the performance of such
services by other persons or entities from any and all claims arising from modifications,
clarifications, interpretations, adjustments or changes made to the Construction Documents to
reflect changed field or other conditions, except for claims arising from the sole negligence of S. A.
Miro, Inc.

S. A. MIRO, INC. 4582 South Ulster St. Pkwy., Suite 750 Denver, Colorado 80237

www.samiro.com

Tel 303-741-3737
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EXCLUSIONS / ADDITIONAL SERVICES:
The following items are excluded from this Scope of Services. S. A. Miro, Inc. assumes no
responsibility to perform any services not specifically listed in the Basic Scope of Services. Upon
request of these services by the Client, a written fee proposal will be submitted by S. A. Miro, Inc.
Agreement in writing to these fees must be obtained prior to our undertaking the work. Any
additional services, including but not limited to, amendments, or change orders, shall be bound by
the same terms and conditions of this agreement.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Services to make measured drawings of or to investigate existing conditions or facilities
or to verify the accuracy of drawings or information furnished by others.
Services resulting from significant changes in the extent of the Project or major changes
in documentation previously accepted by Client where changes are due to causes
beyond our control.
Preparing documents for alternate bids requested by Client for work which is not
exceeded or for out-of-sequence work.
Furnishing the services of special consultants.
Design services relative to future facilities, systems and equipment which are not
intended to be constructed as part of the project.
Gas, electric, or telephone coordination or design.
Providing probable construction costs or quantity surveys or inventories of material,
equipment or labor.
Making revisions in drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are
inconsistent with prior approvals or instructions and are due to causes beyond our
control.
Providing consultation concerning replacement of any work damaged during
construction or furnishing professional services as may be required in connection with
the replacement of such work.
Providing professional services made necessary by the default of the Contractor or by
major defects in the work of the Contractor in the performance of the Construction
Contract.
Providing extensive representation at the site during the construction process.
Providing services after the issuance to the OWNER of the final certificate for payment.
Preparing a reproducible record of drawings showing reported significant changes made
during the construction process based on information furnished partly by others.

FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES:
Time and Materials (Not to Exceed) as follows:

$10,000.00

REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES:
Project related expenses are included in the professional services fees itemized above.
NOTE:
We will proceed with the services upon receipt of this signed letter verifying the scope and fee.
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If this description of scope and fee does not meet with your approval, please contact JASON CARR
or me immediately. Thank you for the opportunity to provide these services for you. We look
forward to a mutually successful project.
This Letter of Understanding and its attachments represent the entire understanding between you
and us in respect of the Project and may only be modified in writing signed by both of us. The
attached Terms and Conditions and Limit of Liability are made a part of this agreement, unless
stipulated otherwise in prevailing contract. If it satisfactorily sets forth your understanding of the
arrangement between us, we would appreciate a signed copy of this proposal returned to our office.
If S. A. Miro, Inc. receives a notice to proceed on the project from the Client by email, it is
assumed that Client is in agreement with the scope and fees detailed herein. The attached Terms
and Conditions and Limit of Liability will apply until such time as a prevailing contract is negotiated
and signed by both parties.
In witness whereof, the individuals signing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
power and authority to enter into this Agreement and bind the parties for whom they sign.

Proposed by:

Accepted by:

S. A. MIRO, INC.
Consulting Engineers

CLIFTONLARSONALLEN, LLP

By: _

By:
David W. Lewis, P.E.

Title:

President

Attachments: Hourly Rate Schedule
Terms and Conditions

Title:
Printed Name:
Date:

TRR/trr (L:\2022 Fee proposals\CLA.FitzMetroEng.LU.trr.docx)
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S. A. MIRO, INC.

HOURLY BILLING RATES

4582 South Ulster St. Pkwy.
Suite 750
Denver, Colorado 80237

January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022

S. A. Miro, Inc. (Miro) intends to perform professional engineering services specifically described in the scope and fee
proposal to which this exhibit is attached. This attachment is made a part of the Agreement between Miro and its
Client. The following hourly billing rates shall apply to all hourly fees related to this project, subject to annual review:

Principal/Vice President
Associate Principal
Associate
Senior Project Engineer
Project Engineer
Senior Designer
Design Engineer II
Design Engineer I
BIM Technician
Project Administrator
Administration/Clerical

250.00
235.00
210.00
190.00
185.00
180.00
165.00
150.00
115.00
95.00
80.00

S. A. MIRO, INC.
These Terms and Conditions are made part of the attached agreement, unless stipulated otherwise in prevailing contract.
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GENERAL TERMS
AND CONDITIONS

S. A. Miro, Inc. (Miro) intends to perform professional services specifically described in its scope and fee proposal and made a part of the Agreement between Miro and its Client.
To that extent, the following terms and conditions apply.
Responsibilities
of Client

The Client shall provide all criteria and full information to meet the requirements of the project, including but not limited to appropriate soil, subsurface and
environmental testing and/or surveying data when requested by S. A. Miro, Inc. The Client will give prompt notice of any development that affects the scope and/or
timing of Miro’s services. If, at any time, the scope of the project is changed from that defined in the Agreement, the scope and compensation shall be subject to
renegotiation.

Period
of Service

Miro expects to begin services promptly after receipt of Authorization and Notice to Proceed and to complete our services according to a mutually agreed-upon
schedule. The services of Miro and compensation for said services shall progress in an orderly and continuous manner as specified in the Agreement. If there are
protracted delays for reasons beyond our control, or if Construction Phase Services are a part of our scope and are not started within the customary period of time
after completion of our final drawings and specifications, Miro would expect to renegotiate the basis for our compensation in order to take into consideration changes
in price indices and pay scales applicable to the period when services are in fact being rendered.

Invoices

Miro will present progress invoices to the Client monthly and a final bill upon completion of the services. Each invoice is due 30 days from date of invoice. If payment
is not received in a timely manner, Miro reserves the right, upon seven days’ written notice, to suspend work until payment is received or a mutually agreed-upon
resolution is secured. Miro reserves the right to suspend commencement of the Construction Phase Services until payment for design services is satisfactorily
tendered. If the project is postponed, delayed, suspended or abandoned for any reason other than previously cited, Miro will be paid for all work already performed,
based on the fee agreed to in the Agreement, plus additional costs incurred by Miro due to said postponement, delay, suspension or abandonment.

Standard
of Care

Services under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently
practicing under similar conditions in the locality of the project.

Quality Standards Miro maintains quality control procedures for the general guidance of its staff in providing services under this Agreement. Such procedures may be modified by Miro
from time to time as appropriate to Miro’s professional practice. Miro shall utilize these quality control procedures to the extent practicable in rendering services in
accordance with the standard of professional care.
The Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless Miro its officers, directors, owners, employees, shareholders, and
Confidential
Communications subconsultants, against all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, arising or allegedly arising from the rendering of
confidential opinions about the past or current performance and/or qualifications of others engaged or being considered for engagement directly or indirectly by the
Client.
Defects
in Service

The Client shall promptly report to Miro any alleged defects or suspected defects in Miro’s services of which the Client becomes aware, so that Miro may take
measures to minimize the consequences of such a defect. The Client further agrees to impose a similar notification requirement on all contractors in its
Client/Contractor contract and shall require all subcontracts at any level to contain a like requirement. Failure by the Client and the Client’s contractors or
subcontractors to notify Miro shall relieve Miro of the costs of remedying the defects above the sum such remedy would have cost had prompt notification been given
when such defects were first discovered.

Ownership
of Documents

Documents and data, including, but not limited to, drawings and specifications, as instruments of service, are property of Miro whether the work for which they are
prepared is executed or not, and are not to be used on other work, including repetitive construction, except by specific written agreement. Such documents may be
retained by the Client with other documents pertaining to the project. In any circumstances, documents shall not be altered in any manner without the express written
permission of Miro. Miro is expressly released from any liability associated with unauthorized use of these documents.

Miro does not assume responsibility for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, schedule, or for safety precautions and programs in
Construction
Means & Methods connection with the work. No assumption of responsibility is taken for the Contractor’s failure to carry out the work in accordance with the contract requirements or for
stopping the work in the event of such failure. Miro’s review of the Contractor’s performance is not intended to include review of the adequacy of safety measures, in,
and costs
on, or near the construction site. Any opinions of probable project costs or construction costs rendered by Miro represents its best judgment and are furnished for
general guidance. Miro makes no warranty or guarantee, either expressed or implied, as to the accuracy of such opinions as compared to bid or actual costs.
Indemnity

The Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless Miro, its officers, directors, employees, shareholders, owners, and
subconsultants (collectively, Miro) against all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, to the extent caused by the Client’s
negligent acts in connection with the Project and the acts of its contractors, subcontractors or consultants or anyone for whom the Client is legally liable. Neither the
Client nor Miro shall be obligated to indemnify the other party in any manner whatsoever for the other party’s own negligence. If Miro has been asked by the Client to
subcontract certain geotechnical, survey, laboratory testing or other services on behalf of the Client, Miro agrees to do so only as an accommodation to the Client and
in reliance upon the Client’s assurance that the Client will make no claim nor bring any action at law or in equity against Miro as a result of this subcontracted service.
The Client understands that Miro will coordinate the services of its subconsultants, but that it is neither trained nor knowledgeable in the procedures or results of the
subconsultant’s services and the Client shall not rely upon Miro to check the quality or accuracy of their services. The Client agrees to the fullest extent permitted by
law to indemnify and hold Miro its officers, directors, owners, employees, shareholders, and subconsultants harmless from any damage, liability or cost (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of defense) arising from the services performed by subconsultants except only those damages, liabilities or costs caused by the
sole negligence or willful misconduct of Miro.

Hazardous
The Client agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Miro its officers, directors, owners, employees, shareholders, and subconsultants for any and all hazardous
Waste or Toxic
waste or toxic substance claims that may arise in connection with services performed by Miro or that may arise in connection with the project. As used herein the term
Substance Claims “hazardous waste or toxic substance claims” shall include, but not be limited to, lawsuits, demand for arbitration, citations, charges, demands or any type of payment
or performance of claimed legal obligation, alleged violations of statutes, ordinances, or regulation or any demands for payment of taxes or fines, such claims being in
any way related to any hazardous wastes or toxic substances.
Dispute
Resolution

In the event disputes are not satisfactorily resolved through informal discussions, the Client and Miro agree that all disputes between them arising out of or relating to
this Agreement or the Project shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. In the event the parties to this Agreement are
unable to reach a settlement of any dispute arising out of this Agreement or related to the services under this Agreement, then such disputes may, with the consent of
both parties, be settled by binding arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association current as of the
date of this Agreement.

Limitation
of Liability

To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Client agrees to limit the liability of Miro, its officers, directors, owners, employees, shareholders, and subconsultants, to
the Client and anyone claiming by or through the Client, for claims, losses, costs or damages, including attorney fees and costs of any nature whatsoever, such that
Miro’s total aggregate liability to all those named will not exceed the total compensation for services under this agreement or to the Project, or will not, exceed
$50,000.00, whichever is greater. It is the intent this limitation apply to all liability and causes of action, however alleged or arising.

Project
Suspension

If the Project is suspended by the Client for more than 30 consecutive days, Miro shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of such suspension.
When the Project is resumed, Miro shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of the services. Miro’s fees for the remaining
services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

Termination

This Agreement may be terminated by either party on seven (7) days’ written notice to the other party in which case, Miro will be paid for all work already performed,
plus additional costs incurred by Miro due to said termination.

Third Party
Beneficiaries

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the Client or Miro. Miro’s
services under this Agreement are being performed solely for the Client’s benefit, and no other party or entity shall have any claim against Miro because of this
agreement or the performance or nonperformance of services hereunder.

Jurisdiction

This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.
a

Initials ____ Date _____
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From: Baca, Ann <Ann.Baca@childrenscolorado.org>
Sent: Tuesday, July 5, 2022 12:55 PM
To: Jones, Anna <Anna.Jones@claconnect.com>; Jason Nagel <jason@lionheartec.com>
Cc: Heidt, Ashley <Ashley.Heidt@claconnect.com>; Martinez, Emanuel
<Tizoc.Martinez@childrenscolorado.org>
Subject: [External] Re: Fitz Bridge
Think Security – This email originated from an external source. Be cautious with any links or
attachments.

Anna,
Good afternoon. We are requesting a lighting upgrade from florescent to LED across the Colfax
Bridge. The current lighting is not very bright and bulbs are beginning to go out. With this
upgrade to LED comes energy savings that we all are looking for but most important safety. The
current dim lighting leaves this bridge a breeding ground for unwanted homeless and vagrant
activity. They use this bridge to sleep in, use the restroom and a place to do drugs. Our
Children's Hospital staff do not feel safe using this bridge after dark. The brighter we make the
bridge and the elevators the less attractive these areas become for the unwanted activity.
Thank you,

Ann Baca
Children’s Hospital Colorado
Facilities Lead Health Pavilion, Village Pavilion, Early Learning Center, Fleet
720-641-7781 Mobile
Ann.Baca@childrenscolorado.org

INVOICES: facilitiesoperations.ap@childrenscolorado.org, accountspayable@childrenscolorado.org
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Mrs. Anna Jones
State and Local Government
Clifton, Larson, Allen LLP

June 17, 2022

8390 E Crescent Pkwy #300
Englewood, CO 80111

RE: Colfax Pedestrian Bridge @ Fitzsimons Lighting Upgrades
#2204018
Dear Mrs. Jones,
LionHeart Electrical LLC is pleased to submit our proposal for the above referenced project. Our
proposal is based via on-site job walk. Please note the following scope of work and
clarification/qualifications:
INCLUDED:
1. Provide labor and materials to demo (50) existing recessed fixtures and replace with new
LED/EM recessed cans in their place. EVO6VR 40/25 AR LSS MD FOL MVOLT GZ10 ELR DWHG
test switch/new trim.
2. Subcontract to scaffolding company to erect scaffold in the stairwells to reach the high cans.
Bridge will need to be shut down potentially for two days during this time. Please advise on
necessary action to allow the closing.
3. Test for proper functionality and working conditions.

EXCLUDED:

1. Existing switching to remain as is
2. Access Panels.
3. Repairs or corrections to existing electrical, code violations and/or substandard workmanship
existing in all electrical systems
4. Cutting, patching or painting
5. Engineering fees
6. Asbestos abatement
7. Housekeeping pads
8. Utility company fees
9. Permit and inspection fees
10. Any impacts related to COVID, including increase to material costs, delays, shipping or
manufacturer related.

LionHeart Electrical LLC - 5255 S. Rio Grande St. Littleton, CO 80120 - https://lionheartec.com
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CLARIFICATIONS:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

All electrical work is based on meeting the NEC 2020 code
Work to be performed Monday- Friday 7:00am- 3:30pm, unless negotiated otherwise
We have assumed cleanup of our identifiable debris.
Proposal subject to change based on construction schedule and start date
Due to market volatility, this proposal is only valid within 21 days of issue date

Base Bid Pricing –

$42,310.00

Potential for Xcel rebate- (customer to apply for rebate)

$1,250.00

Total after rebate

$41,060.00

We trust the above meets with the intent of your request and look forward to working with you on this
project. Please contact our office if you have any questions or need additional information.
Respectfully submitted,
LionHeart Electrical LLC,
Jason Nagel
Sr. Account Executive
Mobile - 720.987.7377
Email - Jason@LionHeartEC.com
www.LionHeartEC.com

All information contained within this document is considered strictly confidential.

Payment terms – NET 30 days, LionHeart Electrical will progress bill if project spans more than one
calendar month.
Any invoices not paid within the payment terms will be charged 1.5% per month or the maximum rate
permitted by law on past due accounts.

LionHeart Electrical LLC - 5255 S. Rio Grande St. Littleton, CO 80120 - https://lionheartec.com
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Scope of Services
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1
Service
Litter Pick, 2X per month
Clean windows on bridge, 3X per year
Power wash stairs, 2X per year
Deep clean bridge, 3X per year
Clean bridge, elevators, stairs and empty
trash receptacles, 5X per week
Can liners and other consumables
Total

2022 Pricing
$160.08/service
$195/service
$385/service
$850/service
$954.19/month

2023 Pricing
$169.68/service
$206.70/service
$408.10/service
$901/service
$1068.70/month

At cost as a pass thru
expense
$19,197.20

At cost as a pass thru
expense
$21,036.02
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Proposal #545
Date: 2/4/2022
PO #

Customer:

Property:

Alan Rodzen
Corporex
188 Inverness Dr. West Suite 120
Englewood, CO 80112

Fitzsimons Metro District 1
13100 East Colfax Avenue
Aurora, CO 80011

2022 Landscape Services Agreement
Fixed Payment Services
Description of Services
Contracted Services

Frequency Cost per Occ.

Annual Cost

Site Visits and Reports

3

$103.76

$311.28

Spring Clean up

1

$672.68

$672.68

Ornamental Grass Cleanup

1

$1,268.89

$1,268.89

Irrigation System Activation

1

$136.17

$136.17

Spring Aeration

1

$61.51

$61.51

Mow Operations

26

$96.25

$2,502.50

Irrigation Inspection

7

$48.42

$338.94

Early Summer Shrub Pruning

1

$659.96

$659.96

Late Summer Shrub Pruning

1

$659.96

$659.96

Safety Tree Pruning

1

$219.99

$219.99

Weed Control Beds and Hardscapes

7

$145.26

$1,016.82

Turf Pre-Emergent Weed Control

1

$62.35

$62.35

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #1

1

$62.35

$62.35

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #2

1

$62.35

$62.35

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #3

1

$62.35

$62.35

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #4

1

$62.35

$62.35

Fall Cleanup

1

$1,089.06

$1,089.06

Irrigation System Winterization

1

$150.00

$150.00

5
$96.84
Annual Maintenance Price

$484.20
$9,883.71

Winter Detail

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
6101 W 11th Ave #2 | Lakewood, CO 80214
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Optional Services
Initial next to optional services you would like added
to your contract.

Frequency Cost per Occ.

Annual Cost

Native Mowing

4

$1,592.43

$6,369.72

"Beauty Strip" Native Mowing

4

$232.40

$929.60

Fall Aeration

1

$75.00

$75.00

Additional Fall-Winter Cleanup

1

$1,089.06

$1,089.06

Pruning Service

1

$1,162.01

$1,162.01

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
6101 W 11th Ave #2 | Lakewood, CO 80214
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Payment Schedule
Schedule

Total Price

April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March

$823.64
$823.64
$823.64
$823.64
$823.64
$823.64
$823.64
$823.65
$823.64
$823.65
$823.64
$823.65
$9,883.71

By

By
Tim Flanagan

Date

2/4/2022

Date

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado,
LLC

Fitzsimons Metro District 1

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
6101 W 11th Ave #2 | Lakewood, CO 80214
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Services
Site Visits and Reports
The supervisor will visit and walk the site monthly to ascertain the quality of all work being performed and
create any reports necessary for improvements.
The supervisor will also notify the client of any items requiring attention or additional work.

Spring Clean up
In the Spring (March/April), SLC shall be responsible for gathering and removal of all leaves and debris
from beds and turf areas.
SLC will utilize mulching mowers where appropriate on all turf areas.
A crisp edge will be established along all cement walks and curbs adjacent to turf areas.

Ornamental Grass Cleanup
In February/March, SLC will cut to appropriate height all ornamental grasses and dispose of cuttings

Irrigation System Activation
SLC shall activate the sprinkler system (weather permitting) after April 1 or when agreed upon between
the SLC and Owner.

Spring Aeration
All turf areas to be core aerated as part of this contract.

Mow Operations
MOWING - All turf areas to be mowed on a weekly basis at an approximate height of 3”-3.5” identified in
attached Exhibit, during the growing season. Mowing may vary in frequency when the turf is growing at
a slower rate in the Spring and in the Fall. Clippings will be mulch mowed, known as “grass-cycling”, and
excessive clumps will be distributed or gathered and removed.
TRIMMING - At the time of mowing, all turf areas will be trimmed by mechanical means in those areas
inaccessible to mowers so as to present a well-groomed appearance.
EDGING - To be performed bi-weekly along all concrete walks and curbs adjacent to turf areas.
BLOWING- Grass clippings will be swept or blown from walks and curb lines.

Irrigation Inspection
The contractor shall assess the sprinkler system operation weekly to ensure proper functioning. Pattern
adjustments and controller programming will be performed as the Contractor deems necessary. Water
conservation will be practiced as much as possible.
Sprinkler system repairs will be made upon approval as necessary and billed as follows: Irrigation
technician (with truck) will be billed at the rate of $90.00 per hour plus materials and additional machine
time if required.
This includes raising or lowering heads for improved coverage and efficiency, clearing of plugged lines,
replacement of broken or missing heads due to circumstances other than those related to the services of
the Contractor.
The above rate also applies to redesign work, irrigation additions, valve locating, clock or electrical work,
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
6101 W 11th Ave #2 | Lakewood, CO 80214

Page 4/12

158

and anything that requires digging or excavation.

Early Summer Shrub Pruning
PRUNING - Contractor shall perform safety/aesthetic pruning of all deciduous and evergreen shrubs
within the project perimeters twice during the contract period. The initial pruning and shaping will be
completed in late Spring. The second will be performed in early fall. Pruning of nuisance growth from
shrubs and trees overhanging sidewalks and drives will be pruned as needed to maintain access. Plants
shall be pruned to the best of our ability to maintain natural form and good bloom. Pruning shall be
accomplished with proper tools and equipment. Debris resulting from pruning operations shall be
collected and removed by the Contractor immediately after pruning.
STRUCTURAL AND RENEWAL PRUNING - Pruning involving tree and shrub structural corrections
and/or removal of deadwood would be performed outside the parameters of this Agreement.
DISEASE AND INSECT CONTROL/PLANT FERTILIZATION - Chemical and fertilizer spraying,
injection, or granular applications are available on a species-specific basis, the cost to be determined if
necessary.

Late Summer Shrub Pruning
PRUNING - Contractor shall perform safety/aesthetic pruning of all deciduous and evergreen shrubs
within the project perimeters twice during the contract period. The initial pruning and shaping will be
completed in late Spring. The second will be performed in early fall. Pruning of nuisance growth from
shrubs and trees overhanging sidewalks and drives will be pruned as needed to maintain access. Plants
shall be pruned to the best of our ability to maintain natural form and good bloom. Pruning shall be
accomplished with proper tools and equipment. Debris resulting from pruning operations shall be
collected and removed by the Contractor immediately after pruning.
STRUCTURAL AND RENEWAL PRUNING - Pruning involving tree and shrub structural corrections
and/or removal of deadwood would be performed outside the parameters of this Agreement.
DISEASE AND INSECT CONTROL/PLANT FERTILIZATION - Chemical and fertilizer spraying,
injection, or granular applications are available on a species-specific basis, the cost to be determined if
necessary.

Safety Tree Pruning
Pruning of branches overhanging sidewalk below 8' in height will be provided mid-summer to provide
continued access.

Weed Control Beds and Hardscapes
One pre-emergent application to mulch bed areas is included in the contract.
SLC will spot spray all beds and hardscapes throughout the contract term for control and eradication of
weeds/weedy grasses in all beds and hardscapes.
Weed control in annual flower beds is not part of this contract.

Turf Pre-Emergent Weed Control
Problem turf areas will receive one pre-emergent treatment in the spring for the control of crabgrass,
weedy grasses, and broadleaf weeds.
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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A total of four fertilizations with appropriate weed control are included in this contract.
SLC shall provide for a complete chemical program for the control of weeds common to the turf.
The program shall provide preventative control where required, as well as curative chemical control. The
Contractor shall be selective in the chemical controls used so as to insure against an application which
may cause further damage to turf, trees or shrubs.
The Contractor shall provide for the complete safety of the user public, residents, and their properties,
and be responsible for meeting all Colorado State and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) licensing
requirements.

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #2
A total of four fertilizations with appropriate weed control are included in this contract.
SLC shall provide for a complete chemical program for the control of weeds common to the turf.
The program shall provide preventative control where required, as well as curative chemical control. The
Contractor shall be selective in the chemical controls used so as to insure against an application which
may cause further damage to turf, trees or shrubs.
The Contractor shall provide for the complete safety of the user public, residents, and their properties,
and be responsible for meeting all Colorado State and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) licensing
requirements.

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #3
A total of four fertilizations with appropriate weed control are included in this contract.
SLC shall provide for a complete chemical program for the control of weeds common to the turf.
The program shall provide preventative control where required, as well as curative chemical control. The
Contractor shall be selective in the chemical controls used so as to ensure against an application that
may cause further damage to turf, trees, or shrubs.
The Contractor shall provide for the complete safety of the user public, residents, and their properties,
and be responsible for meeting all Colorado State and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) licensing
requirements.

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #4
A total of four fertilizations with appropriate weed control are included in this contract.
SLC shall provide for a complete chemical program for the control of weeds common to the turf.
The program shall provide preventative control where required, as well as curative chemical control. The
Contractor shall be selective in the chemical controls used so as to ensure against an application that
may cause further damage to turf, trees, or shrubs.
The Contractor shall provide for the complete safety of the user public, residents, and their properties,
and be responsible for meeting all Colorado State and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) licensing
requirements.

Fall Cleanup
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
6101 W 11th Ave #2 | Lakewood, CO 80214
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In the fall, October/November, SLC will clean up and remove all leaves and debris from turf, beds, and
hardscape areas and dispose accordingly a minimum of two times.
SLC will utilize mulching mowers on all turf areas when appropriate.
A crisp edge will be established along all cement walks and curbs adjacent to turf areas.

Irrigation System Winterization
The sprinkler system shall be winterized in the fall before the danger of freeze damage to the system.
Winterization, if applicable, shall consist of evacuating all residual water in the lines.
Wrapping the above-ground irrigation backflow preventers in the Fall is available on a Time and
Materials basis. Initial here for approval._________ $75.00

Winter Detail
During October through March, all turf, shrub, rock, and garden areas shall be policed for the removal of
loose trash and debris, and weeds over 3" in height.
The supervisor will analyze existing shrubs and trees and recommend additional pruning if necessary.
The supervisor will be aware of all damage caused by snow removal operations and provide necessary
recommendations for repair and cleanup.
The supervisor will also schedule additional leaf cleanup as needed.

Optional Services
Native Mowing
All native turf areas will be mowed and trimmed at a 6" height at least 4 times per season or as directed
by necessity or the owner's rep.
Excess debris and cuttings will be removed and disposed of off-site.

"Beauty Strip" Native Mowing
Mow, trim, and edge a 6' wide band along perimeters and walks.
Cleanup and dispose of all debris as needed.

Fall Aeration
If deemed necessary, all turf areas are to be core aerated in the fall.

Additional Fall-Winter Cleanup
If the fall cleanup cannot be completed due to weather or extended warm conditions keeping the leaves
on the trees/shrubs, SLC will clean up and remove all leaves and debris from turf, beds, and hardscape
areas and dispose accordingly a minimum of two times.
SLC will utilize mulching mowers on all turf areas when appropriate.
A crisp edge will be established along all cement walks and curbs adjacent to turf areas.

Pruning Service
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
6101 W 11th Ave #2 | Lakewood, CO 80214
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PRUNING - Contractor shall perform safety/aesthetic pruning of all deciduous and evergreen shrubs
within the project perimeters twice during the contract period. The initial pruning and shaping will be
completed in late Spring. The second will be performed in early fall. Pruning of nuisance growth from
shrubs and trees overhanging sidewalks and drives will be pruned as needed to maintain access. Plants
shall be pruned to the best of our ability to maintain natural form and good bloom. Pruning shall be
accomplished with proper tools and equipment. Debris resulting from pruning operations shall be
collected and removed by the Contractor immediately after pruning.
STRUCTURAL AND RENEWAL PRUNING - Pruning involving tree and shrub structural corrections
and/or removal of deadwood would be performed outside the parameters of this Agreement.
DISEASE AND INSECT CONTROL/PLANT FERTILIZATION - Chemical and fertilizer spraying,
injection, or granular applications are available on a species-specific basis, the cost to be determined if
necessary.

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
6101 W 11th Ave #2 | Lakewood, CO 80214
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Terms & Conditions
THIS LANDSCAPE SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of 2/4/2022 8:07:08 PM between
SLC Services, LLC (“Sustainable Landscapes Colorado”), and Fitzsimons Metro District 1 (“Client”). If Client is other
than the record owner of each property where goods or services will be delivered under this Agreement, the
Client is executing and entering into this Agreement on its own behalf and as a duly authorized agent for the
record owner(s) of those properties. NOW, THEREFORE, Client and SLC mutually agree to the following terms and
conditions:
1. Services.
(a) For purposes of this Agreement: (i) the “Services” consist of the landscape maintenance, construction,
irrigation, and other general landscape services described in the “Scope of Landscape Services” attached hereto,
together with delivery or installation of any associated goods and materials, and (ii) the “Landscape Site(s)” consist
of the exterior landscaped areas for each of the site(s) identified in the attached Scope of Landscape Services,
where Services will be furnished by SLC in accordance with the Scope of Landscape Services. More than one Scope
of Landscape Services may be attached hereto, in the event of multiple Landscape Sites.
(b) During the Term (defined below), SLC shall furnish the Services or arrange for the Services to be furnished in
accordance with applicable professional horticulture standards and any local requirements or regulations in effect,
using appropriately trained, uniformed, and supervised personnel, and properly maintained equipment.
(c) All tools, equipment, surplus materials, landscape waste materials, and rubbish will be removed from each
Landscape Site after Services are completed.
(d) Any regulated substances required to be applied as part of the Services shall be applied in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations by properly licensed personnel. Other materials shall be applied in accordance
with the manufacturer’s directions.
2. Term. The “Initial Term” of this Agreement shall start on 04/01/2022 and end on 03/31/2023. Thereafter, this
Agreement shall renew automatically for successive one-year periods (each, a “Renewal Term”) on each
anniversary of the start date of the Initial Term (each, an “Anniversary Date”), unless either party gives written
notice to the other party of its intent not to renew at least 90days prior to the next Anniversary Date. The Initial
Term, together with any Renewal Term, comprises the “Term.”
3. Work Orders. If Client requests services from SLC that are not set forth on the Scope of Landscape Services or at
a worksite for which there is no attached Scope of Landscape Services, then SLC may elect in its sole discretion to
furnish such additional services and any related goods and materials pursuant to a written work authorization
signed by Client (each, a “Work Order”). For services, goods, or materials furnished pursuant to a Work Order,
payment shall be due from Client to SLC as specified by such Work Order or, if unspecified in such Work Order,
then upon delivery of the services, goods, and materials identified in the Work Order (the “Work Order Charges”).
4. Insurance. During the Term, SLC will maintain general liability insurance, automobile liability insurance, and
workers’ compensation insurance covering its activities in connection with the Services and any Work Order. Such
insurance shall be in commercially reasonable amounts. Evidence of such insurance will be provided to the Client
upon request.
5. Cooperation.
(a) Client will cooperate with SLC to facilitate the Services and will permit or schedule adequate access to the
Landscape Site(s) as required to perform the Services safely, efficiently, and within any specified timeframes. The
Client will notify SLC in writing of any limitation on access to Landscape Site(s) as soon as possible and in any event
at least 48 hours to any scheduled delivery of services, goods, or materials.
(b) If required, the Client will provide water with adequate spigots or hydrants or such other items as identified on
the Scope of Landscape Services.
(c) Client shall provide written notice to SLC of any proposed change in the ownership or management of the
Landscape Site(s) at least 30 days prior to the effective date of any such change. A change in the ownership or
management of the Landscape Site(s) shall not relieve Client of its obligations hereunder, including but not limited
to the payment of the Service Fee and any amounts due to SLC with respect to any Work Order unless Client shall
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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have given proper notice of termination pursuant to this Agreement.
6. Service Fee.
(a) For Services performed pursuant to this Agreement, Client shall pay SLC an annual service fee of $________
(The “Service Fee”), subject to annual adjustments as described below.

(b) Client shall pay the Service Fee to SLC in arrears through monthly payments according to the attached Billing
Information and Schedule (See attached Billing Schedule). If no Billing Information and Schedule is attached to this
Agreement or if the attached Billing Information and Schedule do not specify the months and amounts due, then
the Service Fee shall be payable in arrears in 12 equal monthly installments, beginning in the month
of April. Monthly payments are due no later than the 10th calendar day of each month. Overdue Service Fees or
Work Order Charges shall be subject to an administrative charge equal to the lower of: (i) 1.5% per month (18%
per year) and (ii) the highest rate permitted by law, in either case SLC Services Agreement (BV-1-30-2017) Page 2
multiplied by the unpaid balance. In addition to this administrative charge, Client shall reimburse SLC for all costs
and expenses (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and court costs) which are reasonably incurred by SLC in
collecting overdue Service Fees, Work Order Charges, and administrative charges.
(c) The parties hereby acknowledge that, notwithstanding the Service Fee, the monthly installment plan, and any
Billing Information Schedule attached hereto, the types and frequency of services, goods, and materials furnished
each month throughout the year may vary according to seasonal requirements and best horticultural practices.
The monthly installment plan and Billing Information and Schedule are implemented for Client’s convenience of
payment only and billings do not necessarily reflect the actual cost or value of Services performed during any
particular month or other billing periods. If this Agreement is terminated for any reason on a date other than an
Anniversary Date, then all sums paid by Client to SLC for Services performed since the most recent Anniversary
Date shall be subtracted from the time-and-materials value (as determined in good faith by SLC) of Services
performed since that date and, if the result is a positive number (a “Shortfall”), the Shortfall shall become due and
payable and Client shall promptly pay such Shortfall to SLC. A Shortfall is not liquidated or other damages arising
from a termination of the Agreement but represents the portion of the charges for Services performed prior to but
unpaid by Client as of the Termination Date. For the avoidance of doubt, in no event will a Shortfall invoiced to the
Client exceed the total amount that would have been received by the Service Provider had the terminated
Agreement continued uninterrupted until the end of its then-current term.
(d) Unless specified otherwise in the attached Billing Information and Schedule, every 12 months the Service Fee
shall be increased by an amount calculated by multiplying the Service Fee for the immediately preceding 12
months by 3%.
7. Termination.
(a) Either SLC or Client may terminate this Agreement without cause upon 30 days prior written notice to the
other party.
(b) If either party materially breaches the terms of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within 30 days
after written notice from the non-breaching party specifying such breach, then the non-breaching party may elect
to immediately terminate this Agreement by written notice to the breaching party. In addition to and without
limiting the foregoing, if Client fails to timely pay any Service Fees, Work Order Charges, or administrative fees due
under this Agreement, then SLC may elect, in its sole discretion, to (i) delay or cancel Services without further
notice to Client, and/or (ii) immediately terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Client.
(c) Either SLC or Client may immediately terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the other party if (i) the
other party makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, (ii) a petition of bankruptcy is filed by or against the
other party or (iii) all or substantially all of the other party’s property is levied upon or scheduled to be sold in a
judicial proceeding.
8. General Provisions.
(a) SLC will always perform the Services and any Work Order in accordance with all applicable workplace safety
requirements and standards promulgated by federal and local authorities. SLC will not at any time provide safety
evaluation, inspection, or consulting services under this Agreement or any Work Order for the benefit of Client or
any third party and, consequently, Client shall not rely on SLC to provide such safety-related services at any time.
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Further, SLC does not and will not at any time provide representations, warranties, or assurances as to the safety
(or lack of safety) of any Landscape Site(s) or Work Order site with respect to periods before, during, or after
Services are performed or Work Order services are performed and, consequently, Client shall not rely on SLC to
provide any such assurances at any time. If Client desires safety evaluation, inspection, or consulting services, or
safety representations, warranties, or assurances, then SLC and Client may execute and enter into a separate
written agreement whereby SLC will assist Client for an additional fee only in identifying (without recommending)
third-party service providers that Client may then, in Client’s sole discretion, elect to engage independently to
obtain safety services and/or assurances.

(b) This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the state where the Services will be furnished. If the Services
will be furnished in more than one state, then the law of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania will govern this
Agreement, except with regard to its conflicts of laws doctrines. Both parties expressly agree that any and all legal
proceedings arising under this Agreement will be brought exclusively in the state and federal courts located in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
(c) Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party; provided,
however, that consent shall not be required to assign this Agreement to any company which controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with SLC or in connection with an assignment to an affiliate or pursuant to a
merger, sale of all or substantially all of its assets or equity securities, consolidation, change of control or
corporate reorganization. This Agreement is binding on, and inures to the benefit of, the parties hereto (including
the record owner of the Landscape Site(s) if other than Client) and their respective heirs, legal representatives,
successors and assigns.
(d) This Agreement, together with any attached Billing Information and Schedule, attached Scope of Landscaping
Services, Work Order hereunder, and any other schedules and exhibits attached hereto, constitute the entire
agreement of the parties with respect to the Services and Work Orders and supersedes all prior contracts or
agreements with respect to the Services or Work Orders, whether oral or written.
(e) Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement may be amended or modified from time to time only by a
written instrument executed and agreed to by both Client and SLC.
(f) The waiver by Client or SLC of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as
a waiver of any other or subsequent SLC Services Agreement (BV-1-30-2017) Page 3 breach by Client or SLC of
such provision or any other provision.
(g) SLC’s total liability for any losses, damages, and expenses of any type whatsoever incurred by Client or any of
its affiliates, guests, tenants, invitees, and lessees (“Losses”), which are caused by wrongful acts or omissions of
SLC in connection with, or related to, SLC’s performance of the Services, shall be limited solely to proven direct
and actual damages in an aggregate amount not to exceed the amounts actually paid to SLC hereunder. In no
event will SLC be liable for special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, irrespective of the form or cause
of action, in contract, tort or otherwise, whether or not the possibility of such damages has been disclosed to SLC
in advance or could have been reasonably foreseen by SLC. Further, SLC shall not be liable for any Losses resulting
from the provision of Services or performance of any Work Order hereunder, if such Losses are due to causes or
conditions beyond its reasonable control, including but not limited to Losses in any way related to or associated
with state or local water regulations or mandates or SLC’s compliance or good faith efforts to comply with state or
local water regulations or mandates.
(h) SLC’s performance will be excused to the extent SLC is unable to perform as a result of accidents, acts of God,
extreme weather conditions, inability to secure labor and/or products, fire, earthquake and rules, regulations or
restrictions imposed by any government or governmental agency, or other delays or failure of performance
beyond the commercially reasonable control of SLC. For purposes of this Agreement, the parties agree specifically
that water conservation regulations or guidelines are specifically included within the above-referenced regulations
or restrictions, and that SLC shall not be liable for any failure to perform as a direct or indirect result of SLC’s
compliance with our good faith efforts to comply with state or local water regulations or mandates. SLC and Client
hereby agree to the foregoing terms and conditions as of the date first set forth above. By signing this Agreement
in the space provided below, the undersigned Client signatory hereby represents and confirms that it has full
power and authority to enter into this Agreement on its own behalf and on behalf of the record owner of each
Landscape Site, and that this Agreement is a legally binding obligation of the undersigned and the record owner of
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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each Landscape Site. Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC By signing this Agreement in the space provided below,
the undersigned Client signatory hereby represents and confirms that it has full power and authority to enter into
this Agreement on its own behalf and on behalf of the record owner of each Landscape Site, and that this
Agreement is a legally binding obligation of the undersigned and the record owner of each Landscape Site.
Sustainable Landscape Colorado, LLC
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Proposal #467
Date: 2/2/2022
PO #

Customer:

Property:

Alan Rodzen
Corporex
188 Inverness Dr. West Suite 120
Englewood, CO 80112

Fitzsimons Metro District 1
13100 East Colfax Avenue
Aurora, CO 80011

Summer Floral Containers
Fixed Payment Services
Description of Services
Summer Floral

Frequency Cost per Occ.

Annual Cost

Floral Design

1

$103.76

$103.76

Soil Prep Containers

1

$2,291.59

$2,291.59

Planting Containers

1

$4,526.66

$4,526.66

Floral Maintenance-Containers

8

$103.64

$829.12

1
$618.77
Annual Maintenance Price

$618.77
$8,369.90

Container Cleanup

Payment Schedule
Schedule

Total Price

June
July
August
September

$2,092.48
$2,092.47
$2,092.48
$2,092.47
$8,369.90

By

By
Tim Flanagan

Date

2/2/2022

Date

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado,
LLC

Fitzsimons Metro District 1
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Services
Floral Design
Design to provide full-season color with a selection of annuals, perennials, and ornamental grasses
based on existing bed locations and exposures.
SLC will utilize a 75:25 perennial: annual mix if determined by the owners rep.

Soil Prep Containers
Remove 6" of container soil and dispose
Add 6" of new soil
Mix soil

Planting Containers

Floral Maintenance-Containers
Maintenance includes weeding, deadheading, cultivation, and fertilization of all containers.
Initial fertilization will be an Organic Biotic Fertilizer.
Fertilization will occur twice a month.
All beds are to be monitored for insect and disease issues. Treatment is billed on a T&M basis.

Container Cleanup

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Terms & Conditions
If the contract is canceled after initial approval and the order for the plant material has been placed, the full
purchase price for the floral products will be due and billed accordingly.

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Proposal #546
Date: 2/4/2022
PO #

Customer:

Property:

Alan Rodzen
Corporex
188 Inverness Dr. West Suite 120
Englewood, CO 80112

Fitzsimons Metro District 3
13100 East Colfax Avenue
Aurora, CO 80011

2022 Landscape Services Agreement
Fixed Payment Services
Description of Services
Contracted Services

Frequency Cost per Occ.

Annual Cost

Site Visits and Reports

7

$51.87

$363.09

Spring Clean up

1

$708.98

$708.98

Ornamental Grass Cleanup

1

$252.14

$252.14

Irrigation System Activation

1

$85.73

$85.73

Spring Aeration

1

$164.99

$164.99

Mow Operations

26

$115.00

$2,990.00

Irrigation Inspection

7

$75.00

$525.00

Early Summer Shrub Pruning

1

$110.00

$110.00

Late Summer Shrub Pruning

1

$110.00

$110.00

Safety Tree Pruning

1

$55.00

$55.00

Tree Ring Maintenance

3

$48.42

$145.26

Weed Control Beds and Hardscapes

7

$48.42

$338.94

Turf Pre-Emergent Weed Control

1

$145.90

$145.90

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #1

1

$145.90

$145.90

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #2

1

$145.90

$145.90

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #3

1

$145.90

$145.90

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #4

1

$145.90

$145.90

Fall Cleanup

1

$1,154.43

$1,154.43

Irrigation System Winterization

1

$125.00

$125.00

10
$48.42
Annual Maintenance Price

$484.20
$8,342.26

Winter Detail

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Optional Services
Initial next to optional services you would like added
to your contract.

Frequency Cost per Occ.

Annual Cost

Fall Aeration

1

$245.98

$245.98

Additional Leaf Cleanup

1

$1,154.43

$1,154.43

Pruning Service

1

$0.00

$0.00

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Payment Schedule
Schedule

Total Price

April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March

$695.19
$695.19
$695.19
$695.19
$695.19
$695.19
$695.19
$695.19
$695.18
$695.19
$695.18
$695.19
$8,342.26

By

By
Tim Flanagan

Date

2/4/2022

Date

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado,
LLC

Fitzsimons Metro District 3

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Services
Site Visits and Reports
The supervisor will visit and walk the site monthly to ascertain the quality of all work being performed and
create any reports necessary for improvements.
The supervisor will also notify the client of any items requiring attention or additional work.

Spring Clean up
In the Spring (March/April), SLC shall be responsible for gathering and removal of all leaves and debris
from beds and turf areas.
SLC will utilize mulching mowers where appropriate on all turf areas.
A crisp edge will be established along all cement walks and curbs adjacent to turf areas.

Ornamental Grass Cleanup
In February/March, SLC will cut to appropriate height all ornamental grasses and dispose of cuttings

Irrigation System Activation
SLC shall activate the sprinkler system (weather permitting) after April 1 or when agreed upon between
the SLC and Owner.

Spring Aeration
All turf areas to be core aerated as part of this contract.

Mow Operations
MOWING - All turf areas to be mowed on a weekly basis at an approximate height of 3”-3.5” identified in
attached Exhibit, during the growing season. Mowing may vary in frequency when the turf is growing at
a slower rate in the Spring and in the Fall. Clippings will be mulch mowed, known as “grass-cycling”, and
excessive clumps will be distributed or gathered and removed.
TRIMMING - At the time of mowing, all turf areas will be trimmed by mechanical means in those areas
inaccessible to mowers so as to present a well-groomed appearance.
EDGING - To be performed bi-weekly along all concrete walks and curbs adjacent to turf areas.
BLOWING- Grass clippings will be swept or blown from walks and curb lines.

Irrigation Inspection
The contractor shall assess the sprinkler system operation weekly to ensure proper functioning. Pattern
adjustments and controller programming will be performed as the Contractor deems necessary. Water
conservation will be practiced as much as possible.
Sprinkler system repairs will be made upon approval as necessary and billed as follows: Irrigation
technician (with truck) will be billed at the rate of $90.00 per hour plus materials and additional machine
time if required.
This includes raising or lowering heads for improved coverage and efficiency, clearing of plugged lines,
replacement of broken or missing heads due to circumstances other than those related to the services of
the Contractor.
The above rate also applies to redesign work, irrigation additions, valve locating, clock or electrical work,
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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and anything that requires digging or excavation.

Early Summer Shrub Pruning
PRUNING - Contractor shall perform safety/aesthetic pruning of all deciduous and evergreen shrubs
within the project perimeters twice during the contract period. The initial pruning and shaping will be
completed in late Spring. The second will be performed in early fall. Pruning of nuisance growth from
shrubs and trees overhanging sidewalks and drives will be pruned as needed to maintain access. Plants
shall be pruned to the best of our ability to maintain natural form and good bloom. Pruning shall be
accomplished with proper tools and equipment. Debris resulting from pruning operations shall be
collected and removed by the Contractor immediately after pruning.
STRUCTURAL AND RENEWAL PRUNING - Pruning involving tree and shrub structural corrections
and/or removal of deadwood would be performed outside the parameters of this Agreement.
DISEASE AND INSECT CONTROL/PLANT FERTILIZATION - Chemical and fertilizer spraying,
injection, or granular applications are available on a species-specific basis, the cost to be determined if
necessary.

Late Summer Shrub Pruning
PRUNING - Contractor shall perform safety/aesthetic pruning of all deciduous and evergreen shrubs
within the project perimeters twice during the contract period. The initial pruning and shaping will be
completed in late Spring. The second will be performed in early fall. Pruning of nuisance growth from
shrubs and trees overhanging sidewalks and drives will be pruned as needed to maintain access. Plants
shall be pruned to the best of our ability to maintain natural form and good bloom. Pruning shall be
accomplished with proper tools and equipment. Debris resulting from pruning operations shall be
collected and removed by the Contractor immediately after pruning.
STRUCTURAL AND RENEWAL PRUNING - Pruning involving tree and shrub structural corrections
and/or removal of deadwood would be performed outside the parameters of this Agreement.
DISEASE AND INSECT CONTROL/PLANT FERTILIZATION - Chemical and fertilizer spraying,
injection, or granular applications are available on a species-specific basis, the cost to be determined if
necessary.

Safety Tree Pruning
Pruning of branches overhanging sidewalk below 8' in height will be provided mid-summer to provide
continued access.

Tree Ring Maintenance
A buffer area will be established chemically around all trees in turf areas and maintained chemically
throughout the contract period.

Weed Control Beds and Hardscapes
One pre-emergent application to mulch bed areas is included in the contract.
SLC will spot spray all beds and hardscapes throughout the contract term for control and eradication of
weeds/weedy grasses in all beds and hardscapes.
Weed control in annual flower beds is not part of this contract.

Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Turf Pre-Emergent Weed Control
Problem turf areas will receive one pre-emergent treatment in the spring for the control of crabgrass,
weedy grasses, and broadleaf weeds.

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #1
A total of four fertilizations with appropriate weed control are included in this contract.
SLC shall provide for a complete chemical program for the control of weeds common to the turf.
The program shall provide preventative control where required, as well as curative chemical control. The
Contractor shall be selective in the chemical controls used so as to insure against an application which
may cause further damage to turf, trees or shrubs.
The Contractor shall provide for the complete safety of the user public, residents, and their properties,
and be responsible for meeting all Colorado State and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) licensing
requirements.

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #2
A total of four fertilizations with appropriate weed control are included in this contract.
SLC shall provide for a complete chemical program for the control of weeds common to the turf.
The program shall provide preventative control where required, as well as curative chemical control. The
Contractor shall be selective in the chemical controls used so as to insure against an application which
may cause further damage to turf, trees or shrubs.
The Contractor shall provide for the complete safety of the user public, residents, and their properties,
and be responsible for meeting all Colorado State and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) licensing
requirements.

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #3
A total of four fertilizations with appropriate weed control are included in this contract.
SLC shall provide for a complete chemical program for the control of weeds common to the turf.
The program shall provide preventative control where required, as well as curative chemical control. The
Contractor shall be selective in the chemical controls used so as to ensure against an application that
may cause further damage to turf, trees, or shrubs.
The Contractor shall provide for the complete safety of the user public, residents, and their properties,
and be responsible for meeting all Colorado State and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) licensing
requirements.

Turf Fertilization w/ Weed Control #4
A total of four fertilizations with appropriate weed control are included in this contract.
SLC shall provide for a complete chemical program for the control of weeds common to the turf.
The program shall provide preventative control where required, as well as curative chemical control. The
Contractor shall be selective in the chemical controls used so as to ensure against an application that
may cause further damage to turf, trees, or shrubs.
The Contractor shall provide for the complete safety of the user public, residents, and their properties,
and be responsible for meeting all Colorado State and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) licensing
requirements.
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Fall Cleanup
In the fall, October/November, SLC will clean up and remove all leaves and debris from turf, beds, and
hardscape areas and dispose accordingly a minimum of two times.
SLC will utilize mulching mowers on all turf areas when appropriate.
A crisp edge will be established along all cement walks and curbs adjacent to turf areas.

Irrigation System Winterization
The sprinkler system shall be winterized in the fall before the danger of freeze damage to the system.
Winterization, if applicable, shall consist of evacuating all residual water in the lines.
Wrapping the above-ground irrigation backflow preventers in the Fall is available on a Time and
Materials basis. Initial here for approval._________ $75.00

Winter Detail
During October through March, all turf, shrub, rock, and garden areas shall be policed for the removal of
loose trash and debris, and weeds over 3" in height.
The supervisor will analyze existing shrubs and trees and recommend additional pruning if necessary.
The supervisor will be aware of all damage caused by snow removal operations and provide necessary
recommendations for repair and cleanup.
The supervisor will also schedule additional leaf cleanup as needed.

Optional Services
Fall Aeration
If deemed necessary, all turf areas are to be core aerated in the fall.

Additional Leaf Cleanup
If the fall cleanup cannot be completed due to weather or extended warm conditions keeping the leaves
on the trees/shrubs, SLC will clean up and remove all leaves and debris from turf, beds, and hardscape
areas and dispose accordingly a minimum of two times.
SLC will utilize mulching mowers on all turf areas when appropriate.
A crisp edge will be established along all cement walks and curbs adjacent to turf areas.

Pruning Service
PRUNING - Contractor shall perform safety/aesthetic pruning of all deciduous and evergreen shrubs
within the project perimeters twice during the contract period. The initial pruning and shaping will be
completed in late Spring. The second will be performed in early fall. Pruning of nuisance growth from
shrubs and trees overhanging sidewalks and drives will be pruned as needed to maintain access. Plants
shall be pruned to the best of our ability to maintain natural form and good bloom. Pruning shall be
accomplished with proper tools and equipment. Debris resulting from pruning operations shall be
collected and removed by the Contractor immediately after pruning.
STRUCTURAL AND RENEWAL PRUNING - Pruning involving tree and shrub structural corrections
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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DISEASE AND INSECT CONTROL/PLANT FERTILIZATION - Chemical and fertilizer spraying,
injection, or granular applications are available on a species-specific basis, the cost to be determined if
necessary.
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Terms & Conditions
THIS LANDSCAPE SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of 2/4/2022 7:52:47 PM between
SLC Services, LLC (“Sustainable Landscapes Colorado”), and Fitzsimons Metro District 3 (“Client”). If Client is other
than the record owner of each property where goods or services will be delivered under this Agreement, the
Client is executing and entering into this Agreement on its own behalf and as a duly authorized agent for the
record owner(s) of those properties. NOW, THEREFORE, Client and SLC mutually agree to the following terms and
conditions:
1. Services.
(a) For purposes of this Agreement: (i) the “Services” consist of the landscape maintenance, construction,
irrigation, and other general landscape services described in the “Scope of Landscape Services” attached hereto,
together with delivery or installation of any associated goods and materials, and (ii) the “Landscape Site(s)” consist
of the exterior landscaped areas for each of the site(s) identified in the attached Scope of Landscape Services,
where Services will be furnished by SLC in accordance with the Scope of Landscape Services. More than one Scope
of Landscape Services may be attached hereto, in the event of multiple Landscape Sites.
(b) During the Term (defined below), SLC shall furnish the Services or arrange for the Services to be furnished in
accordance with applicable professional horticulture standards and any local requirements or regulations in effect,
using appropriately trained, uniformed, and supervised personnel, and properly maintained equipment.
(c) All tools, equipment, surplus materials, landscape waste materials, and rubbish will be removed from each
Landscape Site after Services are completed.
(d) Any regulated substances required to be applied as part of the Services shall be applied in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations by properly licensed personnel. Other materials shall be applied in accordance
with the manufacturer’s directions.
2. Term. The “Initial Term” of this Agreement shall start on 04/01/2022 and end on 03/31/2023. Thereafter, this
Agreement shall renew automatically for successive one-year periods (each, a “Renewal Term”) on each
anniversary of the start date of the Initial Term (each, an “Anniversary Date”), unless either party gives written
notice to the other party of its intent not to renew at least 90days prior to the next Anniversary Date. The Initial
Term, together with any Renewal Term, comprises the “Term.”
3. Work Orders. If Client requests services from SLC that are not set forth on the Scope of Landscape Services or at
a worksite for which there is no attached Scope of Landscape Services, then SLC may elect in its sole discretion to
furnish such additional services and any related goods and materials pursuant to a written work authorization
signed by Client (each, a “Work Order”). For services, goods, or materials furnished pursuant to a Work Order,
payment shall be due from Client to SLC as specified by such Work Order or, if unspecified in such Work Order,
then upon delivery of the services, goods, and materials identified in the Work Order (the “Work Order Charges”).
4. Insurance. During the Term, SLC will maintain general liability insurance, automobile liability insurance, and
workers’ compensation insurance covering its activities in connection with the Services and any Work Order. Such
insurance shall be in commercially reasonable amounts. Evidence of such insurance will be provided to the Client
upon request.
5. Cooperation.
(a) Client will cooperate with SLC to facilitate the Services and will permit or schedule adequate access to the
Landscape Site(s) as required to perform the Services safely, efficiently, and within any specified timeframes. The
Client will notify SLC in writing of any limitation on access to Landscape Site(s) as soon as possible and in any event
at least 48 hours to any scheduled delivery of services, goods, or materials.
(b) If required, the Client will provide water with adequate spigots or hydrants or such other items as identified on
the Scope of Landscape Services.
(c) Client shall provide written notice to SLC of any proposed change in the ownership or management of the
Landscape Site(s) at least 30 days prior to the effective date of any such change. A change in the ownership or
management of the Landscape Site(s) shall not relieve Client of its obligations hereunder, including but not limited
to the payment of the Service Fee and any amounts due to SLC with respect to any Work Order unless Client shall
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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have given proper notice of termination pursuant to this Agreement.
6. Service Fee.
(a) For Services performed pursuant to this Agreement, Client shall pay SLC an annual service fee of $________
(The “Service Fee”), subject to annual adjustments as described below.

(b) Client shall pay the Service Fee to SLC in arrears through monthly payments according to the attached Billing
Information and Schedule (See attached Billing Schedule). If no Billing Information and Schedule is attached to this
Agreement or if the attached Billing Information and Schedule do not specify the months and amounts due, then
the Service Fee shall be payable in arrears in 12 equal monthly installments, beginning in the month
of April. Monthly payments are due no later than the 10th calendar day of each month. Overdue Service Fees or
Work Order Charges shall be subject to an administrative charge equal to the lower of: (i) 1.5% per month (18%
per year) and (ii) the highest rate permitted by law, in either case SLC Services Agreement (BV-1-30-2017) Page 2
multiplied by the unpaid balance. In addition to this administrative charge, Client shall reimburse SLC for all costs
and expenses (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and court costs) which are reasonably incurred by SLC in
collecting overdue Service Fees, Work Order Charges, and administrative charges.
(c) The parties hereby acknowledge that, notwithstanding the Service Fee, the monthly installment plan, and any
Billing Information Schedule attached hereto, the types and frequency of services, goods, and materials furnished
each month throughout the year may vary according to seasonal requirements and best horticultural practices.
The monthly installment plan and Billing Information and Schedule are implemented for Client’s convenience of
payment only and billings do not necessarily reflect the actual cost or value of Services performed during any
particular month or other billing periods. If this Agreement is terminated for any reason on a date other than an
Anniversary Date, then all sums paid by Client to SLC for Services performed since the most recent Anniversary
Date shall be subtracted from the time-and-materials value (as determined in good faith by SLC) of Services
performed since that date and, if the result is a positive number (a “Shortfall”), the Shortfall shall become due and
payable and Client shall promptly pay such Shortfall to SLC. A Shortfall is not liquidated or other damages arising
from a termination of the Agreement but represents the portion of the charges for Services performed prior to but
unpaid by Client as of the Termination Date. For the avoidance of doubt, in no event will a Shortfall invoiced to the
Client exceed the total amount that would have been received by the Service Provider had the terminated
Agreement continued uninterrupted until the end of its then-current term.
(d) Unless specified otherwise in the attached Billing Information and Schedule, every 12 months the Service Fee
shall be increased by an amount calculated by multiplying the Service Fee for the immediately preceding 12
months by 3%.
7. Termination.
(a) Either SLC or Client may terminate this Agreement without cause upon 30 days prior written notice to the
other party.
(b) If either party materially breaches the terms of this Agreement and fails to cure such breach within 30 days
after written notice from the non-breaching party specifying such breach, then the non-breaching party may elect
to immediately terminate this Agreement by written notice to the breaching party. In addition to and without
limiting the foregoing, if Client fails to timely pay any Service Fees, Work Order Charges, or administrative fees due
under this Agreement, then SLC may elect, in its sole discretion, to (i) delay or cancel Services without further
notice to Client, and/or (ii) immediately terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Client.
(c) Either SLC or Client may immediately terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the other party if (i) the
other party makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, (ii) a petition of bankruptcy is filed by or against the
other party or (iii) all or substantially all of the other party’s property is levied upon or scheduled to be sold in a
judicial proceeding.
8. General Provisions.
(a) SLC will always perform the Services and any Work Order in accordance with all applicable workplace safety
requirements and standards promulgated by federal and local authorities. SLC will not at any time provide safety
evaluation, inspection, or consulting services under this Agreement or any Work Order for the benefit of Client or
any third party and, consequently, Client shall not rely on SLC to provide such safety-related services at any time.
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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Further, SLC does not and will not at any time provide representations, warranties, or assurances as to the safety
(or lack of safety) of any Landscape Site(s) or Work Order site with respect to periods before, during, or after
Services are performed or Work Order services are performed and, consequently, Client shall not rely on SLC to
provide any such assurances at any time. If Client desires safety evaluation, inspection, or consulting services, or
safety representations, warranties, or assurances, then SLC and Client may execute and enter into a separate
written agreement whereby SLC will assist Client for an additional fee only in identifying (without recommending)
third-party service providers that Client may then, in Client’s sole discretion, elect to engage independently to
obtain safety services and/or assurances.

(b) This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the state where the Services will be furnished. If the Services
will be furnished in more than one state, then the law of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania will govern this
Agreement, except with regard to its conflicts of laws doctrines. Both parties expressly agree that any and all legal
proceedings arising under this Agreement will be brought exclusively in the state and federal courts located in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
(c) Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party; provided,
however, that consent shall not be required to assign this Agreement to any company which controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with SLC or in connection with an assignment to an affiliate or pursuant to a
merger, sale of all or substantially all of its assets or equity securities, consolidation, change of control or
corporate reorganization. This Agreement is binding on, and inures to the benefit of, the parties hereto (including
the record owner of the Landscape Site(s) if other than Client) and their respective heirs, legal representatives,
successors and assigns.
(d) This Agreement, together with any attached Billing Information and Schedule, attached Scope of Landscaping
Services, Work Order hereunder, and any other schedules and exhibits attached hereto, constitute the entire
agreement of the parties with respect to the Services and Work Orders and supersedes all prior contracts or
agreements with respect to the Services or Work Orders, whether oral or written.
(e) Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement may be amended or modified from time to time only by a
written instrument executed and agreed to by both Client and SLC.
(f) The waiver by Client or SLC of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as
a waiver of any other or subsequent SLC Services Agreement (BV-1-30-2017) Page 3 breach by Client or SLC of
such provision or any other provision.
(g) SLC’s total liability for any losses, damages, and expenses of any type whatsoever incurred by Client or any of
its affiliates, guests, tenants, invitees, and lessees (“Losses”), which are caused by wrongful acts or omissions of
SLC in connection with, or related to, SLC’s performance of the Services, shall be limited solely to proven direct
and actual damages in an aggregate amount not to exceed the amounts actually paid to SLC hereunder. In no
event will SLC be liable for special, indirect, incidental or consequential damages, irrespective of the form or cause
of action, in contract, tort or otherwise, whether or not the possibility of such damages has been disclosed to SLC
in advance or could have been reasonably foreseen by SLC. Further, SLC shall not be liable for any Losses resulting
from the provision of Services or performance of any Work Order hereunder, if such Losses are due to causes or
conditions beyond its reasonable control, including but not limited to Losses in any way related to or associated
with state or local water regulations or mandates or SLC’s compliance or good faith efforts to comply with state or
local water regulations or mandates.
(h) SLC’s performance will be excused to the extent SLC is unable to perform as a result of accidents, acts of God,
extreme weather conditions, inability to secure labor and/or products, fire, earthquake and rules, regulations or
restrictions imposed by any government or governmental agency, or other delays or failure of performance
beyond the commercially reasonable control of SLC. For purposes of this Agreement, the parties agree specifically
that water conservation regulations or guidelines are specifically included within the above-referenced regulations
or restrictions, and that SLC shall not be liable for any failure to perform as a direct or indirect result of SLC’s
compliance with our good faith efforts to comply with state or local water regulations or mandates. SLC and Client
hereby agree to the foregoing terms and conditions as of the date first set forth above. By signing this Agreement
in the space provided below, the undersigned Client signatory hereby represents and confirms that it has full
power and authority to enter into this Agreement on its own behalf and on behalf of the record owner of each
Landscape Site, and that this Agreement is a legally binding obligation of the undersigned and the record owner of
Sustainable Landscapes Colorado, LLC
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each Landscape Site. Sustainable Landscapes Colorado LLC By signing this Agreement in the space provided below,
the undersigned Client signatory hereby represents and confirms that it has full power and authority to enter into
this Agreement on its own behalf and on behalf of the record owner of each Landscape Site, and that this
Agreement is a legally binding obligation of the undersigned and the record owner of each Landscape Site.
Sustainable Landscape Colorado, LLC
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Diversified Underground Inc. Utility Locate Services Agreement
Client: Fitzsimmons Village

Date: Nov 22, 2021

This Agreement is entered into by and between Diversified Underground Inc. a Colorado corporation
hereinafter referred to as Company and the above mentioned Client hereinafter referred to as Client, under
the provisions of Colorado law and the terms of this agreement. The terms and conditions of this
Agreement and the rights and obligations of the Company and the Client shall be subject to and interpreted
in accordance with the laws of the state of Colorado, and any dispute shall be litigated in the State of
Colorado.

Scope of work:
Diversified Underground Inc. shall provide and furnish its own proper cost and expense all materials,
machinery, equipment, tools, superintendence, labor, insurance and other accessories and services
necessary to provide services in accordance with the conditions and prices stated in the Services
Agreement.
Client is a Tier One Member of The Utility Notification Center of Colorado (UNCC) and all "Request to
Locate" tickets will be scheduled through UNCC. All Identifiable lines belonging to Client will be marked
in a standard and normally acceptable method, as defined by UNCC and Senate Bill 00-184.
Upon receiving a Request, Diversified Underground Inc. will perform the actual locate verification within
two working days. In the case of an after hours emergency request, Company will respond to locate within 2
hours or contact contractor whom called in ticket to ensure no excavation takes place prior to Company
arrival.

Project Assumptions:
Parties agree that an accurate Locate will be eighteen inches (18") on either side of the mark, horizontally.
No liability will be assumed by Company for "un-locatable lines" or for "unavoidable damage." Unlocatable is defined as lines that are thought to exist but cannot be accurately located. Unavoidable damage
is defined by a situation where the prints (As Builts) would not show a line might exist; however, a line
does exist and is subsequently damaged.
Company will be responsible for archiving tickets from UNCC
A ticket will include all hookups and sites necessary to identify the underground facilities within the dig,
area but will not exceed 500 feet. A ticket is defined using the currently accepted guidelines as presented by
UNCC
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Services and Fees:
Company will be responsible for locating the following utilities: Water, Private Electric, Sanitary, Storm,
and Gas
Company shall charge the following rates for utility locates to the client:
Screened Tickets not requiring a visit to site –$5.00 per Ticket
Respond to and locate during normal business hours –$90.00 per Ticket
Respond and locate after hours as defined by UNCC - $180.00 Per Ticket
Services performed by Company under this Agreement will be provided in a manner consistent with
Industry standards. The Company shall provide the services for the Client at the pricing shown above.
Client agrees to these prices and the terms of this Agreement by signing this Agreement.

Special Notes:
Client shall provide Company with current and up to date As Built information, and provide updated
information as it becomes available.
During project, Company is under the guidance and direction of client. All project related direction will
come from client.
Company will provide at Clients request limited access to Company’s ticket management system.

Indemnification:
The Company shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Client and its past and present directors, officers,
employees and agents from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to
reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to the performance of the Work, but only to the extent
caused by the intentional or negligent acts or omissions of the Company, a subcontractor, anyone directly
or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable. Client shall have the right to
select legal counsel to represent it in connection with any claim, damage, loss or expense coming with this
paragraph, notwithstanding the Company’s obligation to pay the reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and
expenses incurred by such legal counsel.

Insurance:
The Company shall at its sole expense obtain and maintain through the period this Agreement is in effect the
following minimum insurance:
a.
Worker's compensation insurance in such amounts and covering all risks as provided and required by
employers under Colorado law;
b.
Commercial general liability insurance covering operations under this Agreement for bodily injury or
death, and real or personal property damage, not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $1,000,000
aggregate for occurrences during the policy period, with an additional $1,000,000 Umbrella Policy for
General Liability.
c.
Automobile liability insurance on all self-propelled vehicles used in connection with the Project,
whether owned, non-owned, or hired; public liability limits of not less than $1,000,000 for one person and
$1,000,000 for each accident; property damage limit of $1,000,000 for each accident.
The Company shall furnish Client with one or more certificates of insurance evidencing compliance with
the foregoing requirements before commencing the Work, and shall warrant its continued maintenance of
the foregoing insurance throughout the period this Agreement is in effect
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Term And Termination:
The term of this Agreement shall be for Two years from the date the Agreement is signed by Company and
Client. Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time for any or no reason upon 60 days prior written
notice to the other Party. If either Party terminates this Agreement before the Term is completed, the
Company shall be paid for the labor, materials and equipment actually provided through the date of
termination.

Invoice terms:
The Company will invoice Client on a Monthly basis. Invoices must be paid by Client within 30 days of the
invoice date. Invoices not paid within ten days of the due date will be considered past due and subject to a
late fee of 18% per annum. Invoices subject to collection will carry charges for reasonable attorney fees,
court cost, and collection fees that will become part of the total amount due.

I hereby certify that I have the authority to order the services specified in this document for the Client. The
prices, Scope of work and conditions of this agreement are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.
Authorization is hereby given to do the work as specified. Payment to Company will be made as stated
above.

Client Company Name:_____________________________________________________
Client Signature:__________________________________ Date:___________________
Name (Print):__________________________________ Title:______________________
Diversified Underground Inc.
Signature:_______________________________________ Date:___________________
Name (Print):__________________________________ Title:______________________
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07/01/2022

Maintenance Agreement Addendum
Exhibit A
TK ELEVATOR CORP and FITZSIMONS PEDESTRIAN BRIDGE hereby amend and supplement their duly executed and existing elevator
maintenance agreement dated 07/27/2011 contract number US13670 as set forth in this addendum. This addendum shall be made a
part of the existing elevator maintenance agreement, and in the event of conflict with other terms, conditions, purchase orders or
contract documents, this addendum shall govern. All terms and conditions set forth in the existing elevator maintenance agreement
will remain in full force and effect and apply to this addendum where no conflict exists.

Scope.

The terms and conditions set forth in the original maintenance agreement will remain in full affect except as specifically modified by
this Addendum.

Price.

The current monthly pricing of $277.40 will be discounted by 6.0%.

Term.

This addendum shall become effective on July 1, 2022 and its term shall be 12 months and will not be subject to early termination
unless mutually agreeable to both parties.

Acceptance.

Your acceptance of this addendum and its approval by an authorized manager of thyssenkrupp Elevator will constitute exclusively
the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein and it shall thereafter become part of
the parties’ agreement. All other prior representations or agreements, whether written or verbal, will be deemed to be merged
herein and no other changes in or additions to this agreement will be recognized unless made in writing and properly executed by
both parties. Should your acceptance be in the form of a purchase order or other similar document, the provisions of this agreement
will govern, even in the event of a conflict. This proposal is submitted for acceptance within thirty (30) days from the Date Submitted
by the thyssenkrupp Elevator representative indicated below. No agent or employee shall have the authority to waive or modify any
of the terms of this agreement without the prior written approval of an authorized thyssenkrupp Elevator manager.
thyssenkrupp Elevator Corporation:

Fitzsimons Pedestrian Bridge:

thyssenkrupp Elevator Corporation
Approval:

By: ___________________________________

By: ___________________________________

By: ___________________________________

(Signature of thyssenkrupp Elevator Representative)

(Signature of Authorized Individual)

(Signature of Authorized Individual)

KATHLEEN OLIVER
Account Manager

ANNA JONES

JOHN CANTY

(Print Or Type Name)

(Print Or Type Name)

303-517-6560

__________________________________

Sales Manager

(Print or Type Title)

(Print Or Type Title)

07/01/2022

_________________________________

_________________________________

(Date Submitted)

(Date of Approval)

(Date of Approval)
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THE FOLLOWING ARE POST PACKET ITEMS:
ITEMS THAT WERE DISTRIBUTED AT THE MEETING
AND NOT IN THE ORIGINAL PACKET

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2022

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MAY 31, 2022
General
ASSETS
Wells Fargo Checking
Colotrust
UMB Non PIF Revenue Fund
UMB - 2020A Reserve Fund
UMB - 2020A Bond Fund
Due from Fitzsimons Village No. 2
Due from Fitzsimons Village No. 3
Accounts Receivable
Receivable from County Treasurer
TOTAL ASSETS

Debt Service 2021 Bonds

Debt Service 2020 Bonds

Capital
Projects

Total

$

21,453
2,828
13,353
45,957
268

$

13,466
17,086
3,419
-

$

15,337
495,943
161,433
69,175
1,220

$

-

$

21,453
31,631
17,086
495,943
161,433
13,353
69,175
49,376
1,488

$

83,859

$

33,971

$

743,108

$

-

$

860,938

$

98,417
1,432
252

$

1,999
31,972
-

$

2,000
-

$

-

$

102,416
1,432
31,972
252

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Fitzsimons Village No. 2
Due to Fitzsimons Village No. 3
Due to ARTA
Total Liabilities

100,101

33,971

2,000

-

136,072

-

724,866

FUND BALANCES
Total Fund Balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

(16,242)
$

83,859

$

33,971

741,108
$

743,108

$

-

$

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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860,938

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
GENERAL FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
Insurance Proceeds
Interest Income
Operations and Maintenance Fees
Parking Revenue
PIF - Excess Collection Fee
PIF - Operations & Maintenance
Property Taxes
Property Taxes - ARI
Specific Ownership Taxes
TIF Property Taxes
TIF Property Taxes - ARI
Transfer from Fitzsimons Village No. 2 - Taxes

$

TOTAL REVENUES

79,378
8,500
38,000
89,250
5,088
509
3,489
31,500
6,500
20,106

$

33,112
3
79,378
3,031
21,723
37,307
2,561
256
1,428
22,605
4,521
17,720

$

33,112
3
(5,469)
(16,277)
(51,943)
(2,527)
(253)
(2,061)
(8,895)
(1,979)
(2,386)

282,320

223,645

(58,675)

59,325
6,904
4,830
84
13,230
3,000
15,000
17,000
25,000
5,127
310,500

24,719
2,185
1,684
42
5,513
9,989
882
2,288
17,091
5,737
3,185
12,000
144,901

34,606
(2,185)
5,220
4,830
42
7,717
(9,989)
2,118
12,712
(91)
19,263
1,942
(12,000)
165,599

460,000

230,214

229,786

(177,680)

(6,566)

171,111

178,980

32,500

(146,480)

178,980

32,500

(146,480)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

1,300

25,933

24,631

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

7,200

(42,171)

(49,371)

EXPENDITURES
General and administrative
Accounting
Accounting - Unbudgeted
ARI Payment
Audit
County Treasurer's Fee
District Management
District Management - Unbudgeted
Dues and Membership
Election
Insurance
Legal
Miscellaneous
Transfer to Fitzsimons Village No. 3 - O&M Fee
Operations and maintenance
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Developer Advance - Corporex
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

$

8,500

$

(16,242)

$

(24,742)

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
SCHEDULE OF OPERATIONS
AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
GENERAL FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

EXPENDITURES
Operations and maintenance
Corporex - Property Management
Republic Parking - Parking Enforcement
Roth Property Maintenance - Janitorial
TKE Corp. - Elevator Maintenance
UNCC - Utility Locating
HSS - Security
Various - Repairs & Maintenance
Colfax Bridge Repairs
Sustainable Landscapes - Landscape Maintenance
Sustainable Landscapes - Floral
Alternative Elevation/1 Able - Elevator Inspection
ResComm - Window Cleaning (Bridge)
Martinson - Snow Removal
Utilities
Light Fixture Repairs
Baysaver Cleaning
Colfax Bridge Painting
Inspection and Maintenance Report
Contingency
Total expenditures

$

10,500
37,800
16,275
3,150
270
10,500
30,000
15,000
6,500
5,000
1,000
95,000
15,000
7,500
15,000
30,000
5,000
7,005
310,500

$

14,729
8,040
1,346
211
2,279
11,824
33,112
4,113
61,373
7,875
144,902

$

10,500
23,071
8,235
1,804
59
8,221
18,176
(33,112)
10,887
6,500
5,000
1,000
33,627
7,125
7,500
15,000
30,000
5,000
7,005
165,598

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
DEBT SERVICE - 2021 BONDS FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
AURA Funding - Lodger Tax
AURA Funding - Property Tax
AURA Funding - Sales Tax
Interest Income
PIF - Debt Service

$

TOTAL REVENUES

294,000
380,000
78,000
10,000

$

119,312
628,982
26,294
293
3,419

$

(174,689)
(51,706)
293
(6,581)

762,000

778,300

16,300

752,000
10,000

774,881
3,419

(22,881)
6,581

762,000

778,300

(16,300)

EXPENDITURES
Transfer to Fitzsimons Village No. 3 - AURA Funding
Transfer to Fitzsimons Village No. 3 - PIF
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

-

-

-

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

-

-

-

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

$

-

$

-

$

-

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
DEBT SERVICE - 2020 BONDS FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
AURA Funding - Property Tax
Interest Income
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes
Transfer from Fitzsimons Village No. 3 - PIF

$

67,048
200
25,438
1,781
210,000

$

57,008
864
12,806
6,491
92,909

$

(10,040)
664
(12,632)
4,710
(117,091)

304,467

170,078

(134,389)

Bond interest - Senior Bonds
Bond Principal - Senior Bonds
Contingency
County Treasurer's Fee
Paying Agent Fees

312,750
15,000
2,868
382
7,000

193
7,000

312,750
15,000
2,868
189
-

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

338,000

7,193

330,807

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

(33,533)

162,885

196,418

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

579,984

578,223

(1,761)

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

$

546,451

$

741,108

$

194,657

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
Transfers from Fitzsimons Village No. 3

$

17,000,000

$

-

$

(17,000,000)

17,000,000

-

(17,000,000)

310,000
16,690,000

-

310,000
16,690,000

17,000,000

-

17,000,000

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

-

-

-

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

-

-

-

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Other Improvements
Public Infrastructure
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

$

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

-

$

-

$

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
SCHEDULE OF CASH POSITION
May 31, 2022
Updated as of July 7, 2022

General Fund
Wells Fargo Bank - Checking Account
Balance as of 5/31/22
Subsequent activities:
06/02/22 - Transfer from Colotrust
06/03/22 - Bill.com payables
06/07/22 - CenturyLink
06/08/22 - Xcel Energy
06/15/22 - Aurora Water
06/24/22 - PIF Deposit
06/30/22 - PIF Deposit
07/05/22 - Transfer to Fitz #3 UMB
07/06/22 - Transfer from Colotrust

$

21,453.28

$

2,827.56
(22,444.91)
(80.95)
(715.09)
(1,759.66)
4,964.10
7,881.10
13,621.55

Bank Balance
Anticipated Activities:
Anticipated insurance reimbursement
Anticipated developer advance
Anticipated bill.com payables - approved
Anticipated balance
COLOTRUST - PLUS
Balance as of 5/31/22
Subsequent activities:
06/02/22 - Transfer to Fitz #3 UMB
06/02/22 - Transfer to WF
06/02/22 - Transfer to UMB 2020A Bond Fund
06/10/22 - Property Tax Dist #1
06/10/22 - Property Tax Dist #2
07/06/22 - Transfer to Wells Fargo
07/06/22 - Transfer to Fitz #3 UMB
07/06/22 - Transfer to UMB 2020A Bond Fund
Anticipated balance

Debt Service
Fund
2020 A&B
Bonds

Debt Service
Fund
2021 Bonds
-

$

3,419.18
(3,419.18)
-

-

Total
$

21,453.28

-

2,827.56
(22,444.91)
(80.95)
(715.09)
(1,759.66)
4,964.10
11,300.28
(3,419.18)
13,621.55

25,746.98

-

-

25,746.98

33,111.74
27,000.00
(69,516.52)

-

-

33,111.74
27,000.00
(69,516.52)

16,342.20

-

-

16,342.20

2,828.18

13,465.84

15,336.90

31,630.92

(2,827.56)
268.33
13,352.60
(13,621.55)
-

(13,470.05)
42,481.48
(42,477.27)
-

(15,313.45)
1,219.76
(1,243.21)

(13,470.05)
(2,827.56)
(15,313.45)
1,488.09
55,834.08
(13,621.55)
(42,477.27)
(1,243.21)

-

-

-

-

UMB Trust Accounts:
Balance as of 5/31/22
2010/2020 Non-PIF Revenue Fund
Subsequent activities:
06/06/22 - Transfer to 2020A Bond Fund
Anticipated balance
2020A Bond Fund
Subsequent activities:
06/01/22 - DS Payment
06/06/22 - Transfer from 2010/2020 Non-PIF Fund
07/06/22 - Transfer from Colotrust
Anticipated balance
2020A Reserve
Required Amount: $579,585

Anticipated balance
Total anticipated balances $

-

17,085.97

-

17,085.97

-

(17,085.97)

-

(17,085.97)

-

-

-

-

161,433.15

161,433.15

-

-

(156,375.00)
17,085.97
16,556.66

(156,375.00)
17,085.97
16,556.66

-

-

38,700.78

38,700.78

-

-

495,943.08

495,943.08

-

-

495,943.08

495,943.08

16,342.20

$

-

-

$

534,643.86

-

$

550,986.06

Yield information (05/31/22):
Colotrust - 0.7911%

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
Property Taxes Reconciliation
2022

Property
Taxes
January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

Property Taxes
General Fund
General Fund (ARI)
Debt Service Fund

Specific Ownership Taxes
General Fund
Debt Service Fund

Treasurer's Fees
General Fund
Debt Service Fund

Delinquent
Taxes, Rebates
and Abatements

Current Year

Specific
Ownership
Taxes

Treasurer's
Fees

Interest

Net
Amount
Received

Due to County

% of Total Property
Taxes Received
Monthly
Y-T-D

Total
Cash
Received

Prior Year
% of Total Property
Taxes Received
Monthly
Y-T-D

$

15,436.63
2.26
109.43
75.09
-

$

-

$

1,503.46
1,729.98
1,715.13
1,554.53
1,415.33
-

$

-

$

(231.55)
(0.03)
(1.64)
(2.33)
-

$

-

$

1,503.46
16,935.06
1,717.36
1,662.32
1,488.09
-

0.00%
49.60%
0.01%
0.35%
0.24%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00% $
49.60%
49.61%
49.96%
50.20%
50.20%
50.20%
50.20%
50.20%
50.20%
50.20%
50.20%

2,094.77
1,557.33
18,836.35
1,880.83
1,811.05
18,573.85
2,044.00
1,835.44
2,080.20
1,826.52
1,872.71
1,867.50

0.00%
0.00%
37.12%
0.37%
0.07%
37.37%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
0.00%
37.12%
37.49%
37.56%
74.93%
74.93%
74.93%
74.93%
74.93%
74.93%
74.93%

$

15,623.41

$

-

$

7,918.43

$

-

$

(235.55)

$

-

$

23,306.29

50.20%

50.20% $

56,280.55

74.93%

74.93%

Mill Levy
AV: $508,773
10.000
1.000
50.000

Taxes Levied

% of Levied

Property Taxes
Collected

% Collected to
Amount Levied

$

5,088.00
509.00
25,438.00
31,035.00

16.39%
1.64%
81.97%
100% $

2,561.21
256.12
12,806.08
15,623.41

50.34%
50.32%
50.34%
50.34%

$

356.00
1,781.00
2,137.00

19.99%
83.34%
103.33% $

1,427.67
6,490.76
7,918.43

66.81%
303.73%
370.54%

$

84.00
499.00
583.00

14.41%
85.59%
100.00% $

42.49
193.06
235.55

50.58%
38.69%
40.40%

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Services Provided
The District was organized in July 2006 for the purpose of financing and providing public improvements
and related operations and maintenance services within and outside of the boundaries of the District.
The public improvements include streets, safety protection, park and recreation facilities, water, sewer,
transportation and mosquito control. When appropriate, these improvements will be dedicated to the
City of Aurora, Arapahoe County, or other such entities as appropriate for the use and benefit of the
District taxpayers and service users. The District was organized in conjunction with two other related
districts, Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 2 (District No. 2) and Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District No. 3 (District No. 3). The District's service area is located within the City of
Aurora, Arapahoe County, Colorado.
On May 2, 2006, District voters approved general obligation indebtedness of $382,440,000 for street
improvements, $382,440,000 for parks and recreation, $382,440,000 for water facilities, $382,440,000
for sanitation system, $382,440,000 for transportation, $382,440,000 for mosquito control,
$382,440,000 for traffic and safety, $382,440,000 for fire protection facilities or services, $382,440,000
for television relay and translation facilities, $5,000,000 for operations and maintenance, $382,440,000
for intergovernmental contracts and $382,440,000 for debt refunding. The District’s service plan
prohibits the District from providing fire protection and television relay and transmission facilities and
services unless they are provided pursuant to an agreement with the City of Aurora. The election also
approved an increase in ad valorem property taxes of up to $5,000,000 annually and allows the District
to collect fees of up to $382,440,000 annually for operations and maintenance. The District’s service
plan limits total debt issuance to no more than $382,440,000.
The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the date of
the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course of
actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material.
The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted.
Revenues
Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by
December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual
properties as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes
during the ensuing calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the
taxpayer’s election, in February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August, and generally,
sale of the tax liens on delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer
remits the taxes collected monthly to the District.
The calculation of the taxes levied is displayed on the Property Tax Summary page of the budget using
the adopted mill levy imposed by the District.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues (continued)
Specific Ownership Taxes
Specific ownership taxes are set by the State and collected by the County Treasurer, primarily on
vehicle licensing within the County as a whole. The specific ownership taxes are allocated by the
County Treasurer to all taxing entities within the County. The budget assumes that the District’s share
will be equal to approximately 7% of the property taxes when calculated from the current year’s gross
taxable assessed valuation.
Public Improvement Fees
The District receives public improvement fees (PIF) from the Fitzsimons Village Public Improvement
Corporation (PIC). The PIC imposes a PIF on existing retailers within District No. 2. The PIF, a privately
imposed fee, is collected from sales transactions upon which the City Sales Tax is levied and from
lodging transactions upon which the City’s Lodgers Tax is levied, in consideration of the benefits
derived from the public improvements constructed within District No. 2. Pursuant to a Fee Assignment
and Servicing Agreement between the District, the PIC and the Trustee, the PIC remits PIF to the
District to help pay for the District’s operations and maintenance costs and to service the bonds issued
by the District for the construction of public improvements.
Aurora Regional Improvements (ARI) Mill Levy
Pursuant to the District’s Service Plan, the District is required to impose a 1.000 mill levy to finance the
planning, designing, permitting, construction, and acquisition of the regional improvements described in
the ARI Master Plan. The ARI Master Plan is one or more master plans adopted by an ARI Authority
establishing Regional Improvements which will benefit the taxpayers and service users of the districts
which constitute such ARI Authority, which master plan will change from time to time.
Interest Income
Interest earned on the District’s available funds has been estimated based on an average interest rate
of approximately 0.10%.
Aurora Urban Renewal Authority (AURA) Revenues
The District, the Developer and the Aurora Urban Renewal Authority (AURA) have entered into an
agreement in which AURA will remit TIF Revenues (Pledged Lodger’s Tax Revenues, Pledged
Property Tax Revenues, Pledged Sales Tax Revenues and Pledged Use Tax Revenues) to the District
to be used for the payment of principal and interest on the bonds issued for the construction of public
improvements within the boundaries of District No. 2. These revenues are then transferred over to
District No. 3 to pay for principal and interest on the 2021 Bonds issued by District No. 3.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
11

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues (continued)
Developer Advance
A portion of the District’s operating expenditures in 2022 will be funded by the Developer. Developer
advances are recorded as revenue for budget purposes with an obligation to future repayment when
the District is financially able to reimburse the Developer from bond proceeds and other legally
available revenue.
Operation and Maintenance Fees
Pursuant to the Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District Nos. 1 – 3 Joint Operations and Maintenance
Fee Resolution, an operations and maintenance fee is imposed on all applicable property located in all
Districts’ boundaries, commencing in 2012. For commercial property, the fee was initially set at a rate of
$0.01002 per square foot per month. For residential property, the fee was initially set at a rate of $1.12
per residential unit per month. The fee rates shall increase on January 1 annually thereafter.
On August 13, 2014, Districts Nos. 1 – 3 amended the resolution to increase the fee rates starting in
2015. With the Phase 2 project (hotel, conference center, and parking structure) and future Phase 3
project, the Districts’ operation and maintenance costs (benefitting the entire Fitzsimons Village) will
increase, hence the need for the fee rate increase.
Transfers from District No. 2
The District provides project and district administration services for District No. 2. Pursuant to certain
agreements, District No. 2 remits to the District net tax revenues to cover its share of the administrative
costs.
Transfers from District No. 3
The District receives public improvement fees (PIF) from District No. 3. The PIF revenues are pledged
to the 2020A&B Bonds issued by the District in 2020. In 2022, the District will receive approximately
$17,000,000 from District No. 3 to pay for capital outlay expenditures.
Expenditures
General, Administrative and Operating Expenditures
General and administrative expenditures include the estimated costs of services necessary to maintain
the District’s administrative viability such as legal, management, accounting, insurance, membership
dues, meeting and other administrative expenditures. Estimated operating expenditures related to
landscaping, snow removal, utilities, repairs and maintenance, parking enforcement and property
management are also included in the General Fund budget.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Expenditures (continued)
Debt Service
Principal and interest payments are provided based on the debt amortization schedule from the Limited
Tax Increment General Obligation and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A&B. See debt
service schedules attached.
Capital Outlay
The District anticipates infrastructure improvements as noted in the Capital Projects Fund.
Transfers to District No. 3
The District transfers revenues received from AURA and PIF collections to District No. 3 pursuant to a
certain Capital Pledge Agreement for the purpose of paying principal and interest on the 2021 Bonds
issued by District No. 3 on December 28, 2021.
Debt and Leases
Issuance of 2020A and 2020B Bonds on March 11, 2020
The District issued Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2020A (the “Senior Bonds”) and Subordinate Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020B (the “Subordinate Bonds,” and together with the Senior Bonds, the
“Bonds”) on March 11, 2020, in the amounts of $6,265,000 for the Senior Bonds, and $1,222,000 for
the Subordinate Bonds. Proceeds from the sale of the Bonds were used for the purposes of (i) currently
refunding the Tax Increment/Public Improvement Fee Supported Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A and
the Tax Increment/Public Improvement Fee Supported Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B,
previously issued by District No. 3; (ii) funding the Senior Reserve Fund; and (iii) paying costs incurred
in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. The Senior Bonds bear interest at 5.00%, payable semiannually to the extent of Senior Pledged Revenue available on June 1 and December 1, beginning on
June 1, 2020. Annual mandatory sinking fund principal payments are due on December 1, beginning on
December 1, 2021. The Senior Bonds mature on December 1, 2049.
The Subordinate Bonds were issued at the rate of 7.00% payable annually to the extent of Subordinate
Pledged Revenue available on December 15, commencing December 15, 2020. The Subordinate
Bonds are structured as “cash flow” bonds meaning that there are no regularly scheduled payments of
principal prior to their maturity. The Subordinate Bonds mature on December 15, 2049.
The District has no operating or capital leases.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Reserves
Emergency Reserve
TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserve. This reserve must be at least 3%
of fiscal year spending. The District has provided for such reserve.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying budget.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1
SCHEDULE OF ESTIMATED DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
$6,265,000
Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2020A
Dated March 11, 2020
Principal Due December 1
5.00% Interest Payable June 1 and December 1
Year Ended December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
2046
2047
2048
2049

Principal
15,000
20,000
25,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
45,000
45,000
55,000
60,000
65,000
75,000
80,000
90,000
95,000
105,000
115,000
125,000
340,000
360,000
385,000
410,000
440,000
465,000
495,000
525,000
560,000
1,170,000
$
6,255,000

$

$

$

Interest
312,750
312,000
311,000
309,750
308,500
307,000
305,250
303,000
300,750
298,000
295,000
291,750
288,000
284,000
279,500
274,750
269,500
263,750
257,500
240,500
222,500
203,250
182,750
160,750
137,500
112,750
86,500
58,500
6,976,750

$

$

Total
327,750
332,000
336,000
334,750
338,500
342,000
350,250
348,000
355,750
358,000
360,000
366,750
368,000
374,000
374,500
379,750
384,500
388,750
597,500
600,500
607,500
613,250
622,750
625,750
632,500
637,750
646,500
1,228,500
13,231,750

Principal and interest on the Series 2020B Subordinate Bonds are payable solely from and to
the extent of Subordinate Pledged Revenue. There are no scheduled principal payments on the
Series 2020B Subordinate Bonds until final maturity.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MAY 31, 2022
Debt Service

General

Total

ASSETS
Due from Fitzsimons Village No. 1
Receivable from County Treasurer
TOTAL ASSETS

1,432
13,353

42,481

1,432
55,834

$

14,785 $

42,481 $

57,266

$

13,353 $
1,432
14,785

- $
42,481
42,481

13,353
42,481
1,432
57,266

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to Fitzsimons Village No. 1
Due to Fitzsimons Village No. 3
Due to ARTA (ARI)
Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Total Fund Balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

$

14,785 $

42,481 $

57,266

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
GENERAL FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Property Taxes from ARI Mill Levy
Specific Ownership Taxes

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
County Treasurer's Fee
ARI Payment
Transfer to Fitzsimons Village No. 1

15,590
1,559
4,750

$

14,529
1,454
1,753

$

(1,061)
(105)
(2,997)

21,899

17,736

(4,163)

257
1,536
20,106

240
17,720

17
1,536
2,386

21,899

17,960

3,939

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

-

(224)

(224)

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

-

224

224

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

$

-

$

-

$

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
Property Taxes
Specific Ownership Taxes

$

54,565
15,114

$

50,850
5,579

$

(3,715)
(9,535)

69,679

56,429

(13,250)

818
68,861

763
56,970

55
11,891

69,679

57,733

11,946

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

-

(1,304)

(1,304)

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

-

1,304

1,304

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
County Treasurer's Fee
Transfer to Fitzsimons Village No. 3
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

$

-

$

-

$

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Services Provided
The District was organized in July 2006 for the purpose of financing and providing public
improvements and related operations and maintenance services within and outside of the boundaries
of the District. The public improvements include streets, safety protection, park and recreation
facilities, water, sewer, transportation and mosquito control. When appropriate, these improvements
will be dedicated to the City of Aurora, Arapahoe County, or other such entities as appropriate for the
use and benefit of the District taxpayers and service users. The District was organized in conjunction
with two other related districts, Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1 (District No. 1) and
Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 3 (District No. 3). The District's service area is located
within the City of Aurora, Arapahoe County, Colorado.
On May 2, 2006, District voters approved general obligation indebtedness of $382,440,000 for street
improvements, $382,440,000 for parks and recreation, $382,440,000 for water facilities, $382,440,000
for sanitation system, $382,440,000 for transportation, $382,440,000 for mosquito control,
$382,440,000 for traffic and safety, $382,440,000 for fire protection facilities or services,
$382,440,000 for television relay and translation facilities, $5,000,000 for operations and
maintenance, $382,440,000 for intergovernmental contracts and $382,440,000 for debt refunding.
The District’s service plan prohibits the District from providing fire protection and television relay and
transmission facilities and services unless they are provided pursuant to an agreement with the City of
Aurora. The election also approved an increase in ad valorem property taxes of up to $5,000,000
annually and allows the District to collect fees of up to $382,440,000 annually for operations and
maintenance. The District’s service plan limits total debt issuance to no more than $382,440,000.
The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the date of
the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course of
actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material.
The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted.
Revenues
Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed
valuations determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is
normally set by December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the
individual properties as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the
determined taxes during the ensuing calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal
installments, at the taxpayer’s election, in February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in
August, and generally, sale of the tax liens on delinquent properties are held in November or
December. The County Treasurer remits the taxes collected monthly to the District.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues (continued)
Property Taxes (continued)
The calculation of the taxes levied is displayed on the Property Tax Summary page of the budget
using the mill levy adopted by the District.
Specific Ownership Taxes
Specific ownership taxes are set by the State and collected by the County Treasurer, primarily on
vehicle licensing within the County as a whole. The specific ownership taxes are allocated by the
County Treasurer to all taxing entities within the County. The budget assumes that the District’s share
will be equal to approximately 7% of the property taxes when calculated using the current year’s gross
taxable assessed valuation.
Aurora Regional Improvements (ARI) Mill Levy
Pursuant to the District’s Service Plan, the District is required to impose a 1.000 mill levy to finance
the planning, designing, permitting, construction, and acquisition of the regional improvements
described in the ARI Master Plan. The ARI Master Plan is one or more master plans adopted by an
ARI Authority establishing Regional Improvements, which will benefit the taxpayers and service users
of the districts which constitute such ARI Authority, which master plan will change from time to time.
Expenditures
ARI Payment
During 2022, revenues collected from the ARI mill levy, net of fees, will be disbursed for the benefit of
the Aurora Regional Improvement Authority, pursuant to the District’s Service Plan.
County Treasurer’s Fees
County Treasurer’s fees have been computed at 1.5% of property tax collections.
Transfers to District No. 1
Pursuant to certain agreements with District No. 1, the District will transfer to District No. 1 (i) property
taxes, net of fees, and (ii) specific ownership taxes generated from its imposition of operations mill
levy to pay for operations and administrative expenditures.
Transfers to District No. 3
Pursuant to certain agreements with District No. 3, the District will transfer to District No. 3 property
taxes, net of fees, and specific ownership taxes generated from its imposition of debt service mill levy
to pay for principal and interest on bonds issued by District No. 3 on December 28, 2021.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Debt and Leases
The District has no debt and has no operating or capital leases.
Reserves
Emergency Reserve
TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserves. These reserves must be at
least 3% of fiscal year spending. Since substantially all funds received by the District are transferred
to District No. 1, which pays for all Districts’ operations and maintenance costs, an Emergency
Reserve is not reflected in the District’s Budget.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2
Property Taxes Reconciliation
2022

Property
Taxes
January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December

Property Taxes
General Fund
General Fund - ARI
Debt Service Fund

Delinquent
Taxes, Rebates
& Abatements

Treasurer's
Fees

Interest

Net
Amount
Received

Due to
County

% of Total Property
Taxes Received
Monthly
Y-T-D

Total
Cash
Received

Prior Year
% of Total Property
Taxes Received
Monthly
Y-T-D

$

5,117.04
5.28
6,366.67
55,343.33
-

$

-

$

1,403.40
1,614.84
1,600.97
1,392.33
1,321.13
-

$

-

$

(76.76)
(0.08)
(95.50)
(830.38)
-

$

-

$

1,403.40
6,655.12
1,606.17
7,663.50
55,834.08
-

0.00%
6.98%
0.01%
8.69%
75.53%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
6.98%
6.99%
15.68%
91.21%
91.21%
91.21%
91.21%
91.21%
91.21%
91.21%
91.21%

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

1,713.22
1,285.07
13,962.94
6,697.49
36,418.53
1,669.53
1,671.67
6,078.35
12,291.82
1,495.77
1,531.60
1,527.34

0.00%
0.42%
10.92%
21.66%
0.03%
2.89%
0.00%
0.00%
0.41%
0.00%
15.31%
0.00%

0.00%
0.42%
11.33%
32.99%
33.03%
35.92%
35.92%
35.92%
36.33%
36.33%
51.65%
51.65%

$

66,832.32

$

-

$

7,332.67

$

-

$

(1,002.72)

$

-

$

73,162.27

91.21%

91.21% $

86,343.33

51.65%

51.65%

Property Taxes
Collected

% Collected to
Amount Levied

21.74% $
2.17% $
76.09%
100.00% $

14,528.77
1,454.04
50,849.51
66,832.32

93.19%
93.27%
93.19%
93.19%

1,091.00
3,820.00
4,911.00

22.22% $
77.78%
100.00% $

1,753.34
5,579.33
7,332.67

160.71%
146.06%
149.31%

234.00
818.00
1,052.00

22.24% $
77.76%
100.00% $

239.81
762.91
1,002.72

102.48%
93.27%
95.32%

1,454.04
(21.82)
1,432.22

93.27%
93.30%
93.27%

Mill Levy
Taxes Levied
AV: $1,559,005
10.000 $
15,590.00
1.000 $
1,559.00
35.000
54,565.00
$
71,714.00

Specific Ownership Taxes
General Fund
Debt Service Fund

$

Treasurer's Fees
General Fund
Debt Service Fund

$

ARI Mill Levy
Due to ARTA
Treasurer's Fees
Due to ARTA

Current Year

Specific
Ownership
Taxes

$

$

$
$

1,559.00
(23.39)
1,535.62

% of Levied

2.13% $
2.44%
2.44% $

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
8

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MAY 31, 2022

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MAY 31, 2022
Special
Revenue

General
ASSETS
Wells Fargo Checking Account
UMB Bond Fund 2021A-1
UMB Taxable Bond Fund 2021A-2
UMB Taxable Surplus Fund 2021A-2
UMB Pledged Revenue Fund 2021A-1
UMB Taxable Pledged Rev Fund 2021A-2
UMB Project Fund 2021A-1
UMB Taxable Project Fund 2021A-2
UMB Cap Interest Fund 2021A-1
UMB Taxable Cap Interest Fund 2021A-2
UMB Reserve Fund 2021A-1
UMB Taxable Reserve Fund 2021A-2
Due from Fitzsimons Village No. 1
Due from Fitzsimons Village No. 2
Accounts receivable
Receivable from County Treasurer
Due from other funds
TOTAL ASSETS

Capital
Debt Service

Projects -

Total

$

1,278
10,214
-

$

13,272
36,000

$

64,337
708,546
234,305
21
584,158
193,172
416,827
826,990
2,900,177
787,604
31,972
42,481
28,921
32,501
-

$

11,425,482
5,600,217
-

$

78,887
708,546
234,305
21
584,158
193,172
11,425,482
5,600,217
416,827
826,990
2,900,177
787,604
31,972
42,481
28,921
42,715
36,000

$

11,492

$

49,272

$

6,852,012

$

17,025,699

$

23,938,475

$

6,872
1,568
36,000

$

6,475
-

$

69,175
-

$

-

$

13,347
69,175
1,568
36,000

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to Fitzsimons Village No. 1
Due to ARTA
Due to other funds
Total Liabilities

44,440

6,475

69,175

-

120,090

(32,948)

42,797

6,782,837

17,025,699

23,818,385

FUND BALANCES
Total Fund Balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $

11,492

$

49,272

$

6,852,012

$

17,025,700

$

23,938,475

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
GENERAL FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
Property taxes
Property taxes - ARI
Specific ownership tax
Transfer from AURA - ARI property taxes

$

TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
Accounting
Audit
County Treasurer's fee
Dues and membership
Insurance
District management
Legal
Miscellaneous
Election
PIF Collection
Payment to ARTA - ARI property taxes
ARI Payment

17,986
1,798
1,458
4,639

$

15,917
1,592
537
-

$

(2,069)
(206)
(921)
(4,639)

25,881

18,046

(7,835)

36,750
3,400
297
450
3,800
1,100
6,000
4,292
2,000
500
4,639
1,772

15,313
263
428
3,681
428
2,436
417
344
1,568
-

21,437
3,400
34
22
119
672
3,564
3,875
1,656
500
3,071
1,772

65,000

24,878

40,122

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

(39,119)

(6,832)

32,287

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Developer advance - Corporex
Transfers to other funds

98,015
(58,896)

-

(98,015)
58,896

39,119

-

(39,119)

-

(6,832)

(6,832)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

500

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

$

500

(26,117)
$

(32,949)

(26,617)
$

(33,449)

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
Annual
Budget
REVENUES
O&M Fee Pledge
Transfer from Fitzsimons No. 1 - O&M Fee Pledge
TOTAL REVENUES

$

EXPENDITURES
Repairs and maintenance
Landscaping maintenance
Snow removal

Year to Date
Actual

62,604
62,604

$

Variance

62,604
12,000
74,604

$

12,000
12,000

40,000
16,500
65,000

3,453
23,777

40,000
13,047
41,223

121,500

27,230

94,270

(58,896)

47,374

106,270

58,896

-

(58,896)

58,896

-

(58,896)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

-

47,374

47,374

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

-

(4,577)

(4,577)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

$

-

$

42,797

$

42,797

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
Property taxes
Specific ownership tax
Interest income
Public improvement fees
Transfer from AURA - TIF property taxes
Transfer from Fitzsimons Village No. 1 - AURA Funding
Transfer from Fitzsimons Village No. 1 - PIF
Transfer from Fitzsimons Village No. 2 - Taxes

$

TOTAL REVENUES

62,950
4,639
5,675
210,000
67,048
752,000
10,000
68,861

$

55,709
1,709
869
92,909
2,193
774,881
3,419
56,970

$

(7,241)
(2,930)
(4,806)
(117,091)
(64,855)
22,881
(6,581)
(11,891)

1,181,173

988,659

(192,514)

944
7,000
2,051,881
210,000
67,048

836
92,909
2,193

108
7,000
2,051,881
117,091
64,855

2,336,873

95,938

2,240,935

(1,155,700)

892,721

2,048,421

-

(23,492)

(23,492)

-

(23,492)

(23,492)

(1,155,700)

869,229

2,024,929

5,995,061

5,913,609

(81,452)

EXPENDITURES
County Treasurer's fee
Paying agent fees
Bond interest - 2021 Bonds
Transfers to Fitzsimons Village No. 1 - PIF
Transfers to Fitzsimons Village No. 1 - TIF Prop Tax
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers to other funds
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

$

4,839,361

$

6,782,838

$

1,943,477

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE FIVE MONTHS ENDED MAY 31, 2022
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Annual
Budget

Year to Date
Actual

Variance

REVENUES
Interest income

$

TOTAL REVENUES

-

$

2,208

$

2,208

-

2,208

2,208

17,000,000

-

17,000,000

17,000,000

-

17,000,000

(17,000,000)

2,208

17,002,208

-

23,492

23,492

-

23,492

23,492

(17,000,000)

25,700

17,025,700

17,000,000

17,000,000

-

EXPENDITURES
Transfers to Fitsimons Village No. 1
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
$

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

-

$

17,025,700

$

17,025,700

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
Schedule of Cash Position
May 31, 2022
Updated as of July 7, 2022

Wells Fargo Bank - Checking Account
Balance as of 5/31/22
Subsequent activities:
06/01/22 Transfer to Fitz #1
06/02/22 Transfer to Fitz #1
06/10/22 Property Tax Receipt
06/24/22 PIF Deposit
06/28/22 Transfer to UMB Custodial Fund
07/05/22 Transfer to Fitz #1
Anticipated transfer to Fitz #1
Anticipated bill.com payables
Anticipated balance

General Fund
General & Admin

Special Revenue
O&M

$

$

1,277.72
10,213.82
(6,229.52)
5,262.02

UMB - 2021 Custodial Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Subsequent activities:
06/28/22 Transfer from Wells Fargo
07/06/22 Transfer from District #1 - Dist 2 Taxes
Anticipated balance

13,271.89
(695.19)
12,576.70

Debt Service
Fund
$

64,337.47
(16,863.92)
(21,197.48)
32,498.54
28,920.78
(56,582.01)
(28,920.78)
(2,192.60)
-

Capital Projects
$

-

Total
$

-

(16,863.92)
(21,197.48)
42,712.36
28,920.78
(56,582.01)
(28,920.78)
(2,192.60)
(6,924.71)
17,838.72

-

UMB - 2021A-1 Bond Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Subsequent activities:
06/01/22 DS Payment
Anticipated balance

-

56,582.01
55,665.92
112,247.93

-

56,582.01
55,665.92
112,247.93

708,545.86
-

UMB - 2021A-1 Capitalized Interest Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Subsequent activities:
Anticipated balance

-

(708,475.00)
70.86

708,545.86
(708,475.00)
70.86

-

416,826.69
-

-

416,826.69

78,887.08

416,826.69
-

416,826.69

UMB - 2021A-1 Reserve Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Subsequent activities:
Anticipated balance

-

-

UMB - 2021A-1 Project Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Anticipated balance

-

-

-

-

584,158.48

-

584,158.48

-

-

584,158.48

-

584,158.48

UMB - 2021A-2 Capitalized Interest Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Anticipated balance

-

-

826,990.47
826,990.47

-

826,990.47
826,990.47

UMB - 2021A-2 Reserve Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Anticipated balance

-

-

787,603.62
787,603.62

-

787,603.62
787,603.62

UMB - 2021A-2 Project Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Anticipated balance

-

-

2,900,177.10

UMB - 2021A-1 Pledged Revenue Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Anticipated balance

UMB - 2021A-2 Bond Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Subsequent activities:
06/01/22 DS Payment
Anticipated balance

-

UMB - 2021A-2 Pledged Revenue Fund
Balance as of 5/31/22
Anticipated balance
UMB - 2021A-2 Taxable Surplus
Balance as of 5/31/22
Anticipated balance
Total Anticipated Balances

$

2,900,177.10

-

-

2,900,177.10
-

2,900,177.10

11,425,482.39
11,425,482.39

11,425,482.39
11,425,482.39

5,600,217.49
5,600,217.49

5,600,217.49
5,600,217.49

234,304.69

-

234,304.69

-

(234,281.25)
23.44

-

(234,281.25)
23.44

-

-

193,171.77
193,171.77

-

193,171.77
193,171.77

-

-

21.42
21.42

-

21.42
21.42

5,262.02

$

12,576.70

$ 5,821,291.78

$ 17,025,699.88

$

22,864,830.38

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
PROPERTY TAX RECONCILIATION
2022

January
February
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November
December
TOTAL

$

$

Property
Tax

30,266.03
42,951.13
73,217.16

Delinquent Tax,
Rebates and
Abatements
$
$
-

Mill Levy
Property Tax
General Fund
General Fund - ARI
Debt Service Fund

Specific Ownership Tax
General Fund
Debt Service Fund

Treasurer's Fees
General Fund
Debt Service Fund

AV: $1,798,560

10.00
1.00
35.00

Taxes Levied

Specific
Ownership
Tax
$
430.74
495.64
491.38
422.74
405.50
$
2,246.00

2022

$

$

Interest

-

Property Taxes
Collected

% of Levied

Treasurer's
Due to/from
Fees
County
$
$
(453.99)
(644.27)
$
(1,098.26) $
-

$

$

Net
Amount
Received
430.74
495.64
30,303.42
422.74
42,712.36
74,364.90

% of Levied Property
Property
Tax Received
Tax
Monthly
Y-T-D
Received
0.00%
0.00% $
47.22
0.00%
0.00%
49.36
36.58%
36.58%
2,044.82
0.00%
36.58%
28.99
51.91%
88.50%
39.63
0.00%
88.50%
5,534.65
0.00%
88.50%
61.11
0.00%
88.50%
46.57
0.00%
88.50%
54.46
0.00%
88.50%
57.67
0.00%
88.50%
43.59
0.00%
88.50%
38.82
88.50%
88.50% $
8,046.89

% Collected to
Amount Levied

$
$
$
$

17,986.00
1,798.00
62,950.00
82,734.00

21.74%
2.17%
76.09%
100.00%

$
$
$
$

15,916.77
1,591.68
55,708.71
73,217.16

88.50%
88.53%
88.50%
88.50%

$
$
$

1,259.00
4,406.00
5,665.00

22.22%
77.78%
100.00%

$
$
$

537.08
1,708.92
2,246.00

42.66%
38.79%
42.66%

$
$
$

297.00
944.00
1,241.00

23.93%
76.07%
100.00%

$
$
$

262.64
835.62
1,098.26

88.43%
88.52%
88.50%

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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2021
% of Levied Property
Tax Received
Monthly
Y-T-D
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
26.99%
26.99%
0.00%
26.99%
0.00%
26.99%
73.94% 100.92%
0.00% 100.92%
0.00% 100.92%
0.00% 100.92%
0.00% 100.92%
0.00% 100.92%
0.00% 100.92%
100.92% 100.92%

FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Services Provided
The District was organized in July 2006 for the purpose of financing and providing public improvements
and related operations and maintenance services within and outside of the boundaries of the District.
The public improvements include streets, safety protection, park and recreation facilities, water, sewer,
transportation and mosquito control. When appropriate, these improvements will be dedicated to the
City of Aurora, Arapahoe County, or other such entities as appropriate for the use and benefit of the
District taxpayers and service users. The District was organized in conjunction with two other related
districts, Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1 (District No. 1) and Fitzsimons Village
Metropolitan District No. 2 (District No. 2). The District's service area is located within the City of
Aurora, Arapahoe County, Colorado.
On May 2, 2006, District voters approved general obligation indebtedness of $382,440,000 for street
improvements, $382,440,000 for parks and recreation, $382,440,000 for water facilities, $382,440,000
for sanitation system, $382,440,000 for transportation, $382,440,000 for mosquito control,
$382,440,000 for traffic and safety, $382,440,000 for fire protection facilities or services, $382,440,000
for television relay and translation facilities, $5,000,000 for operations and maintenance, $382,440,000
for intergovernmental contracts and $382,449,000 for debt refunding. The District’s service plan
prohibits the District from providing fire protection and television relay and transmission facilities and
services unless they are provided pursuant to an agreement with the City of Aurora. The election also
approved an increase in ad valorem property taxes of up to $5,000,000 annually and allows the District
to collect fees of up to $382,440,000 annually for operations and maintenance. The District’s service
plan limits total debt issuance to no more than $382,440,000.
The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the
requirements of Colorado Revised Statutes C.R.S. 29-1-105 using its best estimates as of the date of
the budget hearing. These estimates are based on expected conditions and its expected course of
actions. The assumptions disclosed herein are those that the District believes are significant to the
budget. There will usually be differences between the budget and actual results, because events and
circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be materials.
The District has no employees and all administrative functions are contracted.
Revenues
Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied by the District’s Board of Directors. The levy is based on assessed valuations
determined by the County Assessor generally as of January 1 of each year. The levy is normally set by
December 15 by certification to the County Commissioners to put the tax lien on the individual
properties as of January 1 of the following year. The County Treasurer collects the determined taxes
during the ensuing calendar year. The taxes are payable by April or, if in equal installments, at the
taxpayer’s election, in February and June. Delinquent taxpayers are notified in August, and generally,
sale of the tax liens on delinquent properties are held in November or December. The County Treasurer
remits the taxes collected monthly to the District.
The calculation of the taxes levied is displayed on the Property Tax Summary page of the budget using
the mill levy adopted by the District.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues - (continued)
Specific Ownership Taxes
Specific ownership taxes are set by the State and collected by the County Treasurer, primarily on
vehicle licensing within the County as a whole. The specific ownership taxes are allocated by the
County Treasurer to all taxing entities within the County. The budget assumes that the District’s share
will be equal to approximately 7% of the property taxes when calculated using the current year’s gross
taxable assessed valuation.
Public Improvement Fees (PIF)
A PIF is imposed and collected from existing retailers within District No. 1. The PIF, a privately imposed
fee, is collected from sales transactions upon which the City Sales Tax is levied and from lodging
transactions upon which the City’s Lodgers Tax is levied, in consideration of the benefits derived from
the public improvements constructed within District No. 1. The PIF is remitted to the District as the
Operating District for District No. 1.
Interest Income
Interest to be earned on the District’s available funds has been estimated based on prior year’s interest
earnings.
O&M Fee Pledge
Pursuant to the Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District Nos. 1 – 3 Joint Operations and Maintenance
Fee Resolution, an operations and maintenance fee is imposed on all applicable property located in all
Districts’ boundaries. For commercial property, the fee was initially set at a rate of $0.01002 per square
foot per month. For residential property, the fee was initially set at a rate of $1.12 per residential unit
per month. The fee rates shall increase on January 1 annually thereafter.
On August 13, 2014, Districts Nos. 1 – 3 amended the resolution to increase the fee rates starting in
2015. With the Phase 2 project (hotel, conference center, and parking structure) and future Phase 3
project, the Districts’ operation and maintenance costs (benefitting the entire Fitzsimons Village) will
increase, hence the need for the fee rate increase.
Transfer from Aurora Urban Renewal Authority (AURA) – ARI Property Taxes
Pursuant to the District’s Service Plan, if it collects a debt service mill levy, the District is required to
impose a 1.000 mill levy to finance the planning, designing, permitting, construction, and acquisition of
the regional improvements described in the ARI Master Plan. The ARI Master Plan is one or more
master plans adopted by an ARI Authority establishing Regional Improvements, which will benefit the
taxpayers and service users of the districts which constitute such ARI Authority, which master plan will
change from time to time.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Revenues - (continued)
Transfer from Aurora Urban Renewal Authority (AURA) – TIF Property Taxes
Pursuant to an intergovernmental agreement, the District anticipates receiving TIF property taxes from
Aurora Urban Renewal Authority (AURA), which TIF property taxes are pledged for the payment of
principal and interest on the 2014 Bonds issued by the District, which Bonds were refunded in 2020
through the issuance of District No. 1 Bonds.
Transfer from District No. 1 – AURA Funding and PIF
Pursuant to a Capital Pledge Agreement between Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 1, the
District anticipates receiving certain revenues from District No. 1 that are pledged towards payment of
the 2021 Bonds issued by the District on December 28, 2021.
Transfer from District No. 2 - Taxes
Pursuant to a Capital Pledge Agreement with Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District No. 2, the District
anticipates receiving net tax revenues from District No. 2 towards payment of the 2021 Bonds issued by
the District on December 28, 2021.
Expenditures
General, Administrative, Operations and Maintenance Expenditures
General and administrative expenditures include the estimated costs of services necessary to maintain
the District’s administrative viability such as legal, management, accounting, insurance, membership
dues, meeting and other administrative expenditures. Estimated operating expenditures related to
landscaping, snow removal, and repairs and maintenance are included in the Special Revenue Fund
budget.
County Treasurer’s Fees
County Treasurer’s fees have been computed at 1.5% of property tax collections.
Payment to ARTA – ARI Property Taxes
During 2022, revenues collected from AURA related to the ARI mill levy will be disbursed for the benefit
of the Aurora Regional Improvement Authority, pursuant to the District’s Service Plan.
Debt Service
Principal and interest payments are provided based on the debt amortization schedule from the Limited
Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2021A-1 and
Taxable Parking/Limited General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A-2. See debt
service schedules attached.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS
Debt and Leases
The District issued Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Refunding and Improvement
Bonds, Series 2021A-1 (the “2021A-1 Bonds”) and Taxable Parking/Limited Tax General Obligation
and Special Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A-2 (the “2021A-2 Taxable Bonds” and, together with the
2021A-1 Bonds, the “Bonds”) on December 28, 2021, in the par amounts of $40,040,000 for the 2021A1 Bonds and $7,875,000 for the 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds.
Use of Proceeds
Proceeds from the sale of the 2021A-1 Bonds were used for the purposes of:
(a) currently refunding District No. 1’s Tax Increment/Public Improvement Fee Supported Junior
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B (the “2010B Bonds”) and District No. 1’s Refunding Tax
Increment/Public Improvement Fee Supported Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (the “2020 Bonds”
and, together with the 2010B Bonds, the “Refunded Bonds”);
(b) financing public improvements, including a portion of the costs of a parking structure;
(c) funding a portion of interest to accrue on the Series 2021A-1 Bonds;
(d) funding the Reserve Fund; and
(e) paying costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the 2021A-1 Bonds and the refunding
of the Refunded Bonds.
(f)
Proceeds from the sale of the 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds were used for the purposes of:
(a) financing public improvements, including a portion of the costs of a parking structure;
(b) funding a portion of interest to accrue on the 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds;
(c) funding the Taxable Reserve Fund; and
(d) paying costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds.
Bonds Details
The 2021A-1 Bonds and the 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.00% to
4.25%, and 7.00%, respectively, payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1, beginning on June
1, 2022, to the extent of available 2021A-1 Pledged Revenue with respect to the 2021A-1 Bonds and
2021A-2 Pledged Revenue with respect to the 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds. Annual mandatory sinking fund
principal payments are due on December 1, beginning on December 1, 2025 for the 2021A-1 Bonds
and the 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds. The last maturity of the 2021A-1 Bonds is on December 1, 2055 and
the 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds mature on December 1, 2041. To the extent principal of any Bond is not
paid when due, such principal shall remain outstanding until paid and is to continue to bear interest at
the rate then borne by the Bond. To the extent interest on the Bonds is not paid when due, such
interest shall compound on each each June 1 and December 1, at the rate then borne by the Bonds.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

Debt and Leases (continued)
Optional Redemption
The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the District, on December 1,
2026, and on any date thereafter, upon payment of par, accrued interest, and a redemption premium
equal to a percentage of the principal amount so redeemed as follows:
Date of Redemption
December 1, 2026, to November 30, 2027
December 1, 2027, to November 30, 2028
December 1, 2028, to November 30, 2029
December 1, 2029, and thereafter

Redemption Premium
3.00%
2.00
1.00
0.00

Pledged Revenue
The Bonds are secured by and payable solely from the revenues pledged in accordance with the
applicable Indenture. Both the 2021A-1 Pledged Revenue and the 2021A-2 Pledged Revenue include
the Shared Pledged Revenue.
A portion of the 2021A-1 Pledged Revenue and the 2021A-2 Pledged Revenue consist of revenues of
District No. 1 and District No. 2, which are pledged by such Districts to the District in accordance with
Capital Pledge Agreements.
2021A-1 Pledged Revenue
The 2021A-1 Pledged Revenue (securing payment of the Series 2021A-1 Bonds) additionally includes
the District No. 3 PIF Revenues, the District No. 2 Capital Fees and the District No. 3 Capital Fees.
2021A-2 Pledged Revenue
The 2021A-2 Pledged Revenue (securing payment of the Series 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds) additionally
includes the Parking Fees of District No. 1, and the District No. 2 PIF Revenues.
Shared Pledged Revenue
The Shared Pledged Revenue includes the District No. 1 Shared Pledged Revenue and the District
Nos. 2 and 3 Shared Pledged Revenue. Generally, Shared Pledged Revenue is anticipated to be
applied to the payment of the Series 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds only in the event that Parking Fees and
District No. 2 PIF Revenues on deposit with the Trustee as of May 15 and November 15 are not
anticipated to be sufficient to pay debt service on the Series 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds when due on the
succeeding June 1 and December 1, respectively.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
2022 BUDGET
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

Debt and Leases (continued)
Required Mill Levy
District No. 2 and the District have covenanted to levy the Required Mill Levy generally meaning an ad
valorem mill levy imposed upon all taxable property of District No. 2 and the District each year in an
amount which would generate Property Tax Revenues (including any payments in lieu of taxes relating
to such Property Tax Revenues) in the succeeding calendar year equal to the sum of (a) with respect to
the Series 2021A-1 Bonds an amount equal to the Annual Tax-Exempt Financing Costs, plus (b) with
respect to the Series 2021A-2 Taxable Bonds, an amount equal to the Annual Net Taxable Financing
Costs, but (i) not in excess of 50.000 mills (subject to adjustment), and (ii) for so long as the TaxExempt Surplus Fund and the Taxable Surplus Fund are required to be maintained and are not fully
funded to the Tax-Exempt Maximum Surplus Amount or Taxable Maximum Surplus Amount,
respectively, the Required Mill Levy is to be not less than 35.000 mills (subject to adjustment).
Mill levies to be imposed for debt service by District No. 2 and the District are subject to adjustment for
changes in the method of calculating assessed valuation on or after January 1, 2022, at which time the
residential assessment rate was 7.15%. Such mill levies may be increased or decreased to reflect such
changes, such increases or decreases to be determined by the Boards in good faith so that to the
extent possible, the actual tax revenues generated by such mill levy, as so adjusted, are neither
diminished nor enhanced as a result of such changes. The minimum and maximum mill levies at
December 31, 2021 for collection in 2022 were 35.000 and 50.000 mills, respectively.
A portion of Property Tax Revenues resulting from imposition of the Required Mill Levy by District No. 2
and the District will, for a period of time, constitute tax increment revenues initially payable to AURA in
accordance with the Urban Renewal Law. AURA has agreed to remit such incremental property tax
revenues to District No. 1 or the District in accordance with the 2008 Public Finance Agreement.
The District has no operating or capital leases.
Reserves
Emergency Reserve
TABOR requires local governments to establish Emergency Reserve. This reserve must be at least 3%
of fiscal year spending.

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
SCHEDULE OF ESTIMATED DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
$40,040,000
Limited Tax General Obligation and Special Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds
Series 2021A-1
Dated December 28, 2021
Principal Due December 1
4.00% - 4.25% Interest Payable June 1 and December 1
Year Ended December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
2046
2047
2048
2049
2050
2051
2052
2053
2054
2055

Principal
$
1,965,000
1,815,000
120,000
430,000
455,000
515,000
535,000
595,000
620,000
685,000
710,000
780,000
810,000
885,000
920,000
1,000,000
1,040,000
1,125,000
1,175,000
1,270,000
1,325,000
1,425,000
1,485,000
1,595,000
1,665,000
1,780,000
1,855,000
1,985,000
2,070,000
2,205,000
5,200,000
$ 40,040,000

$

$

Interest
1,541,975
1,667,000
1,667,000
1,667,000
1,588,400
1,515,800
1,511,000
1,493,800
1,475,600
1,455,000
1,433,600
1,409,800
1,385,000
1,357,600
1,329,200
1,298,000
1,265,600
1,230,200
1,193,400
1,153,400
1,111,800
1,063,988
1,014,050
960,075
903,763
843,200
780,088
712,300
641,538
565,888
487,050
402,688
314,713
221,000
38,660,513

$

$

Total
1,541,975
1,667,000
1,667,000
3,632,000
3,403,400
1,635,800
1,941,000
1,948,800
1,990,600
1,990,000
2,028,600
2,029,800
2,070,000
2,067,600
2,109,200
2,108,000
2,150,600
2,150,200
2,193,400
2,193,400
2,236,800
2,238,988
2,284,050
2,285,075
2,328,763
2,328,200
2,375,088
2,377,300
2,421,538
2,420,888
2,472,050
2,472,688
2,519,713
5,421,000
78,700,513

N all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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FITZSIMONS VILLAGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3
SCHEDULE OF ESTIMATED DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
$7,875,000
Taxable Parking/Limited General Obligation and Special Revenue Bonds
Series 2021A-2
Dated December 28, 2021
Principal Due December 1
7.00% Interest Payable June 1 and December 1
Year Ended December 31,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041

Principal
$
65,000
180,000
215,000
250,000
275,000
305,000
330,000
365,000
395,000
435,000
470,000
510,000
555,000
605,000
655,000
710,000
1,555,000
$
7,875,000

$

$

Interest
509,906
551,250
551,250
551,250
546,700
534,100
519,050
501,550
482,300
460,950
437,850
412,300
384,650
354,200
321,300
285,600
246,750
204,400
158,550
108,850
8,122,756

$

$

Total
509,906
551,250
551,250
616,250
726,700
749,100
769,050
776,550
787,300
790,950
802,850
807,300
819,650
824,200
831,300
840,600
851,750
859,400
868,550
1,663,850
15,997,756

No assurance is provided on these financial statements. Substantially all required disclosures, the government-wide financial statements,
and the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental funds have been omitted.
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